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ix Flags is the
largest
regional theme

park company in the
4 world — a national brand
4 with regional focus. Its
30 entertainment
z destinations comprise
theme, water and
zoological parks, and contain more roller coasters than
the entire theme park industry combined, including the
world’s tallest and fastest roller coaster. It is estimated
that nearly the entire U.S. population — 95% — lives
within an 8-hour drive of a Six Flags park, and last year
guests spent a combined 250 million hours at Six Flags
parks.

While Six Flags remains the industry leader for thrill rides,
the Company’s goal is to balance its offerings,
re-positioning itself as the country’s premier regional
destination for family-
friendly entertainment —
from rides to water
attractions, themed areas,
parades, concerts and
shows, restaurants,
games, and merchandise
outlets. In 2006, Six Flags
is celebrating its

45th Anniversary.
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s you know, Six Flags underwent a major transition mg\pe last months: ﬂf’2005
Change is almost never easy, and certainly ours was n« excépi,@f},‘?et the
reorganization at the top and the relocation of the corpor te hgadquarters to
New York City has positioned us to begin a task vitally neces/sary to the well-
being and future growth of our company.

in January and February, | toured most of our parks, including our Canada and Mexico
operations, and although | was impressed by the power of the brand and the commitment of
more than 30,000 employees, | also came away with an even stronger belief that, while Six
Flags has a well-deserved reputation as the best thrill ride destination in the world, it has
done so at the expense of so much else, not the least of which was the focus on family.

Having said that, what | believe above all else is that our company contains the elements of
greatness. Our task then, indeed our mission, is to energize each of those elements so that
Six Flags parks become a destination for every member of the community — from parents
who are discovering Six Flags for the first time or re-discovering all we now have to offer to
grandparents and grandchildren who are creating special memories that last a lifetime;
teens who visit with their friends to take on our breathtaking thriil rides; and neighborhood
and social groups whose connection to one another is enhanced by
a communal outing at Six Flags — millions of new customers
across all demographic lines.

Toward that end, we have launched a system of new initiatives
designed to place our company on a 3-lane highway to deliver
sustainable growth while reducing debt and enhancing shareholder
value.

But, before | define those initiatives, I'm happy to report that we
have somewhat of a head start as 2005 ended on a positive note.
Full year reported revenues rose 9.1 percent from 2004 to
$1.09 billion. Attendance increased 4.9 percent to 33.7 million. And
2005 as reported Adjusted EBITDA' totaled $286.8 million,
compared to $253.6 million in 2004. Including the Six Flags
AstroWorld results and excluding the expenses not directly related
to the Company’s ongoing operations, Adjusted EBITDA for 2005
would have totaled $307.2 million.

If last year's upturn was encouraging, then you can expect 2006 to
be an exciting start of a new era. In this, the 45th year of the founding of Six Flags Over
Texas, we dedicate ourselves — in the spirit of celebration — to revitalizing our brand by
transforming our parks into multidimensional islands of pure family fun.

Beyond the thrills provided by the best rides in the world, our customers will experience a
new atmosphere colored and enlivened by a continuous fare of family entertainment at
every Six Flags location, every day, every night.

This means Six Flags will get back to being genuine theme parks — not merely amusement
parks. It means we will restore diversified entertainment offerings such as the Chinese
Acrobats, which have already generated an overwhelming response from our guests in
Denver and Los Angeles. It means reinvigorating the parks with “‘streetmosphere’” —a
process of enhancing the spaces between the rides with a variety of entertainment
offerings. It means that daily parades, in-park celebrations, acrobatic and juggling acts will

'See page 39 for the definition of Adjusted EBITDA and the required reconciliation.
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dazzle our guests. It means the casts of our Looney 3
Tunes characters and Justice League superheroes
will expand dramatically from one or two per park in
2005 to at least 30 in every Six Flags branded park,
every hour of every operating day, mingling with the
crowds, greeting our customers, posing with them
for photographs, even riding the rides. By offering a
true character program, and other theme-oriented
retail amenities, we will have created new revenue
streams that are sorely needed.

Each night, the parks will come alive with fantasy.
Fireworks, special acts, and music by big-name
entertainers will transform our parks into places
where families and couples of all ages can enjoy
themselves in secure, diverse environments. The goal
is to get them to come, keep them there and welcome them back — time and again.

By creating a more family-friendly environment we intend to drive higher attendance, broaden our
audience, realize new revenue streams, and lengthen the stay of our guests creating greater per capita
spending.

Improving the in-park experience also means a cleaner, more comfortable and guest-friendly
atmosphere. This is why we have started a smoke-free policy throughout all of our parks, why we are
investing in new painting, new landscaping and better security, why we’re ensuring that the restrooms
are cleaned and manned hourly and why we have launched a new universal training program to
ensure that all our employees maintain the highest standards of customer service.

While our collective eye is set on returning Six Flags to its former position as a major destination for
families, we’re also taking steps to keep millions of teenagers streaming through our turnstiles.

We’'re introducing new tours with pop culture icons such as X Games champion Tony Hawk. We’ve
installed three new rides at Six Flags Fiesta Texas’ water park and cutting-edge roller coasters in New
Jersey, Atlanta, Los Angeles and Montreal. In New York, earlier this year, we opened the new Six
Flags Great Escape Lodge & indoor Waterpark.

Strengthening performance through innovative marketing alliances

Another way we are working to improve the Six Flags experience for guests of all ages is through new
in-park sponsorship agreements with some of the best-known consumer brands. Papa John's will be
the exclusive pizza in Six Flags parks across the country, and we’ve named Sunkist as our official
fresh fruit, thus meeting our guests’ requests for healthy food choices when they visit our parks.

This summer, consumers will see a broader and more innovative spectrum of Six Flags-branded
marketing and promotions in the marketplace. The marketing component of our Papa John’s
agreement is extensive: during our core operating
season, pizza delivered or carried out from Papa
John’s will carry a Six Flags advertisement on its
pizza box-top; Six Flags will have in-store point-of-
sale promotions at up to 1,100 Papa John's
restaurants within a 100-mile radius of a Six Flags
U.S. theme park; and Papa John’s will distribute a
Six Flags DVD showcasing the events and
attractions at the nearest Six Flags park to all Papa
John's customers within that same 100-mile radius.

In March, we announced a multi-year agreement
with National CineMedia, a venture of three major
national movie theater chains (AMC Entertainment,
Cinemark USA and Regal Entertainment Group)




that will enable us to reach nearly 60 million
moviegoers this summer with Six Flags messages
and promotions.

These alliances afford us great growth and revenue
potential and are prototypes of the co-op marketing
agreements we hope to replicate in other national
sponsorship deals to come.

Six Flags is a unique way to reach more than

33 million consumers who spend up to ten hours a
day at our parks. We think this, along with product
placement opportunities and other forms of
advertising across our 30 locations, will appeal to
smart national and regional marketers — ranging
from cell phone service providers to airlines, video
game companies and rental car services — that will
begin to see Six Flags as an unparalleled way to reach people.

Our efforts to enhance and diversify the Six Flags guest experience rely heavily on our ability to get our
message out. To raise the visibility of our brand, we are pursuing sharply focused, highly targeted
marketing initiatives. The tip of our promotional spear is the exploitation of our 45th anniversary.

New leadership at Six Flags

Joining me in this great effort is a group of seasoned and creative professionals with deep
backgrounds in marketing, entertainment, promotion and brand-building. Among them: Jeffrey Speed,
formerly the Chief Financial Officer of EuroDisney, and now Executive Vice President and CFO of Six
Flags.

In January, we created four new operating divisions led by four new executives. Mark Quenzel,
formerly Senior Vice President of Programming and Production at ESPN, is leading our new Park
Strategy and Management group. Mike Antinoro, formerly the Executive Producer of ESPN Original
Entertainment, will lead our new Marketing and )
Entertainment division. Andrew Schleimer, who \;‘
came to Six Flags from UBS Investment Bank, will :
head our In-Park Services division. And Lou
Koskovolis, formerly Executive Vice President of
Multi-Media Sales for ESPN and ABC Sports, will
lead our Corporate Alliances division.

We also have named new general managers at five
major Six Flags parks: New Jersey, Chicago,
Washington DC, Denver and Louisville.

Additionally, 8 new members were named to the Six
Flags Board of Directors, including myself; Daniel M.
Snyder, owner of the Washington Redskins; Harvey
Weinstein, Co-Chairman of The Weinstein Company;
Jack Kemp, former Congressman, and founder and
Chairman of Kemp Partners, a strategic business
and policy consulting firm; and Dwight Schar, Chairman of NVR, Inc., a home-building company.

We have hired OgilvyOne Worldwide, the world’s largest one-to-one marketing agency, to seek new
ways to broaden and deepen our relationship with our guests through direct and interactive
marketing. We chose MindShare, the global full-service media company, as the media-buying agency
for Six Flags theme parks nationwide, which will enable us to implement an overall media strategy
designed to make Six Flags the country’s leading local family entertainment destination.




Delivering sustained growth and greater value
by improving our operations

While enhancing the experience of all our guests
will be a key driver of growth and revenue
opportunities in 2006, we also are highly focused
on implementing a number of new initiatives to
improve Six Flags’ financial performance and
balance sheet.

Increasing our free cash flow and de-leveraging
our balance sheet are top priorities. Six Flags’
year-end net debt was $2.1 billion, which is clearly
not a sustainable position. We are committed to
driving free cash flow and reducing this debt by
several hundred million dollars over the next
several years. One way to make an immediate
impact on our debt is through a review of our
portfolio of assets to determine whether any non-
core assets should be sold. We have already begun to make substantive steps in this direction.
Currently, our AstroWorld property in Houston is being offered for sale, and we have announced the
closing of our corporate headquarters in Oklahoma City and our intention to sell the Frontier City and
White Water Bay parks there.

We have commissioned a report from The Staubach
Company, a real estate advisory service, which will
advise us on what real property might be
considered excess and could generate significant
cash through a sale.

While we review our real estate holdings, we will be
directing more capital investments this year to
introduce more broad-based family entertainment
options to our 30 parks. Although we will be
increasing expenses to implement these strategies,
we expect this spending will be offset by improved
returns generated by these initiatives. Looking
ahead, we intend to reduce annual capital
expenditures in the future to approximately
$100 million from the expected 2006 season spend
of approximately $140 million.

We also are looking to generate additional revenues and capture the full value of admissions, parking
and concessions by introducing more competitive and standardized pricing across our parks for the
2006 season. This includes a new VIP program and "Flash Pass” ticket options that will allow our
guest to ‘‘reserve’’ their place in line or in our theaters and take advantage of other exclusive in-park
entertainment opportunities. With the improvements in the guest experience, this is an appropriate
time for us to take these strategic steps.

Since our employees are on the front lines of the guest experience at Six Flags, they are extremely vital
in creating and executing an upgraded level of service. As the face of Six Flags, they are instrumental
to our value proposition. For this reason, we are instituting a new universal customer service training
program for all our employees. And we are working to make Six Flags an employer of choice, taking
steps to improve the quality of our employees’ work life — everything from getting them better coffee
in the break rooms to introducing a new bonus program and an enhanced 401 (k) plan, a twice a year
defined and clear performance review program, and town hall meetings to hear their concerns and
issues. We must demand more accountability from our employees, but at the same time be willing and
able to solicit feedback and respond to their ideas and needs.

To gain greater accountability from our General Managers, we instituted a new, multi-pronged bonus
plan that is based not only on financial objectives but on guest satisfaction and other service metrics.




Encouraging feedback on new initiatives

We have great confidence in our new strategy, which
has already begun to generate positive results. As
our initiatives have begun to unfold, we have
received encouraging feedback on our new in-park
events and activities from guests in the parks which
are now open. We look forward to continued
progress in improving performance this year, and
we believe that Six Flags will begin to reap even
greater rewards from our new initiatives in 2007.

My first months as President and CEO of Six Flags
have been extremely gratifying; we’ve accomplished
a great deal in a short time. But we have a lot of
work ahead. | look forward to reporting back to you
regularly on our progress as we continue to enhance
the value of the Six Flags brand for all our
stakeholders.

So, climb aboard for the ride and help us raise the Flag.

Sincerely,

Mark Shapiro
President and Chief Executive Officer




BUSINESS
Introduction

We are the largest regional theme park operator in
the world engaged solely in the theme park business.
The 29 parks we operate (excluding the Houston
theme park which we closed at the end of the 2005
season) had attendance during 2005 of approximately
33.7 million. These parks include 13 of the 50 most
highly attended theme parks in North America and the
largest paid admission theme park in Mexico. Our
parks serve nine of the 10 largest metropolitan areas in
the United States. We estimate that approximately two-
thirds of the population of the continental United States
live within a 150-mile radius of one of these parks.

In December 2005, Mark Shapiro became our Presi-
dent and Chief Executive Officer foliowing a consent
solicitation that resulted in the removal of three direc-
tors and the election of Daniel M. Snyder as Chairman
of the Board and the addition of Mr. Shapiro and
Dwight Schar to the Board. See ‘‘Recent Develop-
ments — Management Change’.

In 1998, we acquired the former Six Flags, which had
operated regional theme parks under the Six Flags
name for nearly forty years and established a nationally
recognized brand name. We have worldwide owner-
ship of the “Six Flags” brand name. To capitalize on
this name recognition, 22 of our parks are branded as
“Six Flags'™ parks, including twelve parks that we have
rebranded since the 1998 acquisition.

We hold exclusive long-term licenses for theme park
usage throughout the United States (except the Las
Vegas metropolitan area), Canada, Mexico and other
countries of certain Warner Bros. and DC Comics
characters. These characters include Bugs Bunny,
Daffy Duck, Tweety Bird, Yosemite Sam, Batman, Super-
man and others. In addition, our international license
with Warner Bros. includes the Hanna-Barbera and
Cartoon Network characters, including Yogi Bear,
Scooby-Doo, Flintstones and others. We use these
characters to market our parks and to provide an
enhanced family entertainment experience. Our li-
censes include the right to sell merchandise featuring
the characters at the parks, and to use the characters
in our advertising, as walk-around characters and in
theming for rides, attractions and retail outlets. We
believe using these characters promotes increased
attendance, supports higher ticket prices, increases
lengths-of-stay and enhances in-park spending.

Our parks are located in geographically diverse mar-
kets across North America. Our theme parks offer a
complete family-oriented entertainment experience.
Our theme parks generally offer a broad selection of
state-of-the-art and traditional thrill rides, water attrac-

tions, themed areas, concerts and shows, restaurants,
game venues and merchandise outlets. In the aggre-
gate, during 2005 our theme parks (excluding Hous-
ton) offered more than 1,100 rides, including over 130
roller coasters, making us the leading provider of “thrill
rides” in the industry.

We believe that our parks benefit from limited direct
competition, since the combination of a limited supply
of real estate appropriate for theme park development,
high initial capital investment, long development lead-
time and zoning restrictions provides each of our parks
with a significant degree of protection from competitive
new theme park openings. Based on our knowledge of
the development of other theme parks in the United
States, we estimate that it would cost at least $200 mil-
lion and would take a minimum of two years to con-
struct a new regional theme park comparable to one of
our Six Flags theme parks.

Recent Developments
Management Change

Following a consent solicitation by Red Zone LLC, an
entity controlled by Daniel M. Snyder, in December
2005 Mr. Snyder became Chairman of our Board of
Directors and two other designees of Red Zone be-
came directors, including Mark Shapiro, who was
elected President and Chief Executive Officer at that
time. Subsequently, six new directors were elected to
our Board and five directors resigned, including two of
the six new directors.

in 2006, our Board of Directors has approved sub-
stantial changes to senior management, including sev-
eral park general managers (see ‘‘Business —
Executive Officers of the Registrant’’}, and new man-
agement has begun to effectuate a series of long-term
operating initiatives including (i) expanding the family
entertainment offering of the parks by adding additional
shows, parades, fireworks and character events utiliz-
ing the Warner Bros. licensed property, (ii) enhancing
the guest experience by improving the overall appear-
ance and cleanliness of the parks, (iii) reviewing our
asset base to determine whether any non-core assets,
including underutilized land, should be sold,
(iv) redesigning our 2006 advertising campaign to
emphasize the 45th anniversary of Six Flags and in-
creasing the use of direct marketing and (v) increasing
sponsorship and promotional revenues as well as driv-
ing increased value from admissions and in-park
revenues.

These initiatives will not be fully implemented for the
2006 season. Even when fully implemented, there can




be no assurance they will result in increased attend-
ance and/or revenue. See ‘‘Risk Factors — Implemen-
tation of a new operational plan —a change in our
strategy may adversely impact our operations’” and
“— New Executive Officers/Board of Directors — our
new management does not have proven success with
the Company.”

Closing of AstroWorld

We closed Six Flags AstroWorld in Houston following
the end of its 2005 season and are seeking to sell the
underlying 104 acre site. Our lenders have approved
the sale and we will use the proceeds to reduce debt
and for other corporate purposes. There can be no
assurance when any such sale will occur. We are
transferring select rides and other property from As-
troWorld to other parks we own or operate. Based on
our current estimate of anticipated sale proceeds and
after taking into account rides and other equipment
transferred to other parks and/or sold, we have estab-
lished a loss of approximately $20.4 million related to
this asset. See Note 2 to Notes to Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements.

Six Flags New Orleans

Our New Orleans park was extensively damaged by
Hurricane Katrina in August 2005, and did not operate
the balance of 2005 and will not open for the 2006
season. We have determined that our carrying value of
the assets destroyed is approximately $32.4 million.
This amount does not include the property and equip-
ment owned by the lessor, which is also covered by our
insurance policies. The park is covered by up to ap-
proximately $180 million in property insurance, subject
to a deductible in the case of named storms of approxi-
mately $5.5 million. The property insurance covers the
full replacement value of the assets destroyed and
includes business interruption coverage. Although the
flood insurance provisions of the policies contain a
$27.5 million sublimit, the separate “Named Storm”
provision, which explicitly covers flood damage, is not
similarly limited. Based on advice from our insurance
advisors, we do not believe the flood sublimit to be
applicable. We have initiated property insurance
claims, including business interruption, with our insur-
ers. Since we expect to recover therefrom an amount
in excess of our net book value of the impaired assets,
we have established an insurance receivable at De-
cember 31, 2005, in an amount equal to the prior

carrying value of those assets, $32.4 million. We can-
not estimate at this time when the park will be back in
operation. We are contractually committed to rebuild
the park, but only to the extent of insurance proceeds
received, including proceeds from the damage to the
lessor’s assets. We cannot be certain that our current
estimates of the extent of the damage will be correct.

Oklahoma City Properties

We announced in January 2006 that we will be selling
our Oklahoma City theme park and separate water
park following the 2006 season. We intend to market
the parks as operating parks. We also announced that
we are closing our corporate offices adjacent to Fron-
tier City and relocating corporate staff to our principal
executive office in New York City and, to a lesser
extent, our office in Dallas. We cannot offer any assur-
ance concerning the price or timing of any sale of either
or both parks. The sale will likely require the approval
of our lenders. We intend to use any proceeds to
reduce debt and for other corporate purposes.

Description of Parks
Six Flags America

Six Flags America, a combination theme and water
park located in Largo, Maryland (approximately
15 miles east of Washington, D.C. and 30 miles south-
west of Baltimore, Maryland) is the 48th largest theme
park in North America. The park’s primary market
includes Maryland, northern Virginia, Washington, D.C.
and parts of Pennsylvania and Delaware. This market
provides the park with a permanent resident population
of approximately 7.4 million people within 50 miles and
12.4 million people within 100 miles. Based on a 2005
survey of television households within designated mar-
ket areas (''DMAs’") published by A.C. Nielsen Media
Research, the Washington, D.C. and Baltimore markets
are the number 8 and number 24 DMAs in the United
States, respectively.'

Six Flags America is located on a site of 523 acres,
with 131 acres currently used for park operations.? The
remaining 392 acres, which are zoned for entertain-
ment and recreational uses, provide us with ample
expansion opportunity, as well as the potential to de-
velop complementary operations. We may also deter-
mine to dispose of some of the additional acreage not
necessary for the park’s operations.

"Park rankings are based on 2005 attendance as published in Amusement Business, an industry trade
publication. All DMA rankings are based on the referenced survey.

2 Acreage figures for park operations as used in this section captioned ‘'Description of Parks” include land used

for parking, support facilities and other ancillary uses.




Six Flags America’s principal competitors are King's
Dominion Park, located in Doswell, Virginia (near Rich-
mond); Hershey Park, located in Hershey, Penn-
sylvania; and Busch Gardens, located in Williamsburg,
Virginia. These parks are located approximately 120,
125 and 175 miles, respectively, from Six Fiags
America.

Six Flags Darien Lake & Camping Resort

Six Flags Darien Lake, a combination theme and
water park, is the largest theme park in the State of
New York and the 45th largest theme park in North
America. Six Flags Darien Lake is located off Interstate
90 in Darien Center, New York, approximately 30, 40
and 120 miles from Buffalo, Rochester and Syracuse,
New York, respectively. The park’s primary market
includes upstate New York, western and northern
Pennsylvania and southern Ontario, Canada. This mar-
ket provides the park with a permanent resident popu-
lation of approximately 2.1 million people within
50 miles of the park and 3.1 million within 100 miles.
The Buffalo, Rochester and Syracuse markets are the
number 49, number 79 and number 786 DMASs in the
United States, respectively.

The Six Flags Darien Lake property consists of ap-
proximately 978 acres, including 164 acres for the
theme park, 242 acres of campgrounds and approxi-
mately 390 usable excess acres. Six Flags Darien Lake
also has a 20,000 seat amphitheater. We have a long-
term arrangement with an independent concert pro-
moter 1o lease and operate the amphitheater.

Adjacent to the Six Flags Darien Lake theme park
are a 163 room hotel and a camping resort, each
owned and operated by us. The campgrounds include
700 developed campsites, including 440 recreational
vehicles (RV’s) available for daily and weekly rental.
The campground is one of the largest in the United
States. In 2005, approximately 346,000 people used
the Six Flags Darien Lake hotel and campgrounds.
Substantially all of the hotel and camping visitors visit
the theme park.

Six Flags Darien Lake’s principal competitor is Para-
mount Canada’s Wonderland Park located in Toronto,
Canada, approximately 125 miles from Six Flags Da-
rien Lake. In addition, Six Flags Darien Lake competes
to a lesser degree with three smaller amusement parks
located within 50 miles of the park. Six Flags Darien
Lake is significantly larger with a more diverse comple-
ment of entertainment than any of these three smaller
facilities. The park will also compete with a ho-
tel/indoor water park being built in Niagara Falls, ap-
proximately 50 miles from the park, which is expected
to open in April 2006.

Six Flags Elitch Gardens

Six Flags Elitch Gardens is a combination theme and
water park located on approximately 67 acres in the
downtown area of Denver, Colorado, next to the Pepsi
Center Arena, and close to Invesco Field at Mile High
Stadium and Coors Field. Six Flags Elitch Gardens is
the 49th largest theme park in North America. The
park’s primary market includes the greater Denver
area, as well as most of central Colorado. This market
provides the park with a permanent resident population
of approximately 2.9 million people within 50 miles of
the park and approximately 3.9 million people within
100 miles. The Denver area is the number 18 DMA in
the United States. Six Flags Elitch Gardens has no
significant direct competitors.

Six Flags Fiesta Texas

Six Flags Fiesta Texas, the 39th largest theme park
in North America, is a combination theme and water
park located on approximately 216 acres in
San Antonio, Texas. The San Antonio, Texas market
provides the park with a permanent resident population
of approximately 2.0 million people within 50 miles and
approximately 3.6 million people within 100 miles. The
San Antonio market is the number 37 DMA in the
United States.

Six Flags Fiesta Texas' principal competitor is Sea
World of Texas, also located in San Antonio. in addi-
tion, the park competes to a lesser degree with Schilit-
terbahn, a water park located in New Braunfels, Texas
(approximately 33 miles from the park) and Six Flags
Over Texas located in Arlington, Texas (approximately
285 miles from the park).

Six Flags Great Adventure, Six Flags Hurricane
Harbor and Six Flags Wild Safari

Six Flags Great Adventure, the 20th largest theme
park in North America, the separately gated adjacent
Six Flags Hurricane Harbor, the 12th largest water park
in the United States, and Six Flags Wild Safari are each
located in Jackson, New Jersey, approximately
70 miles south of New York City and 50 miles east of
Philadelphia. The New York and Philadelphia markets
provide the parks with a permanent resident population
of approximately 14.3 million people within 50 miles
and approximately 28.1 million people within 100 miles.
The New York and Philadelphia markets are the num-
ber 1 and number 4 DMAs in the United States,
respectively.

These parks are located on a site of approximately
2,279 acres, of which approximately 635 acres are
currently used for park operations. Approximately
825 acres of the balance of the site are available for
future development. The animal park is home to over




1,200 animals representing more than 55 species,
which can be seen over a four and one-half mile drive.
Six Flags Great Adventure’s principal competitors are
Hershey Park, located in Hershey, Pennsylvania, ap-
proximately 150 miles from the park and Dorney Park,
located in Allentown, Pennsylvania, approximately
75 miles from the park. The water park competes with
several other water parks in the market.

Six Flags Great America

Six Flags Great America, the 21st largest theme park
in North America, is a combination theme and water
park, located in Gurnee, lllinois, between Chicago, llli-
nois and Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Chicago and Mil-
waukee markets provide the park with a permanent
resident population of approximately 8.8 million people
within 50 miles and approximately 13.5 million people
within 100 miles. The Chicago and Milwaukee markets
are the number 3 and number 33 DMAs in the United
States, respectively.

Six Flags Great America is located on a site of
approximately 324 acres of which approximately
208 acres are used for the park operations. A substan-
tial portion of the unused acres is unsuitable for devel-
opment. Six Flags Great America currently has no
direct theme park competitors in the region, but does
compete to some extent with Kings Island, located near
Cincinnati, Ohio, approximately 350 miles from the
park; Cedar Point, located in Sandusky, Ohio, approxi-
mately 340 miles from the park; and Six Flags
St. Louis, our park located outside St. Louis, Missouri,
approximately 320 miles from the park. The water park
competes with numerous water parks in the Wisconsin
Dells area, approximately 170 miles from the park.

Six Flags Kentucky Kingdom

Six Flags Kentucky Kingdom is a combination theme
and water park, located on approximately 59 acres on
and adjacent to the grounds of the Kentucky Fair and
Exposition Center in Louisville, Kentucky. Of the
59 acres, approximately 38 acres are leased under
ground leases with terms (including renewal options)
expiring between 2021 and 2049, with the balance
owned by us. The park’s primary market includes Lou-
isville and Lexington, Kentucky, Evansville and Indian-
apolis, Indiana and Nashville, Tennessee. This market
provides the park with a permanent resident population
of approximately 1.5 million people within 50 miles and
approximately 4.8 million people within 100 miles. The
Louisville and Lexington markets are the number 50
and number 63 DMAs in the United States.

Six Flags Kentucky Kingdom’s only significant direct
competitors are Kings Island, located near Cincinnati,
Ohio, approximately 100 miles from the park and Holi-

day World located in Santa Claus, Indiana, approxi-
mately 75 miles from the park.

Six Flags Magic Mountain and Six Flags Hurricane
Harbor

Six Flags Magic Mountain, the 22nd largest theme
park in North America, and the separately gated adja-
cent Six Flags Hurricane Harbor, the 15th largest
waterpark in the United States, are located in Valencia,
California, 30 miles north of Los Angeles. The Los
Angeles, California market provides the parks with a
permanent resident population of approximately
10.6 million people within 50 miles and approximately
17.7 million people within 100 miles. The Los Angeles
market is the number 2 DMA in the United States.

The parks are located on a site of approximately
262 acres with approximately 258 acres used for park
operations. Six Flags Magic Mountain’s principal com-
petitors include Disneyland and Disney's California Ad-
venture, each in Anaheim, California, located
approximately 60 miles from the park, Universal Stu-
dios Hollywood in Universal City, California, located
approximately 20 miles from the park, Knoit's Berry
Farm in Buena Park, California, located approximately
50 miles from the park, Sea World of California in
San Diego, California, located approximately 150 miles
from the park and Legoland in Carlsbad, California,
located approximately 120 miles from the park.

Six Flags Hurricane Harbor’'s competitors include
Soak City USA Waterpark and Raging Waters, each
focated approximately 50 miles from the water park.

Six Flags Marine World

Six Flags Marine World, a theme park which also
features marine mammals and exotic land animals, is
the 36th largest theme park in North America. Six Flags
Marine World is located in Vallejo, California, approxi-
mately 30 miles from San Francisco, 20 miles from
Oakland and 60 miles from Sacramento. This market
provides the park with a permanent resident population
of approximately 5.7 million people within 50 miles and
approximately 10.7 million people within 100 miles. The
San Francisco/Qakland and Sacramento areas are the
number 6 and number 19 DMAs in the United States,
respectively.

We manage a portion of the operations of Six Flags
Marine World under a management agreement, pursu-
ant to which we are entitled to receive an annual base
management fee of $250,000 and up to $250,000 annu-
ally in additional fees based on park revenues. iIn
addition, we operate the rest of the park pursuant to
our lease of approximately 55 acres of land at the site
on a long-term basis and at nominal rent, which entities
us to receive, in addition to the management fee, 80%



of the cash flow generated by the combined operations
of the park after operating expenses and debt service.
Finally, we have the option to purchase the entire park
exercisable through February 2010.

Six Flags Marine World is located on approximately
135 acres and offers various rides and other traditional
theme park attractions, as well as presentation stadi-
ums, animal habitats and picnic areas, bordering a
55-acre man-made lake. The park provides for the
shelter and care for marine mammals, land animals,
sharks, birds and reptiles, tropical and cold water fish
and marine invertebrates, all featured in a variety of
exhibits and participatory attractions.

Six Flags Marine World's principal competitors are
Underwater World at Pier 39 in San Francisco, Great
America in Santa Clara, Bonfante Gardens in Gilroy
and Outer Bay at Monterey Bay Aquarium. These at-
tractions are located approximately 30, 60, 100 and
130 miles from Six Flags Marine World, respectively.

Six Flags Mexico

In May 1999, we acquired Reino Aventura, the larg-
est paid admission theme park in Mexico, which was
rebranded as Six Flags Mexico in the 2000 season.
The park first opened in 1982 and is located on approx-
imately 107 acres in Mexico City, which we occupy on a
long-term basis pursuant to a concession agreement
with the Federal District of Mexico. More than 30 mil-
lion people live within 100 miles of Six Flags Mexico.
Six Flags Mexico's principal competitors are Chapulte-
pec and Divertido, both amusement parks located in
Mexico City.

Six Flags New England

Six Flags New England is a combination theme and
water park, located off Interstate 91 near Springfield,
Massachusetts, approximately 90 miles west of Bos-
ton. Six Flags New England is the 35th largest theme
park in North America with a primary market that
includes Springfield and western Massachusetts, Hart-
ford and western Connecticut, as well as portions of
eastern Massachusetts (including Boston) and east-
ern New York. This market provides the park with a
permanent resident population base of approximately
3.2 million people within 50 miles and 15.8 million
people within 100 miles. Springfield, Providence, Hart-
ford/New Haven and Boston are the number 108,
number 51, number 28 and number 5 DMAS in the
United States. Six Flags New England is comprised of
approximately 263 acres, with approximately 134 acres
currently used for park operations. A substantial por-
tion of the excess land is not suitable for development
due to wetlands and other restrictions.
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Six Flags New England’s only significant competitor
is Lake Compounce located in Bristol, Connecticut,
approximately 50 miles from Six Flags New England.
To a lesser extent, Six Flags New England competes
with The Great Escape, our park located in Lake
George, New York, approximately 150 miles from Six
Flags New England.

Six Flags New Orleans

Six Flags New Orleans, a theme park located in New
Orleans, Louisiana, was extensively damaged by Hurri-
cane Katrina and will not open for the 2006 season.
The facility is located on approximately 140 acres. The
New Orleans market is the number 43 DMA in the
United States. We lease, on a long-term basis, the land
on which the park is located together with most of the
rides and attractions existing at the park. We also own
a separate 86 acre parcel available for complementary
uses.

Six Flags Over Georgia and Six Flags White Water
Atlanta

Six Flags Over Georgia, the 32nd largest theme park
in North America is located on approximately
290 acres, 10 miles outside of Atlanta, Georgia. The
Atlanta, Georgia market provides the park with a per-
manent resident population of approximately 4.8 million
people within 50 miles and approximately 7.7 million
people within 100 miles. The Atlanta market is the
number 9 DMA in the United States.

In May 1999, the partnership that owns Six Flags
Over Georgia purchased White Water Atlanta, a water
park and related entertainment park located approxi-
mately 20 miles from the theme park. Six Flags White
Water Atlanta, which is the 11th largest water park in
the United States, is located on approximately
69 acres. Approximately 12 acres remain undeveloped.

Six Flags Over Georgia’s primary competitors in-
clude Carowinds in Charlotte, North Carolina, located
approximately 250 miles from the park, Visionland in
Birmingham, Alabama, located approximately
160 miles from the park, Dollywood in Pigeon Forge,
Tennessee, located approximately 200 miles from the
park and Wild Adventures in Valdosta, Georgia, located
approximately 240 miles from the park. Six Flags White
Water’'s primary competitors include Sun Valley Beach,
Atlanta Beach and Lake Lanier Islands. These competi-
tors are located approximately 15, 40 and 45 miles
away from the water park, respectively. The Georgia
Limited Partner (as defined below) owns the theme
park site of approximately 283 acres, including approx-
imately 50 acres of usable, undeveloped land, all of
which is leased to Six Flags Over Georgia Il, L.P. (the
“Georgia Partnership”).




Partnership Structure. The Georgia park is owned
{excluding real property) by Six Flags Over Georgia I,
L.P. ("'the Georgia Partnership’’) of which our wholly-
owned subsidiary is the 1% managing general partner.
We purchased approximately 25% of the limited part-
nership units of the 99% limited partner (the “Georgia
Limited Partnership’”) of the Georgia Partnership in a
1997 tender offer at an aggregate price of $62.7 million.
The Georgia partnership arrangements expire in 2027.
See ""Business — Partnership Park Arrangements’ for
a more detailed discussion of our obligations under
these arrangements.

Six Flags Over Texas and Six Flags Hurricane
Harbor

Six Flags Over Texas, the 26th largest theme park in
North America, and the separately gated Six Flags
Hurricane Harbor, the 9th largest water park in the
United States, are located across Interstate 30 from
each other in Arlington, Texas, between Dallas and
Fort Worth, Texas. The Dallas/Fort Worth market pro-
vides the parks with a permanent resident population
of approximately 5.7 million people within 50 miles and
approximately 6.8 million people within 100 miles. The
Dallas/Fort Worth market is the number 7 DMA in the
United States.

Six Flags Over Texas’ principal competitors include
Sea World of Texas and our Six Flags Fiesta Texas
park, both located in San Antonio, Texas, approxi-
mately 285 miles from the park. Six Flags Hurricane
Harbor has no direct competitors in the area other than
a municipal water park. The Texas Limited Partner (as
defined below) owns a site of approximately 217 acres
of which 187 acres are used for the theme park. In
addition, we own directly approximately 47 acres, of
which approximately 45 acres are currently used for
Hurricane Harbor and 2 acres remain undeveloped.

Partnership Structure. Six Flags Over Texas is
owned (excluding real property) by Texas Flags, Ltd.
(the “Texas Partnership”}, a Texas limited partner-
ship of which the 1% managing general partner is our
wholly-owned subsidiary.The 99% limited partner (the
“Texas Limited Partner’’) is unaffiliated with us except
that we own approximately 37% of the limited partner-
ship units in the Texas Limited Partner. We purchased
approximately 33% of the units in a tender offer in 1998
at an aggregate price of $126.2 million. Six Flags
Hurricane Harbor is 100% owned by us and is not
included in these partnership arrangements. The Texas
partnership arrangements expire in 2028. See “‘Busi-
ness — Partnership Park Arrangements” for a more
detailed discussion of our obligations under these
arrangements.
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Six Flags Splashtown

Six Flags Splashtown is a water park located in
Houston, Texas. The Houston, Texas market provides
the park with a permanent resident population of
5.1 million people within 50 miles and 6.3 million people
within 100 miles. The Houston market is the number 10
DMA in the United States.

We own approximately 60 acres for Six Flags
Splashtown. The park's main competitor is a water
park located in Galveston, Texas.

Six Flags St. Louis

Six Flags St. Louis, the 42nd largest theme park in
North America, is a combination theme and water park
located in Eureka, Missouri, about 35 miles west of
St. Louis, Missouri. The St. Louis market provides the
park with a permanent resident population of approxi-
mately 2.7 million people within 50 miles and approxi-
mately 3.9 million people within 100 miles. The
St. Louis market is the number 21 DMA in the United
States.

We own a site of approximately 503 acres of which
approximately 260 acres are used for park operations.
Six Flags St. Louis competes with Kings Island, located
near Cincinnati, Ohio, approximately 350 miles from the
park; Worlds of Fun in Kansas City, Missouri, located
approximately 250 miles from the park; Cedar Point,
located in Sandusky, Ohio, approximately 515 miles
from the park; Silver Dollar City, located in Branson,
Missouri, approximately 250 miles from the park; and
Six Flags Great America, our park located near Chi-
cago, lllinois, approximately 320 miles from the park.

Six Flags Waterworld Parks

The Waterworld Parks consist of two water parks
(Six Flags Waterworld USA/Concord and Waterworld
USA/Sacramento).

Six Flags Waterworld USA/Concord is located in
Concord, California, in the East Bay area of San Fran-
cisco. The park’s primary market includes nearly all of
the San Francisco Bay area. This market provides the
park with a permanent resident population of approxi-
mately 7.6 million people within 50 miles of the park
and 11.3 million people within 100 miles. The San Fran-
cisco Bay market is the number 6 DMA in the United
States.

Waterworld USA/Sacramento is located on the
grounds of the California State Fair in Sacramento,
California. The facility’s primary market includes Sacra-
mento and the immediate surrounding area. Sacra-
mento’'s only significant competitor is Sunsplash
located in northeast Sacramento, approximately
20 miles from the Sacramento facility. Subsequent to




December 31, 2005, we exercised our rights under the
Sacramento lease to terminate the lease prior to the
2007 season. At the end of the lease term, the State
Fair will owe us a net amount of approximately
$200,000, and we are entitled to remove our personal
property, including slides and other rides.

The Concord park is leased under a ground lease
expiring in 2025, with five five-year renewal options.
The Concord site includes approximately 21 acres.
Concord's only significant direct competitor is Raging
Waters located in San Jose, approximately 50 miles
from the Concord park.

Enchanted Village and Wild Waves

Enchanted Village and Wild Waves is a water and
rides park located near Seattle, Washington. The facil-
ity is located on approximately 66 acres. The Seattle-
Tacoma market provides the park with a permanent
resident population of approximately 3.5 million people
within 50 miles and approximately 4.6 million people
within 100 miles. The Seattle-Tacoma market is the
number 13 DMA in the United States. The park does
not have any significant direct competitors.

Frontier City

Frontier City is a western theme park located along
Interstate 35 in northeast Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,
approximately 100 miles from Tulsa. The park’s market
includes nearly all of Oklahoma and certain parts of
Texas and Kansas, with its primary market in
Oklahoma City and Tulsa. This market provides the
park with a permanent resident population of approxi-
mately 1.3 million people within 50 miles of the park
and 2.6 million people within 100 miles. The Oklahoma
City and Tulsa markets are the number 45 and num-
ber 60 DMAs in the United States, respectively. We
have announced that we intend to sell the park as a
going concern following the 2006 season.

We own a site of approximately 113 acres, with
approximately 40 acres currently used for park opera-
tions. Frontier City’s only significant competitor is Six
Flags Over Texas, located in Arlington, Texas, approxi-
mately 225 miles from Frontier City.

La Ronde

La Ronde, a theme park located in the City of Mon-
treal, is located on the 146 acre site of the 1967
Montreal Worlds Fair. Montreal has a metropolitan
population of approximately 3.7 million and is a major
tourist destination. This market provides the park with
a permanent resident population of approximately
4.3 million people within 50 miles of the park and
5.8 million people within 100 miles. The park’s only
competitors are our park at Lake George, The Great
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Escape, and Paramount Canada’s Wonderland, ap-
proximately 170 miles and 370 miles, respectively, from
La Ronde.

The Great Escape and Six Flags Great Escape
Lodge & Indoor Waterpark

The Great Escape, which opened in 1954, is a combi-
nation theme and water park located off Interstate 87 in
the Lake George, New York resort area, 180 miles
north of New York City and 40 miles north of Albany.
The park’s primary market includes the Lake George
tourist population and the upstate New York and west-
ern New England resident population. This market pro-
vides the park with a permanent resident population of
approximately 1.1 million people within 50 miles of the
park and 3.2 million people within 100 miles. According
to information released by local governmental agen-
cies, approximately 10.7 million tourists visited the
Lake George area in 2004. The Albany market is the
number 55 DMA in the United States.

In February 2006, the Six Flags Great Escape
Lodge & Indoor Waterpark, which is located across
from The Great Escape & Splashwater Kingdom,
opened. In addition to a 200 suite hotel, the facility
features a 38,000-square foot indoor waterpark. The
facility is owned by a joint venture in which we hold a
41% interest. We also manage the facility for a man-
agement fee equal to 5% of the hotel’s gross receipts.
We have guaranteed the payment of a $31.0 million
construction loan incurred by the joint venture. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation — Liquidity, Capi-
tal Commitments and Resources — Off-balance sheet
arrangements and aggregate contractual obligations.”

The Great Escape is located on a site of approxi-
mately 351 acres, with approximately 132 acres cur-
rently used for park operations. Approximately 17
undeveloped acres are suitable for park expansion.
The Great Escape’s only significant direct competitor is
Six Flags New England, our park located in Springfield,
Massachusetts, approximately 150 miles from The
Great Escape. In addition, there is a smaller water park
located in Lake George.

White Water Bay

White Water Bay is a tropical themed water park
situated on approximately 21 acres located along Inter-
state 40 in southwest Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. The
park’s primary market includes the greater Oklahoma
City metropolitan area. Oklahoma City is the number 45
DMA in the United States. This market provides the
park with a permanent resident population of approxi-
mately 1.3 million people within 50 miles of the park
and 2.6 million people within 100 miles. We have an-




nounced that we intend to sell the park as a going
concern foliowing the 2006 season.

Wyandot Lake

Wyandot Lake is mainly a water park, but also offers
traditional amusement park attractions with 15 “dry”
rides, games, shows and a large catering facility. It is
located just outside of Columbus, Ohio, adjacent to the
Columbus Zoo on property subleased from the Colum-
bus Zoo. The park’s primary market inciudes the Co-
lumbus metropolitan area and other central Ohio
towns. This market provides the park with a permanent
resident population of approximately 2.2 million people
within 50 miles of the park and approximately 6.8 mil-
fion people within 100 miles. The Columbus market is
the number 32 DMA in the United States.

We lease from the Columbus Zoo the land, the
buildings and several rides which existed on the prop-
erty at the time the lease was entered into in 1983. The
lease will expire at the end of the 2006 season. Under
the lease we are permitted to remove our personal
property, including rides and slides. Subsequent to
December 31, 2005, we agreed in principle to sell the
park to the Zoo at the end of the 2006 season for
approximately $2.0 million. There is no assurance that
this sale will be consummated. The land leased by
Wyandot Lake consists of approximately 18 acres. The
park shares parking facilities with the Columbus Zoo.

Wyandot Lake’s direct competitors are Kings Island,
located near Cincinnati, Ohio, and Cedar Point, located
in Sandusky, Ohio. Each of these parks is located
approximately 100 miles from Wyandot Lake. Although
the Columbus Zoo is located adjacent to the park, it is
considered a complementary attraction, with many pa-
trons visiting both facilities.

Partnership Park Arrangements

In connection with our 1998 acquisition of the former
Six Flags, we guaranteed certain obligations relating to
Six Flags Over Georgia and Six Flags Over Texas (the
“Partnership Parks’). These obligations continue until
2027, in the case of the Georgia park, and 2028, in the
case of the Texas park. Among such obligations are
(i) minimum annual distributions (including rent) of
approximately $56.8 million in 2006 (subject to cost of
living adjustments in subsequent years) to partners in
these two Partnerships Parks (of which we will be
entitled to receive in 2006 approximately $18.5 million
based on our present ownership of 25.3% of the Geor-
gia limited partnership units and 37.6% of the Texas
limited partnership units), (ii) minimum capital ex-
penditures at each park during rolling five-year periods
based generally on 6% of park revenues, and (iii) an
annual offer to purchase a maximum number of 5% per
year {(accumulating to the extent not purchased in any

13

given year) of limited partnership units at prices de-
scribed below.

After payment of the minimum distribution, we are
entitled to a management fee equal to 3% of prior year
gross revenues and, thereafter, any additional cash will
be distributed 95% to us, in the case of the Georgia
park, and 92.5% to us, in the case of Texas.

The purchase price for the annual offer to purchase
limited partnership units in the Georgia and Texas
parks is based on the greater of {i) $250.0 million (in
the case of Georgia) and $374.8 million (in the case of
Texas) (the “Specified Prices’) or (ii) a value derived
by multiplying the weighted-average four year EBITDA
of the park by 8.0 (in the case of Georgia) and 8.5 (in
the case of Texas). In 2027 and 2028, we have the
option to purchase all remaining units in the Georgia
partnerships and Texas partnership respectively, at a
price based on the Specified Prices set forth above,
increased by a cost of living adjustment. Because we
have not been required to purchase a material amount
of units since 1998, our maximum purchase obligation
for both parks in 2006 is $246.6 million.

In connection with our acquisition of the former Six
Flags, we entered into a Subordinated Indemnity
Agreement (the ‘‘Subordinated Indemnity Agree-
ment’’) with certain Six Flags entities, Time Warner
Inc. (“Time Warner’’) and an affiliate of Time Warner,
pursuant to which, among other things, we transferred
to Time Warner (which has guaranteed all of the Six
Flags obligations under the Partnership Park arrange-
ments) record title to the corporations which own the
entities that have purchased and will purchase limited
partnership units of the Partnership Parks, and we
received an assignment from Time Warner of all cash
flow received on such limited partnership units and we
otherwise control such entities. In addition, we issued
preferred stock of the managing partner of the partner-
ships to Time Warner. In the event of a default by us of
our obligations described in this paragraph, these ar-
rangements would permit Time Warner to take full
control of both the entities that own limited partnership
units and the managing partner. After all such obliga-
tions have been satisfied, Time Warner is required to
retransfer to us the entire equity interests of these
entities. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Partnership Park Obligations’ and Note 12 to Notes to
Consoilidated Financial Statements.

Marketing and Promotion

We attract visitors through multi-media marketing
and promotional programs for each of our parks. The
national programs are designed to market and enhance
the Six Flags brand name and, in 2006, will emphasize
the 45th anniversary of Six Flags. Local programs are




tailored to address the different characteristics of their
respective markets and to maximize the impact of
specific park attractions and product introductions. All
marketing and promotional programs are updated or
completely changed each year to address new devel-
opments. Marketing programs are supervised by our
Executive Vice President, Entertainment and Market-
ing, with the assistance of our senior management and
a national advertising agency.

We also develop alliance, sponsorship and co-mar-
keting relationships with well-known national and re-
gional consumer goods companies and retailers to
supplement our advertising efforts and to provide at-
tendance incentives in the form of discounts and/or
premiums. We also arrange for popular local radio and
television programs to be filmed or broadcast live from
our parks.

Group sales and pre-sold tickets represented ap-
proximately 31% of aggregate attendance in 2005 at
the parks which we owned or operated during that
season. Each park has a group sales and pre-sold
ticket manager and a sales staff dedicated to selling
multiple group sales and pre-sold ticket programs
through a variety of methods, including direct mail,
telemarketing and personal sales calls.

Season pass sales establish an attendance base in
advance of the season, thus reducing exposure to
inclement weather. Additionally, season pass holders
often bring paying guests and generate “‘word-of-
mouth’ advertising for the parks. During 2005, season
pass attendance constituted approximately 28% of the
total attendance at parks we owned or operated during
that season.

A significant portion of our attendance has histori-
cally been attributable to the sale of discount admission
tickets. We offer discounts on season and multi-visit
tickets, tickets for specific dates and tickets to affiliated
groups such as businesses, schools and religious,
fraternal and similar organizations. The increased in-
park spending which results from such attendance is
not offset by incremental operating expenses, because
such expenses are relatively fixed during the operating
season.

We also implement promotional programs as a
means of targeting specific market segments and geo-
graphic locations not generally reached through group
or retail sales efforts. The promotional programs utilize
coupons, sweepstakes, reward incentives and rebates
to attract additional visitors. These programs are im-
plemented through direct mail, telemarketing, direct
response media, sponsorship marketing and targeted
multi-media programs. The special promotional offers
are usually for a limited time and offer a reduced
admission price or provide some additional incentive to
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purchase a ticket, such as combination tickets with a
complementary location.

Licenses

We have the exclusive right on a long-term basis to
theme park usage of the Warner Bros. and DC Comics
animated characters throughout the United States (ex-
cept for the Las Vegas metropolitan area), Canada,
Mexico and other countries. In particular, our license
agreements entitle us to use, subject to customary
approval rights of Warner Bros. and, in limited circum-
stances, approval rights of certain third parties, all
animated cartoon and comic book characters that
Warner Bros. and DC Comics have the right to license,
including Batman, Superman, Bugs Bunny, Daffy Duck,
Tweety Bird and Yosemite Sam, and include the right to
sell merchandise using the characters. In addition, the
Cartoon Network and Hanna-Barbera characters in-
cluding Yogi Bear, Scooby-Doo and The Flintstones are
available for our use at theme parks throughout Europe
and in Mexico and Latin and South America. In addition
to basic license fees ($4.0 million in 2005), we are
required to pay a royalty fee on merchandise manufac-
tured by or for us and sold that uses the licensed
characters. The royalty fee is generalily equai to 12% of
the cost to the Company of the merchandise. Warner
Bros. has the right to terminate the license agreements
under certain circumstances including if any persons
involved in the movie or television industries obtain
control of us and upon a default under the Subordi-
nated Indemnity Agreement.

Park Operations

We currently operate in geographically diverse mar-
kets in North America. Each of our parks is operated to
the extent practicable as a separate operating division
in order to maximize local marketing opportunities and
to provide flexibility in meeting local needs. Each park
is managed by a general manager who reports to one
of our four regional Vice Presidents. The general man-
ager is responsible for all operations and management
of the individual park. Local advertising, ticket sales,
community relations and hiring and training of person-
nel are the responsibility of individual park manage-
ment in coordination with corporate support teams.

Each of our parks is managed by a full-time, on-site
management team under the direction of the general
manager. Each management team includes senior per-
sonnel responsible for operations and maintenance, in-
park food, beverage and merchandising, marketing and
promotion, human resources and finance. Park man-
agement compensation structures are designed to pro-
vide incentives (including stock options and cash
bonuses) for individual park managers to execute our




strategy and to maximize revenues and operating cash
flow.

Our parks are generally open daily from Memorial
Day through Labor Day. In addition, most of our parks
are open during weekends prior to and folliowing their
daily seasons, often in conjunction with themed events
(such as Hallowscream, Family Fright Fest,
Oktoberfest and Holiday in the Park®). Due to their
location, certain parks have longer operating seasons.
Typically, the parks charge a basic daily admission
price, which allows unlimited use of all rides and attrac-
tions, although in certain cases special rides and at-
tractions require the payment of an additional fee.

See Note 13 to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for information concerning revenues and
long-lived assets by domestic and international
categories.

Capital Improvements

We regularly make capital investments for new rides
and attractions at our parks. We purchase both new
and used rides and attractions. In addition, we rotate
rides among parks to provide fresh attractions. We
believe that the selective introduction of new rides and
attractions, including family entertainment attractions,
is an important factor in promoting each of the parks in
order to achieve market penetration and encourage
fonger visits, which lead to increased attendance and
in-park spending. in addition, we generally enhance the
theming and landscaping of our parks in order to
provide a more complete family oriented entertainment
experience. Capital expenditures are planned on a
seasonal basis with most expenditures made during
the off-season. Expenditures for materials and ser-
vices associated with maintaining assets, such as
painting and inspecting rides, are expensed as incurred
and therefore are not included in capital expenditures.

Maintenance and Inspection

Our rides are inspected daily by maintenance per-
sonnel during the operating season. These inspections
include safety checks, as well as regular maintenance
and are made through both visual inspection of the ride
and test operation. Our senior management and the
individual park personnel evaluate the risk aspects of
each park’s operation. Potential risks to employees
and staff as well as to the public are evaluated. Contin-
gency plans for potential emergency situations have
been developed for each facility. During the off-season,
maintenance personnel examine the rides and repair,
refurbish and rebuild them where necessary. This pro-
cess includes x-raying and magnafiuxing (a further
examination for minute cracks and defects) steel por-
tions of certain rides at high-stress points. We have
approximately 945 full-time employees who devote
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substantially all of their time to maintaining the parks
and their rides and attractions.

In addition to our maintenance and inspection proce-
dures, third party consultants are retained by us or our
insurance carriers to perform an annual inspection of
each park and all attractions and related maintenance
procedures. The results of these inspections are re-
ported in written evaluation and inspection reports, as
well as written suggestions on various aspects of park
operations. In certain states, state inspectors also con-
duct annual ride inspections before the beginning of
each season. Other portions of each park are subject
to inspections by local fire marshals and health and
building department officials. Furthermore, we use El-
lis & Associates as water safety consultants at our
parks in order to train life guards and audit safety
procedures.

Insurance

We maintain insurance of the type and in amounts
that we believe are commercially reasonable and that
are available to businesses in our industry. We main-
tain muiti-layered general liability policies that provide
for excess liability coverage of up to $100.0 million per
occurrence. For incidents arising after November 15,
2003 at our U.S. parks, our self-insured retention is
$2.5 million per occurrence. For incidents at those
parks during the twelve months prior to that date, the
retention is $2.0 million per occurrence. For incidents
during the twelve months ended November 15, 2002,
the retention is $1.0 million per occurrence. Retention
levels for our international parks are nominal. Our self-
insured retention after November 15, 2003 is $0.75 mil-
lion for workers compensation claims ($0.5 million for
the two prior years). For most incidents prior to No-
vember 15, 2001, our policies did not provide for a self-
insured retention. We also maintain fire and extended
coverage, workers' compensation, business interrup-
tion and other forms of insurance typical to businesses
in this industry. The fire and extended coverage poli-
cies insure our real and personal properties (other
than land) against physical damage resulting from a
variety of hazards. Since October 1, 2002, our property
insurance policies (which includes business interrup-
tion insurance) have not covered risks related to ter-
rorist activities.

Competition

Our parks compete directly with other theme parks,
water and amusement parks and indirectly with all
other types of recreational facilities and forms of en-
tertainment within their market areas, including movies,
sports attractions and vacation travel. Accordingly, our
business is and will continue to be subject to factors
affecting the recreation and leisure time industries gen-




erally, such as general economic conditions and
changes in discretionary consumer spending habits.
See Item 1A. Risk Factors. Within each park’s regional
market area, the principal factors affecting competition
include location, price, the uniqueness and perceived
quality of the rides and attractions in a particular park,
the atmosphere and cleanliness of a park and the
quality of its food and entertainment.

Seasonality

Our operations are highly seasonal, with approxi-
mately 85% of park attendance occurring in the second
and third calendar quarters of each year and the most
active period falling between Memorial Day and Labor
Day. More than 85% of our revenues are earned in the
second and third quarters of each year.

Environmental and Other Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state and local
environmental laws and regulations including laws and
regulations governing water and sewer discharges, air
emissions, soil and groundwater contamination, the
maintenance of underground and above-ground stor-
age tanks and the disposal of waste and hazardous
materials. In addition, our operations are subject to
other local, state and federal governmental regulations
including, without limitation, labor, health, safety, zon-
ing and land use and minimum wage regulations appli-
cable to theme park operations, and local and state
regulations applicable to restaurant operations at each
park. Finally, certain of our facilities are subject to laws
and regulations relating to the care of animals. We
believe that we are in substantial compliance with
applicable environmental and other laws and regula-
tions and, although no assurance can be given, we do
not foresee the need for any significant expenditures in
this area in the near future.

Portions of the undeveloped areas at certain of our
parks are classified as wetlands. Accordingly, we may
need to obtain governmental permits and other approv-
als prior to conducting development activities that af-
fect these areas, and future development may be
prohibited in some or all of these areas. Additionally,
the presence of wetlands in portions of our undevel-
oped land could adversely affect our ability to dispose
of such land and/or the price we receive in any such
disposition.

Employees

At March 1, 2006, we employed approximately
2,500 full-time employees, and we employed approxi-
mately 31,500 seasonal employees during the 2005
operating season. In this regard, we compete with
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other local employers for qualified students and other
candidates on a season-by-season basis. As part of
the seasonal employment program, we employ a signif-
icant number of teenagers, which subjects us to child
labor laws.

Approximately 14.1% of our full-time and approxi-
mately 11.4% of our seasonal employees are subject to
labor agreements with local chapters of national un-
ions. These labor agreements expire in December 2007
(Six Flags Over Georgia), December 2008 (Six Flags
Great Adventure and Six Flags Magic Mountain}, Jan-
uary 2009 (Six Flags Over Texas and Six Flags
St. Louis) and December 31, 2006 through Decem-
ber 31, 2007 (La Ronde). Other than a strike at
La Ronde involving five employees which was settled in
January 2004, and recognitional picketing at Six Flags
New England in February 2005 by 11 employees in
anticipation of an election held in 2005 involving up to
approximately 45 employees, we have not experienced
any strikes or work stoppages by our employees. In
that election, the employees voted not to unionize. We
consider our employee relations to be good.

Available Information

Copies of our annual report on Form 10-K, quar-
terly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, are available free of charge through our
website (www.sixflags.com/investors.asp) as soon
as reasonably practicable after we electronically
file the material with, or furnish it to, the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission. Copies are also

available, without charge, from Six Ftags, Inc.
1540 Broadway, New York, NY 10036, Attn:
Secretary.

Our website also includes the charters of our Audit
Committee, Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee and Compensation Committee, descrip-
tions of each of these committees, our Corporate Gov-
ernance Principles, and our Company Code of
Business Conduct. Copies of these materials also are
available, without charge from us, at the above
address.

On July 26, 2005, our then Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer certified to the New York
Stock Exchange that he was not aware of any violation
by us of the New York Stock Exchange's corporate
governance listing standards. The certifications of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer re-
quired by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as
Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2 to this Annual Report.



Executive Officers of the Registrant

Name

Mark Shapiro..... [

James F. Dannhauser. ...

Mike Antinoro ...........

L ou Koskovolis ..........

Andrew M. Schleimer .. ..

Jeffrey R. Speed ........

Mark Quenzel ......... ‘. .

Anglina M. Vieira Barocas

Age as of
March 1, 2006

Position

(36)

(42)

(28)

(43)

(49)

(36)

President, Chief Executive Officer and a director since
December 2005; from September 2002 through October
2005, he served as the Executive Vice President,
Programming and Production of ESPN, Inc. {"ESPN"");
he served as Senior Vice President and General
Manager, Programming at ESPN from July 2001 to
September 2002; prior to July 2001, he had been Vice
President and General Manager of ESPN Classic and
ESPN Original Entertainment.

Chief Financial Officer since October 1, 1995; Director
from October 1992 through December 2005; prior to
June 1996, Managing Director of Lepercq, de Neuflize &
Co. Incorporated for more than five years.

Mr. Dannhauser resigned as our Chief Financial Officer
on April 1, 2006.

Executive Vice President, Entertainment and Marketing
since December 2005; prior to that, he served as
Executive Producer of ESPN Original Entertainment from
January 2003 to November 2005; prior to that position he
served as Senior Coordinating Producer of ESPN Original
Entertainment from February 2001 to December 2002;
prior to that, he was Senior Vice President of
HoopsTV.com.

Executive Vice President, Corporate Alliances since
January 2006; prior to that he served as Executive Vice
President of Multi-Media Sales at ESPN ABC Sports
Customer Marketing and Sales, Inc. from January 2005
to January 2006; prior to that position, he served in
various capacities at that entity since January 2001.

Executive Vice President, In-Park Services since January
20086. Prior to that, he served in various capacities at
UBS Securities LLC (“UBS’") from June 2000 through
January 2006, most recently as a Director in the mergers
and acquisitions group.

Executive Vice President since February 2006; prior to
that, he had served as Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Euro Disney S.A.S. since 2003; from
1999 to 2003, he served as Vice President Corporate
Finance and Assistant Treasurer for The Walt. Disney
Company. Mr. Speed was appointed Chief Financial
Officer of Six Flags on April 1, 2006.

Executive Vice President, Park Strategy and Management
since December 2005; prior to that, he served as Senior
Vice President, Programming and Production at ESPN
from 1999 to 2005; prior to that he served in various
capacities at ESPN since 1991.

Senior Vice President, Entertainment and Marketing since
February 2006; prior to that she was General Manager
(North America) and then President of Bugaboo, a
company that markets Bugaboo Frog baby strollers,
since 2004; prior to that time, she served in account
service at Wieden and Kennedy, an advertising agency
for more than ten years.
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Age as of
Name March 1, 2006 Position

John E.Bement .................. (53) Senior Vice President, In Park Services since January
2006; Executive Vice President/Retail from May 1998 to
January 2006; General Manager of Six Flags Over
Georgia from January 1993 to May 1998.

Randy Gerstenblatt ............... (46) Senior Vice President, Corporate Alliances since January
2006, prior to that he served as a Senior Vice President
at ESPN ABC Sports Customer Marketing and Sales
since January 2002; prior to that position, he served as a
Vice President of that entity since 1998.

Walter S. Hawrylak ............... (58) Senior Vice President of Administration since June 2002;
Secretary since June 2001; Vice President of
Administration since June 2000; prior to that he served
as our Director of Administration since September 1999;
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Entercitement from May 1997 to September
1999; served as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Callaway Gardens from October 1995 to May
1997; served as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer at Universal Studios Hollywood from March 1994
to October 1995.

Chuck Hendrix ................... (52) Senior Vice President, Park Strategy and Management
since December 2005; prior to that, he served as Vice
President and General Manager of Six Flags AstroWorld
for more than five years.

Wendy Goldberg.................. (42) Senior Vice President, Communications since January
2006; prior to that she served as an independent
communications consultant for four years; from 1997 to
2002, she served as Vice President for Communications
at AOL/Time Warner and America Online, Inc.

Brian Jenkins .................... (44) Senior Vice President of Finance since April 2000; Vice
President of Finance from April 1998 to April 2000;
Regional Vice President of Finance for the former Six
Flags from 1996 to 1998; served in various financial
positions with FoxMeyer Health Corporation from 1990 to
1996 most recently as Vice President of Business
Development and Corporate Planning.

John Odum ...................... (48) Senior Vice President, Regional Planning & Development
since February 2006; Executive Vice President/Central
Region from November 2003 to February 2006; Vice
President and General Manager of Six Flags Over
Georgia from October 2000 to November 2003; General
Manager of Six Flags Fiesta Texas from September 1998
to October 2000; General Manager at Six Flags St. Louis
from May 1996 to September 1998; Worked at various
Six Flags parks for more than 30 years.

James M. Coughlin ............... (54) General Counsel since May 1998; partner, Baer Marks &
Upham LLP, from 1991 to 1998.

Each of the above executive officers has been We have entered into employment agreements with
elected to serve in the position indicated until the next each of our Executive Vice Presidents listed above.
annual meeting of directors which will follow the annual
meeting of our stockholders to be held in May 20086.
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RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are the principal risks that we believe
are material to our security holders. We operate in a
continually changing business environment and, there-
fore, new risks emerge from time to time. This section
contains some forward-looking statements. For an ex-
planation of the qualifications and limitations on for-
ward-looking statements, see ‘‘Cautionary Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Factors Impacting Attendance — Local conditions,
events, natural disasters, disturbances and terror-
ist activities — can adversely impact park
attendance.

Lower attendance at our parks may be caused by
various local conditions, events, weather or natural
disasters. Furthermore, we believe that general eco-
nomic conditions may also adversely impact attend-
ance figures at our parks, in that a challenging
economic environment can disproportionately affect
our target audience of low to middle income consum-
ers who generally have relatively limited amounts of
discretionary income.

In addition, since some of our parks are near major
urban areas and appeal to teenagers and young adults,
there may be disturbances at one or more parks which
negatively affect our image. This may result in a de-
crease in attendance at the affected parks. We work
with local police authorities on security-reiated precau-
tions to prevent these types of occurrences. We can
make no assurance, however, that these precautions
will be able to prevent any disturbances. We believe
that our ownership of many parks in different geo-
graphic locations reduces the effects of these types of
occurrences on our consolidated results.

Our business and financial results were adversely
impacted by the terrorist activities occurring in the
United States on September 11, 2001. These activities
resulted in a significant decrease in attendance at our
parks during the four weekends immediately following
September 11. In addition, terrorist alerts and threats
of future terrorist activities may continue to adversely
affect attendance at our parks. Since October 1, 2002,
our property insurance policies {which include busi-
ness interruption insurance) have not covered risks
related to terrorist activities. We cannot predict what
effect any further terrorist activities that may occur in
the future may have on our business and results of
operations.
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We have a history of net losses and expect to
continue to experience net losses. Consequently,
we may not have the ability to implement our
strategy for achieving growth and otherwise fi-
nance future operations. ‘

We have had a history of net losses and expect to
continue to report net losses for the next several years.
Our net losses are principally attributable to insufficient
revenue to cover our relatively high percentage of fixed
costs, the interest costs on our debt and our deprecia-
tion expense. We expect that these expenses will
remain significant. We reported net losses of $58.1 mil-
lion, $105.7 million, $61.7 million, $464.8 million (which
included a $291.0 million loss from discontinued opera-
tions) and $110.9 million (which included a $22.0 mil-
lion loss from discontinued operations) for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005.
Continued losses could reduce our cash available from
operations to service our indebtedness, as well as limit
our ability to implement our strategy for achieving
growth and otherwise finance our operations in the
future.

Implementation of a New Operational Plan — A
change in our strategy may adversely impact our
operations.

Our new management team is implementing a new
operational plan. It may take management a significant
amount of time to fully implement its new plan. If our
new operational plan is not successful or if we are
unable to execute it, there could be a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Additionally, our operating results and
financial condition could be adversely affected in the
near term as we incur additional expenses to imple-
ment the plan, even if the plan is ultimately fully imple-
mented and is successful.

New Executive Officers/Board of Directors — Qur
new management does not have proven success
with the company.

A substantial number of our senior management
team, including our Chief Executive Officer, and all but
one of our directors have been in place only from and
after December 2005. They do not have previous expe-
rience with us or the theme park industry, and we
cannot assure you that they will fully integrate them-
selves into our business or that they will effectively
manage our business affairs. Our failure to assimilate
the new members of management or the directors, the
failure of the new members of management or the
directors to perform effectively or the loss of any of the
new members of management or directors could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.




Risk of Accidents — There is the risk of accidents
occurring at our parks or competing parks which
may reduce attendance and negatively impact our
operations.

Almost all of our parks feature “thrill rides.” While we
carefully maintain the safety of our rides, there are
inherent risks involved with these attractions. An acci-
dent or an injury at any of our parks or at parks
operated by our competitors may reduce attendance at
our parks, causing a decrease in revenues. For exam-
ple, on May 2, 2004, a fatality occurred on a roller
coaster at Six Flags New England, which we believe
contributed to a decline in attendance and, as a result,
adversely impacted performance at that park during
the 2004 operating season.

We maintain insurance of the type and in amounts
that we believe are commercially reasonable and that
are available to businesses in our industry. We main-
tain multi-layered general liability policies that provide
for excess liability coverage of up to $100.0 million per
occurrence. For incidents occurring at our domestic
parks after November 15, 2003, our self-insured reten-
tion is $2.5 million per occurrence. For incidents at
those parks during the twelve months prior to that date,
the retention is $2.0 million per occurrence. For inci-
dents during the twelve months ended November 15,
2002, the retention is $1.0 million per occurrence. For
most prior incidents, our policies did not provide for a
self-insured retention. The self-insured retention relat-
ing to our international parks is nominal with respect to
all applicable periods. Our current insurance policies

expire on December 31, 2006. We cannot predict the

level of the premiums that we may be required to pay
for subsequent insurance coverage, the level of any
self-insurance retention applicable thereto, the level of
aggregate coverage available or the availability of cov-
erage for specific risks, such as terrorism.

Adverse Weather Conditions — Bad weather can
adversely impact attendance at our parks.

Because most of the attractions at our theme parks
are outdoors, attendance at our parks is adversely
affected by bad weather. The effects of bad weather on
attendance can be more pronounced at our water
parks. Bad weather and forecasts of bad or mixed
weather conditions can reduce the number of people
who come to our parks, which negatively affects our
revenues. Although we believe that our ownership of
many parks in different geographic locations reduces
the effect that adverse weather can have on our con-
solidated results, we believe that our 2003 and 2004
operating results were adversely affected by abnor-
mally cold and wet weather in a number of our major
U.S. markets.
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Seasonality — Our operations are seasonal.

Our operations are seasonal. Approximately 85% of
our annual park attendance occurs during the second
and third quarters of each year. As a result, when
conditions or events described in the above risk factors
occur during the operating season, particularly during
the peak season of July and August, there is only a
limited period of time during which the impact of those
conditions or events can be offset. Accordingly, such
conditions or events may have a disproportionately
adverse effect on our revenues and cash flow. In
addition, most of our expenses for maintenance and
costs of adding new attractions are incurred when the
parks are closed in the mid to fate autumn and winter
months. For this reason, a sequential quarter to quarter
comparison is not a good indication of our perform-
ance or of how we will perform in the future.

Competition — The theme park industry competes
with numerous entertainment alternatives.

QOur parks compete with other theme, water and
amusement parks and with other types of recreational
facilities and forms of entertainment, including movies,
sports attractions and vacation travel. Our business is
also subject to factors that affect the recreation and
leisure industries generally, such as general economic
conditions, including relative fuel prices, and changes
in consumer spending habits. The principal competitive
factors of a park include location, price, the uniqueness
and perceived quality of the rides and attractions, the
atmosphere and cleanliness of the park and the quality
of its food and entertainment.

Customer Privacy — If we are unable to protect
our customers’ credit card data, we could be
exposed to data loss, litigation and liability, and
our reputation could be significantly harmed.

In connection with credit card sales, we transmit
confidential credit card information securely over public
networks and store it in our data warehouse. Third
parties may have the technology or know-how to
breach the security of this customer information, and
our security measures may not effectively prohibit
others from obtaining improper access to this informa-
tion. If a person is able to circumvent our security
measures, he or she could destroy or steal valuable
information or disrupt our operations. Any security
breach could expose us to risks of data loss, litigation
and liability and could seriously disrupt our operations
and any resulting negative publicity could significantly
harm our reputation.



Anti-Takeover Provisions — Anti-takeover provi-
sions limit the ability of stockholders to effect a
change in control of us.

Certain provisions in our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation and in our debt instruments
and those of our subsidiaries may have the effect of
deterring transactions involving a change in control of
us, including transactions in which stockholders might
receive a premium for their shares.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora-
tion provides for the issuance of up to
5,000,000 shares of preferred stock with such designa-
tions, rights and preferences as may be determined
from time to time by our board of directors. The author-
ization of preferred shares empowers our board of
directors, without further stockholder approval, to is-
sue preferred shares with dividend, liquidation, conver-
sion, voting or other rights which could adversely affect
the voting power or other rights of the holders of our
common stock. If issued, the preferred stock could be
used to discourage, delay or prevent a change of
control of us. We have no current plans to issue any
preferred stock.

In addition, we have a rights plan which gives each
holder of our common stock the right to purchase
junior preferred stock in certain events. The rights plan
is designed to deter third parties from attempting to
take control of us on terms that do not benefit all
stockholders or that our board of directors determines
not to be in the best interests of stockholders.

We are also subject to the anti-takeover provisions
of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which could
have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control of us. Furthermore, upon a change of control,
the holders of substantially all of our outstanding in-
debtedness are entitled at their option to be repaid in
cash. These provisions may have the effect of delaying
or preventing changes in control or management of us.
All of these factors could materially adversely affect the
price of our common stock.

We have the exclusive right to use certain Warner
Bros. and DC Comics characters in our theme parks in
the United States (except in the Las Vegas metropoli-
tan area), Canada, Mexico and other countries.
Warner Bros. can terminate these licenses under cer-
tain circumstances, including the acquisition of us by
persons engaged in the movie or television industries.
This couid deter certain parties from seeking to acquire
us.
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Substantial Leverage — Our high level of indebt-
edness and other monetary obligations require
that a significant part of our cash flow be used to
pay interest and fund these other obligations.

We have a high level of debt. Our total indebtedness,
as of December 31, 2005, was approximately
$2,242.4 million. Based on interest rates at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 for floating rate debt, annual cash interest
payments for 2006 on non-revolving credit debt out-
standing at December 31, 2005 and anticipated levels
of working capital borrowing for the year will aggregate
approximately $180.9 million. None of our public debt
matures prior to February 2010 and none of the facili-
ties under our credit agreement matures before
June 30, 2008. In addition, the annual dividend require-
ments on our outstanding preferred stock total approx-
imately $20.8 million, which we can, at our option, pay
either in cash or shares of our common stock. We are
required to redeem all of our outstanding preferred
stock on August 15, 2009 (to the extent not previously
converted into shares of our common stock) for cash
at 100% of the liquidation preference ($287.5 million),
plus accrued and unpaid dividends. See ‘‘Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Liquidity, Capital Com-
mitments and Resources.”

At December 31, 2005, we had approximately
$81.5 million of cash and cash equivalents. As of that
date, we had $259.3 miilion available for borrowings
under our credit agreement.

In addition to making interest payments on debt and
dividend payments on our preferred stock, we must
satisfy the following obligations with respect to Six
Flags Over Georgia and Six Flags Over Texas, which
we refer to as the Partnership Parks:

» We must make annual distributions to our partners
in these Partnership Parks, which will amount to
approximately $56.8 million in 2006 (of which we
will receive approximately $18.5 million in 2006 as
a result of our ownership interest in the parks)

-with similar amounts (adjusted for changes in cost
of living) payable in future years.

We must spend a minimum of approximately 6% of
each park’s annual revenues over specified peri-
ods for capital expenditures.

Each year we must offer to purchase a specified
maximum number of partnership units from our
partners in the Partnership Parks, which in 2003
resulted in an aggregate payment by us of approx-
imately $5.7 million. There were no purchases of
units in 2004 and 2005. The maximum number of
units that we could be required to purchase in
2006 would result in an aggregate payment by us
of approximately $246.6 million. The annual incre-




mental unit purchase obligation (without taking
into account accumulation from prior years) ag-
gregates approximately $31.1 million for both
parks based on current purchase prices. As we
purchase additional units, we are entitled to a
proportionate increase in our share of the mini-
mum annual distributions.

We expect to use cash flow from the operations at
these parks to satisfy our annual distribution and capi-
tal expenditure obligations with respect to these parks
before we use any of our other funds. The two partner-
ships generated approximately $45.9 million of aggre-
gate net cash provided by operating activities during
2005 (net of advances from the general partner). The
obligations relating to Six Flags Over Georgia continue
until 2027 and those relating to Six Flags Over Texas
continue until 2028.

We have guaranteed the payment of a $31.0 million
construction term [oan incurred by HWP Development
LLC (a joint venture in which we own a 41% interest)
for the purpose of financing the construction and de-
velopment of a hotel and indoor water park project
located adjacent to our Great Escape park near Lake
George, New York, which opened in February 2006.
Our guarantee will be released upon full payment and
discharge of the loan, which matures on December 17,
2009. As security for the guarantee, we have provided
an $8.0 million letter of credit.

Although we are contractually committed to make
approximately $13.0 million of capital expenditures at
one park over the next two years, the vast majority of
our capital expenditures in 2006 and beyond will be
made on a discretionary basis. We plan on spending
approximately $140 million on capital expenditures for
the 2006 season, adding a wide array of attractions at
many of our parks.

Our high level of debt and other obligations could
have important negative consequences to us and in-
vestors in our securities. These include:

+ We may not be able to satisfy all of our obligations,
including, but not limited to, our obligations under
the instruments governing our outstanding debt.

We could have difficulties obtaining necessary fi-
nancing in the future for working capital, capital
expenditures, debt service requirements, Partner-
ship Park obligations, refinancings or other
purposes.

We will have to use a significant part of our cash
flow to make payments on our debt, to pay the
dividends on preferred stock (if we choose to pay
them in cash), and to satisfy the other obligations
set forth above, which may reduce the capital
available for operations and expansion.
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» Adverse economic or industry conditions may
have more of a negative impact on us.

We cannot be sure that cash generated from our
parks will be as high as we expect or that our expenses
will not be higher than we expect. Because a large
portion of our expenses are fixed in any given year, our
operating cash flow margins are highly dependent on
revenues, which are largely driven by attendance levels
and in-park spending.

We expect to refinance all or some of our debt or
secure new financing. We cannot be sure that we will
be able to obtain the refinancing or new financing on
reasonable terms or at all. We have agreed in our credit
agreement and the indentures covering our outstand-
ing notes to limit the amount of additional debt we will
incur.

Due to the seasonal nature of our business, we are
largely dependent upon the $300.0 million working
capital revolving credit facility under our credit agree-
ment to fund off-season expenses. Our ability to bor-
row under the working capital revolving credit facility is
dependent upon compliance with certain conditions,
including satisfying certain financial ratios and the ab-
sence of any material adverse change. If we were to
become unable to borrow under the facility, we would
likely be unable to pay our off-season obligations in full
and may be unable to meet our repurchase obligations
(if any} in respect of repurchases of partnership units
in the Partnership Parks.

Restrictive Covenants — Our financial and operat-
ing activities are limited by restrictions contained
in the terms of our financings.

The terms of the instruments governing our indebt-
edness impose significant operating and financial re-
strictions on us. These restrictions may significantly
limit or prohibit us from engaging in certain types of
transactions, including the following:

incurring additional indebtedness;

creating liens on our assets;
* paying dividends;
« selling assets;
.

engaging in mergers or acquisitions; and

making investments.

Further, under our credit agreement, our principal
direct wholly owned subsidiary, Six Flags Operations,
and its subsidiaries are required to comply with speci-
fied consolidated financial ratios and tests, including:

*+ interest expense;

« fixed charges;



« debt service; and
+ total debt.

Although we are currently in compliance with all of
these financial covenants and restrictions, events be-
yond our control, such as weather and economic, fi-
nancial and industry conditions, may affect our ability
to continue meeting these financial tests and ratios.
The need to comply with these financial covenants and
restrictions could limit our ability to expand our busi-
ness or prevent us from borrowing more money when
necessary.

If we breach any of the covenants contained in our
credit agreement or the indentures governing our se-
nior notes, the principal of and accrued interest on the
applicable debt would become due and payable. In
addition, that default could constitute a cross-default
under the instruments governing all of our other indebt-
edness. If a cross-default occurs, the maturity of al-
most all of our indebtedness could be accelerated and
become immediately due and payable. If that happens,
we would not be able to satisfy our debt obligations,
which would have a substantial material adverse effect
on our ability to continue as a going concern. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to comply with
these restrictions in the future or that our compliance
would not cause us to forego opportunities that might
otherwise be beneficial to us.

Labor Costs — Increased costs of labor, pension,
post-retirement and medical and other employee
health and welfare benefits may reduce our
results of operations.

Labor is a primary component in the cost of operat-
ing our business. We devote significant resources to
recruiting and training our managers and employees.
Increased labor costs, due to competition, increased
minimum wage or employee benefit costs or otherwise,
would adversely impact our operating expenses. In
addition, our success depends on our ability to attract,
motivate and retain qualified employees to keep pace
with our needs. If we are unable to do so, our results of
operations may be adversely affected.

With more than 2,000 full-time employees, our re-
sults of operations are also substantially affected by
costs of pension and medical benefits. In recent years,
we have experienced significant increases in these
costs as a result of macro-economic factors beyond
our control, including increases in health care costs,
declines in investment returns on plan assets and
changes in discount rates used to calculate pension
and related liabilities. At least some of these macro-
economic factors may continue to put upward pressure
on the cost of providing pension and medical benefits.
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Although we have actively sought to control increases
in these costs (including our decision in February 2006
to “freeze’” our pension plan), there can be no assur-
ance that we will succeed in limiting cost increases,
and continued upward pressure could reduce the prof-
itability of our businesses. In addition, our decision to
freeze our pension plan could adversely affect our
relationship with our employees and/or result in in-
creased attempts by unions to organize our
employees.

Holding Company Structure — Access to cash
flow of most of our subsidiaries is limited.

We are a holding company whose primary assets
consist of shares of stock or other equity interests in
our subsidiaries, and we conduct substantially all of our
current operations through our subsidiaries. Aimost all
of our income is derived from our subsidiaries. Accord-
ingly, we will be dependent on dividends and other
distributions from our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, including the
payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness.
We had $81.5 million of cash and cash equivalents on a
consolidated basis at December 31, 2005, of which
$31.8 million was held at the holding company level.

Other than our holdings in the Partnership Parks, all
of our current operations are conducted by subsidiar-
ies of Six Flags Operations, our principal direct wholly-
owned subsidiary. We may, in the future, transfer other
assets to Six Flags Operations or other entities owned
by us. Our credit agreement limits the ability of Six
Flags Operations to pay dividends or make other distri-
butions to us. Six Flags Operations may not make cash
distributions to us unless it is in compliance with the
financial and other covenants set forth in the credit
agreement and it is not otherwise in default thereunder.
If it is in compliance, Six Flags Operations is permitted
to make dividends to us from cash generated by opera-
tions of up to $75.0 million (of which $8.9 million has
been dividended as of December 31, 2005 and
$66.1 million remains available) in order to enable us to
pay amounts in respect of any refinancing or repay-
ment of debt under the indentures governing our out-
standing notes. Similarly, if it is in compliance, Six
Flags Operations may make additional cash contribu-
tions to us generally limited to an amount equal to the
sum of;

 cash interest payments on the public notes issued
by Six Flags, Inc.;

* payments we are required to make under our
agreements with our partners in the Partnership
Parks; and

 cash dividends on our preferred stock.




Shares Eligible For Future Sale — The price of our
common stock may decline due to possible sales
of shares.

As of March 1, 2006, there were approximately
93.5 million shares of our common stock outstanding
(excluding 700,000 shares of restricted stock we
agreed to issue in 2006 to certain executives), all of
which are transferable without restriction or further
registration under the Securities Act of 1933, except for
any shares held by our affiliates. At that date, we also
had outstanding options held by management and di-
rectors to purchase approximately 5.1 million shares
and under our current option plans we may issue
options to purchase an additional 1.2 million shares.

In addition, our outstanding shares of preferred
stock are convertible at the option of the holders into
13.8 million shares of common stock, and our Converti-
ble Notes are convertible into 47.1 million shares, al-
though we can elect to deliver cash to satisfy note
conversions. We may also issue additional shares of
common stock to pay quarterly dividend payments on
our outstanding preferred stock. The sale or expecta-
tion of sales of a large number of shares of common
stock or securities convertible into common stock in
the public market might negatively affect the market
price of our common stock.

Ratings of the Company — Changes in our credit
ratings may adversely affect the price of our
securities, including our common stock and senior
notes.

Credit rating agencies continually review their ratings
for the companies that they follow, including us. During
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2005, Standard & Poor’'s Ratings Service (S&P’)
lowered its ratings on us, including our corporate credit
rating which was lowered to “B—" from “B” and
Moody’s Investor Service (“Moody’s”) downgraded
our (i) senior unsecured debt to “Caat’” from "“B3,”
(ii) preferred stock to “Caa2’ from ‘“Caal” and
(iii) credit agreement debt to “B1” from “Ba3.” Fur-
thermore, although S&P upgraded our ratings outlook
from negative to stable, Moody’s kept our ratings out-
look on negative. A further negative change in our
ratings or the perception that such a change could
occur may adversely affect the market price of our
securities, including our common stock and public
debt.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have received no written comments regarding
our periodic or current reports from the staff of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that were issued
180 days or more preceding the end of our 2005 fiscal
year and that remain unresolved.




MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE’) under the symbol “PKS.” Set
forth below are the high and low sales prices for the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE since January 1,
2004.

Year Quarter High Low
2006 First (through $11.93 $7.70
March 1, 2006)

2005 Fourth 7.80 6.70
Third 7.49 4.48

Second 474 3.72

First 575 3.96

2004 Fourth 5.74 4.45
Third 7.25 3.36

Second 8.30 6.65

First 8.80 6.89

As of March 1, 2006, there were 950 holders of record of our Common Stock. We paid no cash dividends on
our Common Stock during the three years ended December 31, 2005. We do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends on our Common Stock during the foreseeable future. The indentures relating to our public debt limit the
payment of cash dividends to common stockholders. See Note 6 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Set forth below is information regarding our equity compensation plans at December 31, 2005:

Number of shares of Weighted-
common stock to be average exercise  Number of shares of common stock
issued upon exercise price of remaining available for future
of outstanding outstanding issuance under equity
options, warrants options, warrants compensation plans (excluding
Plan Category and rights and rights securities reflected in column (a))!"

(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders ................ 3,323,000 $16.48 4,665,000

Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders ................ — — .

Total .................. 3,323,000 $16.48 4,665,000

See Note 1(0) to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(1) Plans permit, in addition to grant of stock options and stock appreciation rights, the issuance of shares of
Common Stock.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data below as of and for each of the years in the five-year period ended December 31,
2005 are derived from our audited financial statements. Our audited financial statements for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2005 are included elsewhere in this report.

Our audited financial statements for the three-year period ended December 31, 2005 included herein and the
following selected historical financial data for the five-year period ended on that date reflect the effects of our
reclassification of the assets, liabilities and results of Six Flags Worlds of Adventure (a park located outside
Cleveland, Ohio), our European parks and Six Flags AstroWorld as discontinued operations. Six Flags
AstroWorld was closed in October 2005 and the other parks were sold in April 2004.

We adopted Financial Interpretation Number (“FIN'') 46 in the fourth quarter of 2003. Under FIN 46, the results
of Six Flags Over Georgia, Six Flags White Water Atlanta, Six Flags Over Texas and Six Flags Marine World were
consolidated in our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 and will be
consolidated in our financial statements for future periods. In addition, our financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, have been reclassified to reflect the adoption of FIN 46 in order to enable
meaningful year-to-year comparisons. Historical results for the year ended December 31, 2001 include the
operations of La Ronde from the date of its acquisition in May 2001. Historical results for the year ended
December 31, 2002 include the operations of Jazzland (now Six Flags New Orleans) from the date of its
acquisition on August 23, 2002.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue:

Theme park admissions............... $ 587,959 $ 534,056 $ 548584 $ 556,947 $ 569,671

Theme park food, merchandise and

other ... ... ... ... 501,723 464,534 458,692 455,898 458,785

Totalrevenue ... ..., 1,089,682 998,590 1,007,276 1,012,845 1,028,456
Operating costs and expenses:

Operating expenses .................. 454,683 421,649 401,592 384,394 375,847

Selling, general and administrative ... .. 208,521 196,792 198,989 182,098 179,921

Noncash compensation {primarily

selling, general and administrative) .. 2,794 643 101 9,256 8,616

Costs of products sold................ 94,964 83,555 80.307 82,131 83,014

Depreciation and amortization ......... 145,373 143,160 137,272 129,608 181,680
Total operating costs and expenses ..... 906,335 845,799 818,261 787,487 829,078
Income from operations . ................ 183,347 152,791 189,015 225,358 199,378
Other expense:

Interest expense, net ................. (183,489) (191,581) (213,300) (228,109) (223,834)

Minority interest in earnings ........... (39,794) (37,686) (35,997) (36,760) {39,056)

Early repurchase of debt . ............. (19,303) (37,731) (27,592) (29,895) (13,756)

Otherexpense ....................... (25,952) (27,555) (1,050) (6,004) (4,531)
Total other income (expense)........... (268,538) (294,553) (277,939) (300,768) (281,177)
Loss from continuing operations before

incometaxes....................o.... (85,191)  (141,762) (88,924) (75,410) (81,799)
Income tax expense (benefit) ........... 3,705 32,003 (27,919) (23,812) (7,875)
Loss from continuing operations......... (88,896) (173,765) {61,005) (51,598) (73,924)
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle .................. — — — {61,054) —
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Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Discontinued operations, net of tax

benefit of $57,406 in 2004 and $5,217

in 2003, tax expense of $8,386 in 2002

and tax benefit of $4,547 in 2001 ...... (22,042) (291,044) (708) 6,954 15,822
Netloss ... $(110,938) $(464,809) $ (61,713) $ (105,698) $ (58,102)
Net loss applicable to common stock .... $ (132,908) $(486,777) $ (83,683) $ (127,668) $ (84,617)
Net loss per average common share

outstanding — basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing operations......... $ (1.19) & (2.10) % (0.90) $ (0.80) §$ (1.13)
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle .................. 0.00 0.00 0.00 {0.66) 0.00
Discontinued operations ................ (0.24) (3.13) 0.00 0.08 0.18
Netloss ... $ (1.43) $ (5.23) § (0.90) § (1.38) § (0.95)
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding — basic and diluted 93,110 93,036 92,617 92,511 89,221

As of December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
{In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents™ ... ... .. ... $ 81534 $ 68807 $ 98,189 $ 31,307 $ 45582
Totalassets ........................... $3,493,119  $3,642,227 $4,682,771 $4,371,293 $4,370,872
Total long-term debt (excluding current

maturities)® ... $2,128,756  $2,125,121 $2,354,194 $2,305,221 $2,229,810
Total debt® ... ... ... ... ... $2,242,357 $2,149,515 $2,373,205 $2,339,716  $2,268,240
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock

(represented by the PIERS) .......... $ 283371 $ 282245 § 281,119 § 279,993 § 278,867
Stockholders’ equity ................... $ 694,208 § 826,065 $1,362,050 $1,359,692 $1,448,622

(1) Excludes restricted cash.

(2) Excludes $123.1 million at December 31, 2004 of indebtedness which had been cailed for prepayment. Assuming the
2004 Refinancing had been completed by such date, total long-term debt and total debt at such date would be
$2,138.6 million and $2,163.0 million, respectively. Also excludes $301.2 million at December 31, 2003 of indebtedness

which had been called for prepayment.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis presents infor-
mation that we believe is relevant to an assessment
and understanding of our consolidated financial posi-
tion and results of operations. This information should
be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto included in ltem 8.
Our consolidated financial statements and this discus-
sion and analysis reflect the effects of our reclassifica-
tion of the assets, liabilities and results of our park
located outside Cleveland, Ohio and our European
parks which were sold in April 2004 as discontinued
operations.

In October 2005, we closed Six Flags AstroWorld,
and we are seeking to sell the underlying 104-acre site
on which the park is located. We intend to use the
proceeds from the sale to reduce our indebtedness
and for other corporate purposes. We can not give any
assurances as to the timing of any such sale or the
amount of the proceeds therefrom. We are relocating
select rides, attractions and other equipment presently
at AstroWorld to our remaining parks for the 2006 and
2007 seasons and sold certain other equipment. We
have recognized an impairment loss related to these
assets of $20.4 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements as of and for all periods presented reflect
select assets of Six Flags AstroWorld as assets held
for sale and its results as a discontinued operation.

Six Flags New Orleans sustained extensive damage
in Hurricane Katrina in late August 2005, did not reopen
during the 2005 season and will not open in 2006. We
have determined that our carrying value of the assets
destroyed is approximately $32.4 million. This amount
does not include the property and equipment owned by
the lessor, which is also covered by our insurance
policies. The park is covered by up to approximately
$180 million in property insurance, subject to a deducti-
ble in the case of named storms of approximately
$5.5 million. The property insurance covers the full
replacement value of the assets destroyed and in-
cludes business interruption coverage. Although the
flood insurance provisions of the policies contain a
$27.5 million sublimit, the separate ‘‘Named Storm”
provision, which explicitly covers flood damage, is not
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similarly limited. Based on advice from our insurance
advisors, we do not believe the flood sublimit to be
applicable. We have initiated property insurance
claims, including for business interruption, with our
insurers. Since we expect to recover therefrom an
amount in excess of our net book value of the impaired
assets, we have established an insurance receivable at
December 31, 2005, in an amount equal to the carrying
value of those assets, $32.4 million. We cannot esti-
mate at this time when the park will be back in opera-
tion. We are contractually committed to rebuild the
park, but only to the extent of insurance proceeds
received, including proceeds from the damage to the
lessor’s assets. We cannot be certain that our current
estimates of the extent of the damage will be correct.
See Note 12 to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

GENERAL

Our revenue is primarily derived from the sale of
tickets for entrance to our parks (approximately 54.0%
of revenues in 2005), the sale of food, merchandise,
games and attractions and parking at our parks and
sponsorship and other miscellaneous revenues. Ex-
cluding AstroWorld, revenues in 2005 increased 9.1%
over 2004, driven by a 4.9% increase in attendance,
coupled with a 4.0% increase in per capita revenue.

Our principal costs of operations include salaries and
wages, employee benefits, advertising, outside ser-
vices, maintenance, utilities and insurance. Our ex-
penses are relatively fixed. Costs for full-time
employees, maintenance, utilities, advertising and in-
surance do not vary significantly with attendance. How-
ever, we increased operating expenses in 2005 in
order to provide enhanced guest service, and intend to
do so again in 2006.

We plan to make approximately $140 million of capital
expenditures for the 2006 season adding a wide array of
attractions at many of our parks. New management is
commencing a series of initiatives for the 2006 season,
including a significant expansion in 2006 of a variety of
guest service enhancements. See “Business — Recent
Developments — Management Change.”




Results of Operations

Summary data for the years ended December 31 were as follows (in thousands, except per capital revenue):

Percentage Changes

Summary of Operations 2005 2004 2003 2005 v. 2004 2004 v. 2003
Totalrevenue ........................... $1,089,682 $ 998590 $1,007,276 9.1% (0.9)%
Operating expenses ..................... 454,683 421,649 401,592 7.8 5.0
Selling, general and administrative ........ 208,521 196,792 198,989 6.0 (1.1)
Non-cash compensation ................. 2,794 643 101 3345 536.6
Costs of products sold................... 94,964 83,555 80,307 13.7 4.0
Depreciation and amortization ............ 145,373 143,160 137,272 1.5 4.3
Income from operations . ................. 183,347 152,791 189,015 20.0 (12.2)
Interest expense, net ................. ... 183,489 191,581 213,300 (4.2) (10.2)
Minority interest in earnings .............. 39,794 37.686 35,997 5.6 47
Early repurchase of debt................. 19,303 37,731 27,692 (48.8) 36.7
Otherexpense .......................... 25,952 27,555 1,050 (5.8) 2,524.3
Loss from continuing operations before

income taxes................. ... (85,191)  (141,762) (88,924) (39.9) 59.4
Income tax expense (benefit) ............ 3,705 32,003 (27,919) (88.4) N/A
Loss from continuing operations.......... $ (88,896) $(173,765) $ (61,005) (48.8) 184.8
Other Data: .
Attendance ............. ... . ...l 33,665 32,092 33,170 4.9% (3.2)%
Per capitarevenue ...................... $ 3237 $ 3112 % 30.37 4.0 2.5

Year ended December 31, 2005 vs. Year ended
December 31, 2004

Revenue. Revenue in 2005 totaled $1,089.7 million
compared to $998.6 million for 2004, representing a
9.1% increase. The increase in the 2005 period results
primarily from a 4.9% increase in attendance, together
with a 4.0% increase in per capita revenue. We believe
the attendance increase was largely the result of our
renewed focus on improving the guest experience, as
well as the new attractions added for 2005, and gener-
ally more favorable weather conditions than in 2004.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses for 2005
increased $33.0 million (7.8%) compared to expenses
for 2004. The increase primarily reflects planned in-
creases in salary and wage and benefit expense
($18.4 miliion) and repair and maintenance expendi-
tures ($3.9 million), as well as an increase in utilities
expense ($3.9 million).

Selling, general and administrative; noncash com-
pensation. Selling, general and administrative ex-
penses in 2005 increased by $11.7 million compared to
comparable expenses for 2004. The increase includes
$9.0 million in severance and other expenses associ-
ated with the December 2005 management change and
a $3.6 million write-off of costs incurred in projects that
new management has determined not to pursue. Ex-
cluding these items, selling, general and administrative

expenses would have decreased by $0.9 million, which
primarily relates to increases in salary and wage ex-
pense ($4.9 million), more than offset by lower adver-
tising expense ($6.7 million).

Noncash compensation in 2005 was $2.8 million, an
increase of $2.2 million compared to 2004. This in-
crease reflects the expense associated with the accel-
eration of restricted stock grants and the lapse of
restrictions on prior awards ($2.0 million). The balance
of the increase reflects the expense associated with
the grant in January 2005 of an aggregate of
65,000 shares of restricted stock to our former Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer pursu-
ant to their employment agreements.

Costs of products sold. Costs of products sold in
2005 increased $11.4 million compared to costs for
2004, reflecting primarily the increase in in-park reve-
nues as well as a $2.0 miilion valuation aliowance for
slow moving inventory. As a percentage of our in-park
sales and excluding the 2005 valuation allowance relat-
ing to slow moving inventory, cost of sales remained
relatively constant for the two years. As a percentage
of theme park food, merchandise and other revenue,
costs of products sold increased to 18.5% (excluding
the slow moving inventory valuation allowance) in 2005
compared to 18.0% in the prior year.




Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization expense for 2005 increased $2.2 million
compared to 2004. The increase compared to the 2004
level was attributable to our on-going capital program.

Interest expense, net of interest income; early re-
purchase of debt. Interest expense, net decreased
$8.1 million compared to 2004, reflecting primarily the
benefit of the lower interest rate convertible notes
issued in November 2004 to refinance other higher
interest rate debt. The 2005 expense for early repur-
chase of debt reflects the redemption in February 2005
of our 2009 Senior Notes. The expense in 2004 for
early repurchase of debt reflects the redemption in
January 2004 of our 2007 Senior Notes and debt
repayments in the 2004 period, including a $75 million
payment on our term loan, from a portion of the pro-
ceeds from the sales of our Ohio park and European
parks in April 2004. See Note 6 to Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements. We have refinanced our
public debt primarily to extend maturities.

Minority interest in earnings. Minority interest in
earnings reflects the third party share of the operations
of the parks that are not wholly-owned by us, Six Flags
Over Georgia (including White Water Atlanta), Six
Flags Over Texas and Six Flags Marine World. The
increase in 2005 reflects improved performance at Six
Flags Marine World compared to the prior-year period
and the annual increase in the distributions to limited
partners of Six Flags Over Georgia and Six Flags Over
Texas. Cash distributions to our partners and joint
venturer were $44.4 million in 2005 and $41.6 million in
2004.

Other expense. Other expense in 2005 decreased
$1.6 million compared to the prior-year period. Other
expense primarily reflects in 2005 the retirement of
assets replaced as part of our 2005 and 2006 capital
program ($15.1 million) and costs incurred in connec-
tion with the consent solicitation ($9.4 million). For
2004, other expense primarily reflects the write-off of
our investment in a Madrid park we had managed prior
to November 2004 and related intangible assets as well
as other associated costs ($15.0 million) and the
retirement of assets replaced as part of our 2005
capital program ($13.2 million).

Income tax expense. Income tax expense was
$3.7 million for 2005 compared to a $32.0 million ex-
pense for 2004. The tax expense was affected by the
valuation allowance applied to our U.S. net deferred
tax assets during both years. The current period allow-
ance was $153.4 million in 2004 and $43.4 million in
2005. See "Critical Accounting Issues” and Note 1
(m) to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2005, we estimated that we had
approximately $1,686.7 million of net operating losses
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(‘NOLs") carryforwards for Federal income tax pur-
poses. The NOLs are subject to review and potential
disallowance by the Internal Revenue Service upon
audit of our Federal income tax returns and those of
our subsidiaries. In addition, the use of NOLs is subject
to limitations on the amount of taxable income that can
be offset with the NOLs. During 2004 and 2005, we
determined that it was no longer likely that all of the
NOLs will be utilized prior to their expiration. See
Note 8 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 vs. Year Ended
December 31, 2003

Revenue. Revenue in 2004 totaled $998.6 million
compared to $1,007.3 million for 2003. The decrease in
2004 resulted from a 3.2% decrease in attendance
offset in part by a 2.5% increase in per capita revenue.
We believe that the attendance decline is largely attrib-
utable to adverse weather in several of our major
markets and the continuing effects of a challenging
economic environment for our target audience.

Operating expenses. Operating expenses for 2004
increased $20.1 million (5.0%) compared to expenses
for 2003. The increase primarily reflects planned in-
creases in salary and wage and fringe benefit expense
(approximately $15.2 million) and repair and mainte-
nance expenditures (approximately $2.1 million) as
part of the implementation of our plan to enhance guest
services generally.

Selling, general and administrative; noncash com-
pensation. Selling, general and administrative ex-
penses for 2004 decreased $2.2 million (1.1%)
compared to comparable expenses for 2003. The de-
crease primarily relates to a reduction in certain insur-
ance expenses (approximately $5.7 million), arising
out of lower premiums and improved loss experiences,
and a reduction in legal and other services (approxi-
mately $1.0 million), offset by a planned increase in
advertising expense ($3.5 million).

The $0.5 million increase in 2004 in non-cash com-
pensation reflects the grant in January 2004 of a total
of 425,000 shares of restricted stock to our former
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to their employment agreements.

Costs of products sold. Costs of products sold in
2004 increased $3.2 million (4.0%) compared to costs
for 2003, reflecting our increased costs for food, mer-
chandise and games inventories, as well as higher
freight costs. As a percentage of theme park food,
merchandise and other revenue, costs of products sold
increased to 18.0% in 2004 compared to 17.5% in the
prior year.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization expense for 2004 increased $5.9 million




(4.3%) compared to 2003. The increase compared to gia (including White Water Atlanta), Six Flags Over

the 2003 level was attributable to our on-going capital Texas and Six Flags Marine World. Cash distributions

program. to our partners and joint venturer were $41.6 million in
2004 and $42.3 million in 2003.

Other expense. The increase in other expense in
2004 primarily reflects both the $15.0 million write-off
of the book value of our investment in the owner of the
Madrid park we managed prior to November 2004, and
related intangible assets as well as other associated
costs (see Note 2 to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements) and the $13.2 million write-off of the re-
maining book value of certain assets replaced as part
of our 2004 and 2005 capital programs or otherwise
determined to no longer be useable in our business.

Interest expense, net of interest income; early re-
purchase of debt.Interest expense, net decreased
$21.7 million (10.2%) compared to 2003, reflecting
primarily lower debt levels. The expense in 2004 for
early repurchase of debt reflects the redemption in
January 2004 of our 2007 Senior Notes from the pro-
ceeds of our 2014 Notes, the repayment of a portion of
our term loan, and the repayment of $248.6 million
principal amount of debt from a portion of the proceeds
of the sale in April 2004 of our Cleveland, Ohio and
European parks and the repurchase of $147.0 million
principal amount of the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes Income tax (expense) benefit. Income tax ex-
prior to year-end from a portion of the proceeds of our pense was $32.0 million for 2004 compared to a benefit
Convertible Note offering. The expense in 2003 reflects  of $27.9 million for 2003. Income tax expense in 2004
the retirement of $401.0 million of our senior discount was adversely affected by the valuation allowance ap-
notes in that year, principally from the proceeds of the plied to our U.S. net deferred tax assets during that
issuance of our 2013 Senior Notes. See Note 6 to period and income tax expense attributable to our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Canadian and Mexican operations. See ‘'— Critical

Accounting Issues’ and Note 1(m) to Notes to Con-

Minority interest in earnings. Minority interest re- solidated Financial Statements.
flects third party share of the operations of the parks
that are not wholly-owned by us, Six Flags Over Geor-

Results of Discontinued Operations

In October 2005, we permanently closed Six Flags AstroWorld in Houston. We have engaged Cushman &
Wakefield to market the 104-acre site. The sale has been approved by our lenders under our credit agreement
{see Note 6(a) to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and we intend to use the proceeds from the sale
to reduce our indebtedness and for other corporate purposes. We are relocating select rides, attractions and
other equipment presently at AstroWorld to our remaining parks for the 2006 and 2007 seasons. Since the
expected net sales proceeds for the property are expected to be less than our carrying value, a $20.4 million
impairment loss related to these assets was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2005. We can not give
any assurances as to the timing of any such sale or the amount of the proceeds therefrom.

On April 8, 2004, we sold substantially all of the assets used in the operation of Six Flags World of Adventure
near Cleveland, Ohio (other than the marine and land animals located at that park and certain assets related
thereto) for a cash purchase price of $144.3 million. In a separate transaction on the same date, we sold all of the
stock of Walibi S.A., our wholly-owned subsidiary that indirectly owned the seven parks we owned in Europe. The
purchase price was approximately $200.0 million, of which Eurc 10.0 million ($12.1 million as of April 8, 2004 )
was received in the form of a nine and one half year note from the buyer and $11.6 million represented the
assumption of certain debt by the buyer, with the balance paid in cash. During February 2006, the note was
repurchased by the buyer for $12.0 million. Net cash proceeds from these transactions were used to pay down
debt and to make investments in our remaining parks. See Note 2 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included herein.

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ('‘SFAS’’) No. 144, *‘Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” our consolidated financial statements have been reclassified for all relevant
periods presented to reflect the operations, assets and liabilities of the parks sold in 2004 as discontinued
operations and for all periods presented to reflect the operations and select assets of AstroWorld as discontinued
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operations. The assets of AstroWorld have been classified as ““Assets held for sale” on the December 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004 consolidated balance sheets and consist of the following:
December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
(In thousands)
Property, plant and equipment, net ...... . ... . . $51,070 $ 73,805
GOOAWIIlL, MEE e 26,530 26,530
Total assets held for sale . ... ... e $77,600 $100,335

Following are components of the net results of discontinued operations, including both AstroWorld and the
parks sold in 2004, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Operating revenUE . ... oo $ 41257 $ 42,389 $229,394
Loss on sale of discontinued operations ............ ... — (310,281) —
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes ................ (1,619) (38,169) (5,925)
Impairment on assets heldforsale ............. ... .. ... ... .. (20,423) — —
Income tax benefit ... ... — (57,406) (5,217)
Net results of discontinued operations ................cooi i, $(22,042) $(291,044) % (708)
Liquidity, Capital Commitments and Resources prior to maturity. The degree to which we are leveraged

could adversely affect our ability to obtain any new
financing or to effect any such refinancing. See ““Cau-

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash generated tionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”
from operations, funds from borrowings and existing Wwith respect to the forward-looking statements contin-
cash on hand. Our principal uses of cash include the ued in this paragraph.

funding of working capital obligations, debt service, - tot) indebtedness, as of December 31, 2005,
mves}mgnts in_parks (mcludln.g'capnal projects and was approximately $2,242.4 million. In addition, as of
acquisitions), preferred stock didends and payments - pecember 31, 2005, an additional $269.3 million was
to our P?rt”ers in the Partnership Parks_. e did not . ailable for borrowing under our credit agreement.
pay a dividend on our commpn stock during .2005’ NOT Based on interest rates at December 31, 2005 for
do we expect to pay one n 2006. we bglleve that, floating rate debt, annual cash interest payments for
based on historical an(_j ant:mpqted operating resullts, 2006 on non-revolving credit debt outstanding at De-
cash flows from operations, gvanlable cash a_nd availa- cember 31, 2005 and anticipated levels of working
ble amounts under our credit agreement will be ade- capital revolving borrowings for the year will aggregate

qugtg to meet our future quUiditY needg, includ[ng approximately $180.9 million. None of our public debt
anticipated requirements for working capital, capital matures prior to February 2010 and none of the facili-

expendltutres, ZChgquI?.d debt gnd preferred SEOCK Iri- fies under our credit agreement matures before
quirements and obligations under arrangements relat- ;o 30, 2008. In addition, the annual dividend require-

ing tolthe Parct)nership Parkz,ffct)r atr Ie?ds'i the hnext ments on our outstanding preferred stock total approx-
several years. Our current and future liqui 1y 1S, ow- imately $20.8 million, which we can, at our option, pay
ever, grea“Y dependent upon our opera_tlng re;_ults, either in cash or shares of our common stock. We are
which are driven largely by overall economic pondltlons required to redeem all of our outstanding preferred
ast wtel! as Eche valge and percelveclj( qughtyliof _ctﬁ(e stock on August 15, 2009 (to the extent not previously
en e;cr' alnlmenb expznencei at f(;urtp:r ; urf 'qui t;Iy converted into shares of our common stock) for cash
could - also . © adversely aflecte y untavorable . 100% of the liquidation preference {$287.5 million),
weather, accidents or the occurrence of an event or plus accrued and unpaid dividends. We plan on spend-
condition, including terrorist acts or threats, negative ing approximately $140 million on capital expenditures

p.ubliigity gr sigdnificant I%calttcogwpetitive dev«:r?ts,fthat for the 2006 season. At December 31, 2005, we had
significantly recduces paid atiendance and, thereiore, approximately $81.5 million of cash and cash

{;Vin;e ?t an}’/ ?f (;;]ththeme parks..Sr:ate BL(JjSltness—k equivalents and $259.3 million available under our
isk Factors.” In that case, we might need to seek . o agreement.

additional financing. In addition, we expect to refinance
all or a significant portion of our existing debt on or

General
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Due to the seasonal nature of our business, we are
largely dependent upon the $300.0 million working
capital revolving credit portion of our credit agreement
in order to fund off-season expenses. Qur ability to
borrow under the working capital revolver is dependent
upon compliance with certain conditions, including fi-
nancial ratios and the absence of any material adverse
change. If we were to become unable to borrow under
the facility, we would likely be unable to pay our off-
season obligations in full and may be unable to meet
our repurchase obligations (if any) in respect of repur-
chases of partnership units in the partnership parks.
The working capital facility expires in June 2008. The
terms and availability of our credit agreement and other
indebtedness would not be affected by a change in the
ratings issued by rating agencies in respect of our
indebtedness.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, net cash
provided by operating activities was $121.3 million.
Since our business is both seasonal and involves sig-
nificant levels of cash transactions, factors impacting
our net operating cash flows are the same as those
impacting our cash-based revenues and expenses dis-
cussed above. Net cash used in investing activities in
2005 was $37.1 million, consisting primarily of capital
expenditures, offset by maturities of restricted-use in-
vestments (representing the net proceeds from our
November 2004 offering of the Convertible Notes,
which had been held in escrow to fund a portion of the
redemption in February 2005 of the 2009 Senior
Notes). Net cash used in financing activities in 2005
was $72.3 million, representing primarily the proceeds
of the January 2005 issuance of $195.0 million principal
amount of additional 2014 Senior Notes and
$377.5 million in borrowings under the revolving credit
portion of our credit facility and the separate working
capital facilities of the Partnership Parks, offset by the
payment of $617.5 million for the repayment of debt
and the payment of preferred stock dividends as well
as debt issuance costs.

Long-term debt and preferred stock

Our debt at December 31, 2005 included
$1,489.5 million of fixed-rate senior notes, with stag-
gered maturities ranging from 2010 to 2015, $645.2 mil-
lion under the term loan portion of our credit agreement
and $107.7 million of other indebtedness, including
$100.0 million under the working capital facility under
our credit agreement and $6.5 million of indebtedness
at Six Flags Over Texas and Six Flags Over Georgia.
Except in certain circumstances, the public debt instru-
ments do not require principal payments prior to matur-
ity. Our credit agreement includes a $655.0 million term
loan ($645.2 million of which was outstanding at De-
cember 31, 2005); a $100.0 million multicurrency re-
ducing revolver facility none of which was outstanding
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at December 31, 2004, excluding outstanding letters of
credit) and a $300.0 million working capital revolver
{$100.0 million of which was outstanding at that date}).
The working capital facility must be repaid in full for 30
consecutive days during the five month period from
June 1 through November 1 of each year and termi-
nates on June 30, 2008. The muiticurrency reducing
revolving facility, which permits optional prepayments
and reborrowings, requires quarterly mandatory reduc-
tions in the initial commitment (together with repay-
ments, to the extent that the outstanding borrowings
thereunder would exceed the reduced commitment) of
2.5% of the committed amount thereof commencing on
December 31, 2004, 5.0% commencing on March 31,
2006, 7.5% commencing on March 31, 2007 and
18.75% commencing on March 31, 2008 and this facility
terminates on June 30, 2008. As a result, availability
under this facility as of December 31, 2005 was
$87.5 million. The term loan facility requires quarterly
repayments of 0.25% of the outstanding amount
thereof commencing on September 30, 2004 and
24.0% commencing on September 30, 2008. The term
foan matures on June 30, 2009. Under the credit agree-
ment, the maturity of the term loan will be shortened to
December 31, 2008 if prior to such date our outstand-
ing preferred stock is not redeemed or converted into
common stock. All of our outstanding preferred stock
($287.5 million liquidation preference} must be re-
deemed on August 15, 2009 (to the extent not previ-
ously converted into common stock). See Notes 6 and
9 to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included herein for additional information regarding our
indebtedness and preferred stock.

Partnership Park Obligations

As more fully described in "'Business — Partnership
Park Arrangements” in connection with our 1998 ac-
quisition of the former Six Flags, we guaranteed certain
obligations relating to Six Flags Over Georgia and Six
Flags Over Texas. These obligations continue until
2027, in the case of the Georgia park, and 2028, in the
case of the Texas park. Among such obligations are
(i) minimum annual distributions (including rent) of
approximately $56.8 million in 2006 (subject to cost of
living adjustments in subsequent years) to partners in
these two Partnerships Parks (of which we will be
entitled to receive in 2006 approximately $18.5 million
based on our present ownership of 25.3% of the Geor-
gia partnership units and 37.6% of the Texas partner-
ship units), (ii) minimum capital expenditures at each
park during rolling five-year periods based generaily on
6% of park revenues, and (iii) an annual offer to
purchase a maximum number of 5% per year (accumu-
lating to the extent not purchased in any given year) of
limited partnership units at specified prices.




We plan to make approximately $28.0 million of
capital expenditures at these parks for the 2006 sea-
son, an amount in excess of the minimum cumulative
required expenditure. We were not required to
purchase any units in the 2005 offer to purchase.
Because we have not been required since 1998 to
purchase a material amount of units, our maximum unit
purchase obligation for both parks in 2006 is an aggre-
gate of approximately $246.6 million, representing ap-
proximately 45.0% of the outstanding units of the
Georgia park and 36.1% of the outstanding units of the
Texas park. The annual unit purchase obligation (with-
out taking into account accumulation from prior years)
aggregates approximately $31.1 million for both parks
based on current purchase prices. As we purchase

additional units, we are entitled to a proportionate
increase in our share of the minimum annual
distributions.

Cash flows from operations at these Partnership
Parks will be used to satisfy the annual distribution and
capital expenditure requirements, before any funds are
required from us. The two partnerships generated ap-
proximately $45.9 million of aggregate net cash pro-
vided by operating activities in 2005 (net of advances
from the general partner). At December 31, 2005, we
had total loans outstanding of $142.7 million to the
partnerships that own these parks, primarily to fund the
acquisition of Six Flags White Water Atlanta and to
make capital improvements.

Off-balance sheet arrangements and aggregate contractual obligations

We have guaranteed the payment of a $31.0 million construction term loan incurred by HWP Development LLC
(a joint venture in which we own a 41% interest) for the purpose of financing the construction and development
of a hotel and indoor water park project located adjacent to our Great Escape park near Lake George, New York,
which opened in February 2006. We have not yet received any revenues from the joint venture but had advanced
the joint venture approximately $1.9 million at December 31, 2005. We acquired our interest in the joint venture
through a contribution of land and a restaurant, valued at $5.0 million

Our guarantee will be released upon full payment and discharge of the loan, which matures on December 17,
2009. As security for the guarantee, we have provided an $8.0 million letter of credit. At December 31, 2005,
approximately $25.7 million was outstanding under the construction term loan. In the event we are required to
fund amounts under the guarantee, our joint venture partners either must reimburse us for their respective pro
rata share (based on their percentage interests in the venture) or their interests in the joint venture will be diluted
or, in certain cases, forfeited. We have entered into a management agreement to manage and operate the project
upon its completion. We do not believe our guarantee of the loan is material to our liquidity or capital resources.
As of December 31, 2005, we were not involved in any other off-balance sheet arrangements.

Set forth below is certain information regarding our debt, preferred stock and lease obligations at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Payment Due by Period

2013 and
Contractual Obligations 2006 2007-2009 2010-2012 beyond Total
Long term debt'™ ... ... .. ... ... L. $ 10,101 $639,223 $300,300 $1,190,650 $2,140,274
PIERS® . . — 287,500 — — 287,500
Real estate and operating leases® ... ... .. 10,525 28,450 27,366 206,817 273,158
Purchase Obligations® ... .. ................ 157,216 11,250 11,250 — 179,716
Total ... $177,842 $966,423 $338,916 $1,397,467  $2 880,648

(1) Includes capital lease obligations. Payments are shown at principal amount. Payments shown do not include interest
payments or principal payments on our working capital revolver. The $300.0 million working capital revolver must be
repaid in full for 30 consecutive days during the five month period from June 1 through November 1 of each year. Interest
paid on the borrowings under the revolver for 2005 was $5.3 million.

(2) Amount shown excludes annual dividends of approximately $20.8 million, which we are permitted to pay in either cash or
common stock. The amount shown for the 2009 cash redemption obligations assumes no conversion of PIERS prior
thereto.

(3) Assumes for lease payments based on a percentage of revenues, future payments at 2005 revenue levels. Also does not
give effect to cost of living adjustments. Obligations not denominated in U.S. Dollars have been converted based on the
exchange rates existing on December 31, 2005.

Represents obligations at December 31, 2005 with respect to insurance, inventory, media and advertising commitments,
computer systems and hardware, estimated license fees to Warner Bros. (through 2012) and new rides and attractions.
Of the amount shown for 2006, approximately $109.6 million represents capital items. The amounts in respect of new
rides and attractions were computed at January 9, 2006 and include estimates by us of costs needed to complete such
improvements that, in certain cases, were not legally committed at that date. Amounts shown do not include obligations

(4)
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to employees that can not be quantified at December 31, 2005 which are discussed below. Amounts shown also do not
include purchase obligations existing at the individual park-level for supplies and other miscellaneous items since such
amount was not readily available. None of the park-level obligations is individually material.

Included under “purchase obligations’’ above are
commitments for license fees to Warner Bros. and
commitments relating to capital expenditures. License
fees to Warner Bros. for our domestic parks are paya-
ble based upon the number of domestic parks utilizing
the licensed characters. The license fee for 2005 was
$4.0 million. In addition to the licensee fee, we also pay
a royalty fee on merchandise sold using the licensed
characters, generally equal to 12% of the cost of the
merchandise.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, we made contributions to our defined benefit
pension plan of $9.4 million, $3.1 million and $3.3 mil-
lion, respectively. In February 2006, we announced we
were ‘‘freezing’’ our pension plan, pursuant to which
participants will no longer continue to earn future pen-
sion benefits. Including the effects of this freeze, we
expect to make contributions of approximately
$6.5 million in 2006 in respect to our pension plans and
$4.2 million in 2006 to our 401(k) plan. The 401 (k)
plan contribution reflects the effects of planned en-
hancements to our 401(k) plan. Our estimated ex-
pense for employee health insurance for 2006 is
$16.0 million. See Note 10 to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Although we are contractually committed to make
approximately $13 million of capital expenditures at
one park over the next two years, the vast majority of
our capital expenditures in 2006 and beyond will be
made on a discretionary basis. We plan on spending
approximately $140 million on capital expenditures for
the 2006 season.

During the three years ended December 31, 2003,
insurance premiums and self-insurance retention levels
increased substantially. However, as compared to the
policies expiring in 2004 and 2005, our current policies,
which expire in December 2006, cover substantially the
same risks (neither property insurance policy covered
terrorist activities), do not require higher aggregate
premiums and do not have substantially larger self-
insurance retentions. We cannot predict the level of the
premiums that we may be required to pay for subse-
quent insurance coverage, the level of any self-insur-
ance retention applicable thereto, the level of
aggregate coverage available or the availability of cov-
erage for specific risks, such as terrorism.

Red Zone LLC has requested that we reimburse Red
Zone for the expenses it incurred in connection with its
consent solicitation. Our Board of Directors has autho-
rized us to reiumburse Red Zone for certain of its
expenses, subject to the Audit Committee’s review of
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the expenses and its determination that the expenses
were reasonable and subject further to approval of the
reimbursement by our shareholders at our 2006 annual
meeting. Red Zone has requested reimbursement for
expenses that include financial advisory fees, legal
fees, travel and other out of pocket expenses and
compensation and signing bonuses paid by Red Zone
to Mr. Shapiro and additional individuals who have
become our employees. The Audit Committee has re-
tained independent counsel to assist it in its review of
the expenses. As of the date of this Annual Report, the
Audit Committee has not completed its review.

We may from time to time seek to retire our out-
standing debt through cash purchases and/or ex-
changes for equity securities, in open market
purchases, privately negotiated transactions or other-
wise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will de-
pend on the prevailing market conditions, our liquidity
requirements, contractual restrictions and other fac-
tors. The amounts involved may be material.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the ordinary course of business, we make a num-
ber of estimates and assumptions relating to the re-
porting of results of operations and financial condition
in the preparation of our consolidated financial state-
ments in conformity with U.S. generally accepted ac-
counting principles. Results could differ significantly
from those estimates under different assumptions and
conditions. We believe that the following discussion
addresses our critical accounting policies, which are
those that are most important to the portrayal of our
consolidated financial condition and results and require
management’'s most difficult, subjective and complex
judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost and is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of those assets. Changes in circumstances
such as technological advances, changes to our busi-
ness model or changes in our capital strategy could
result in the actual useful lives differing from our esti-
mates. In those cases in which we determine that the
useful life of property and equipment should be short-
ened, we depreciate the remaining net book value in
excess of the salvage value over the revised remaining
useful life, thereby increasing depreciation expense
evenly through the remaining expected life.




Accounting for income taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated
financial statements, we are required to estimate our
income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we
operate. This process involves us estimating our actual
current tax exposure together with assessing tempo-
rary differences resulting from differing treatment of
items, such as differing depreciation periods for our
property and equipment and deferred revenue, for tax
and financial accounting purposes. These differences
result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are
included within our consolidated balance sheet. We
must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax
assets (principally net operating loss carryforwards)
will be recovered from future taxable income. To the
extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must
establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we es-
tablish a valuation aliowance or increase this allowance
in a period, we must include an expense within the tax
provision in the consolidated statements of operations.

Significant management judgment is required in de-
termining our provision or benefit for income taxes, our
deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation
allowance recorded against our net deferred tax as-
sets. We have recorded a current period valuation
allowance of $153.4 million for December 31, 2004 and
$43.4 million for December 31, 2005, due to uncertain-
ties related to our ability to utilize some of our deferred
tax assets, primarily consisting of certain net operating
loss carryforwards and tax credits, before they expire.
The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of
taxable income by jurisdiction in which we operate and
the period over which our deferred tax assets will be
recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from
these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future
periods, we may need to establish an additional valua-
tion allowance which could materially impact our con-
solidated financial position and results of operations.

The variables that will impact whether our deferred
tax assets will be utilized prior to their expiration in-
clude attendance, capital expenditures, interest rates,
labor and insurance expenses, and changes in state or
federal tax laws. In determining the valuation allowance
we do not consider, and under generally accepted
accounting principles cannot consider, the possible
changes in state or federal tax laws until the laws
change. We reduced our level of capital expenditures in
2004 and, although we invested — and will invest at
higher levels in 2005 and 2006, we may invest thereaf-
ter at lower levels than had been the case in prior
years. To the extent we reduce capital expenditures,
our future accelerated tax deductions for our rides and
equipment will be reduced, and our interest expense
deductions would decrease as the debt balances are
reduced by cash flow that previously would have been
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utilized for capital expenditures. Increases in capital
expenditures without corresponding increases in net
revenues would reduce short-term taxable income and
increase ‘the likelihood of additional valuation al-
lowances being required as net operating loss carryfor-
wards expire prior to their utilization. Conversely,
increases in revenues in excess of operating expenses
would reduce the likelihood of additional valuation al-
lowances being required as the short-term taxable
income would increase and we may be able to utilize
net operating loss carryforwards prior to their expira-
tion. See Note 1{m) to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Valuation of long-lived and intangible assets and
goodwill

Long-lived assets were $3,135.0 million including
goodwill and other intangible assets of $1,207.4 million
as of December 31, 2005. Long-lived assets included
property and equipment and intangible assets.

In 2002, Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards (“SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangi-
ble Assets” became effective and as a result, as of
January 1, 2002, we ceased amortizing approximately
$1.2 billion of goodwill. In lieu of amortization, we were
required to perform an initial impairment review of our
goodwill in 2002 and are required to perform an annual
impairment review thereafter, which we do as of the
end of each year and more frequently upon the occur-
rence of certain events. To accomplish this, we identi-
fied our reporting units (North America and Europe)
and determined the carrying vaiue of each reporting
unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the
existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those report-
ing units as of January 1, 2002. We then determined
the fair value of each reporting unit, compared it to the
carrying amount of the reporting unit and compared the
implied fair vatue of the reporting unit goodwill with the
carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill, both of
which were measured as of the date of adoption. The
implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocat-
ing the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the
assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities
of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase
price aliocation. The residual fair value after this alloca-
tion is the implied fair value of the reporting unit good-
will. Based on the foregoing, we determined that
$61.1 million of goodwill associated with our European
reporting unit was impaired and, during 2002, we rec-
ognized a transitional impairment loss in that amount
as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle in our consolidated statements of operations.
For subsequent years we determined the fair value of
our North American assets by using the discounted
cash flow method, that is, we estimated annual cash
flows applicable to our North American unit (after



deducting estimated capital expenditures), applied an
estimated valuation multiple to a terminal cash flow
amount, and discounted the result by an amount equal
to our cost of capital. Based on the foregoing, no
impairment was required for 2004 or 2005. Our unam-
ortized goodwill is $1,191.6 million at December 31,
2005. See Note 1(i) to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As described above, we evaluate the carrying value
of our long-lived assets using a discounted cash flow
analysis that combines current net results (on a cash
basis) and expected future results with the expected
levels of future capital expenditures and then discounts
the results, giving effect to the stock price multiple for
the industry over a period of time. If revenues decrease
without a corresponding decrease in operating ex-
penses and capital expenditures, this would increase
the likelihood of goodwill impairment. If valuations re-
flected in stock prices or theme park acquisitions de-
crease over time, this would also increase the
likelihood of goodwill impairment. If revenues increase
faster than operating expenses and capital expendi-
tures, this would decrease the likelihood of goodwill
impairment.

Market Risks and Sensitivity Analyses

Like other global companies, we are exposed to
market risks relating to fluctuations in interest rates
and currency exchange rates. The objective of our
financial risk management is to minimize the negative
impact of interest rate and foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations on our operations, cash flows and
equity. We do not acquire market risk sensitive instru-
ments for trading purposes.

We were party to three interest rate swap agree-
ments that for the term of the applicable agreements
(ranging from March 2005 to June 2005) effectively
converted $600.0 million of our $655.0 million term loan
into a fixed rate obligation. Our term loan borrowings
bear interest at 2,50% above the LIBOR rate. Our
interest rate swap agreements effectively “lock-in’' the
LIBOR component at rates ranging from 2.065% to
3.50% and average 3.01%. Interest rate swap agree-
ments continue in effect for approximately $3.0 million
of debt of the Partnership Parks.

Interest Rate and Debt Sensitivity Analysis

The following analysis presents the sensitivity of the
market value, operations and cash flows of our market-
risk financial instruments to hypothetical changes in
interest rates as if these changes occurred at Decem-
ber 31, 2005. The range of changes chosen for this
analysis reflect our view of changes which are reason-
ably possible over a one-year period. Market values
are the present values of projected future cash flows
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based on the interest rate assumptions. These forward
looking disclosures are selective in nature and only
address the potential impacts from financial instru-
ments. They do not include other potential effects
which could impact our business as a result of these
changes in interest and exchange rates.

At December 31, 2005, we had total debt of
$2,242.4 million, of which $1,490.7 million represents
fixed-rate debt and the balance represented floating-
rate debt. Of the floating-rate debt, $3.0 million princi-
pal amount is subject to interest rate swap agree-
ments. For fixed-rate debt, interest rate changes affect
the fair market value but do not impact book value,
operations or cash flows. Conversely, for floating-rate
debt, interest rate changes generally do not affect the
fair market value but do impact future operations and
cash flows, assuming other factors remain constant.

Additionally, increases and decreases in interest
rates impact the fair value of the interest rate swap
agreements. A decrease in thirty and ninety-day LIBOR
interest rates increases the fair value liability of the
interest rate swap agreements. However, over the term
of the interest rate swap agreements, the economic
effect of changes in interest rates is fixed as we will
pay a fixed amount and are not subject to changes in
interest rates.

Assuming other variables remain constant (such as
foreign exchange rates and debt levels), after giving
effect to our interest rate swap agreements and as-
suming an average annual balance on our working
capital revolver, the pre-tax operations and cash flows
impact resulting from a one percentage point increase
in interest rates would be less than $7.5 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB published FASB State-
ment No. 123 (revised 2004), ““Share-Based Pay-
ment.”” Statement 123(R) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in financial statements.
That cost will be measured based on the fair value of
the equity or liability instruments issued. As a larger
public entity, we were required to apply State-
ment 123(R) as of the first annual reporting period that
begins after June 15, 2005, which was the first quarter
of 2006. Statement 123(R) covers a wide range of
share-based compensation arrangements including
share options, restricted share plans, performance-
based awards, share appreciation rlghts and em-
ployee share purchase plans.

Statement 123(R) replaced FASB Statement
No. 123, '‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” and superceded APB Opinion No. 25, “Account-
ing for Stock Issued to Employees.” Statement 123, as




originally issued in 1995, established as preferable a
fair-value-based method of accounting for share based
payment transactions with employees. However, that
Statement permitted entities the option of continuing to
apply the guidance in Opinion 25, as long as the
footnotes to financial statements disclosed what net
income would have been had the preferable fair-value-
based method been used. As allowed, we have histori-
cally accounted for stock options using the accounting
principles of Opinion 25. The impact of adopting the
provisions of Statement 123 (R) will be to increase our
noncash compensation expense in future periods. As
disclosed in the notes to our consolidated financial
statements, using the Black-Scholes method of deter-
mining fair value in the past would have increased our
noncash compensation expense by approximately
$2.2 million in 2004 and approximately $5.1 million in
2005. During 2006, we have granted options to
purchase 2,100,000 shares of common stock to certain
executives, options to purchase 660,000 shares of
common stock to directors and 725,000 shares of
restricted stock to certain executives. We currently
estimate that these grants, coupled with prior grants,
will result in stock-based compensation expense of
approximately $8.2 million in 2006. There was no cu-
mulative effect of change in accounting principle upon
adoption of the Statement. The provisions of the instru-
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ments governing our credit facilities and outstanding
notes do not include noncash compensation expenses
in the determination of financial covenants. As a result,
the effects of the adoption of Statement 123(R) will
not have a significant impact on our financial condition
Or resources.

In March 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47 — Account-
ing for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
(“FIN 477). FIN 47 requires an entity to recognize a
liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retire-
ment obligation if the fair value of that liability can be
reasonably estimated. We have reviewed our obliga-
tions with respect to the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets. Certain of those obligations arise out of
leases and others relate to obligations that would arise
in the event we determined to demolish, sell or aban-
don property that we own. We have concluded that the
former obligations are immaterial and that the fair value
of the latter obligations can not be reasonably esti-
mated. Accordingly, the adption of FIN 47 did not resulit
in any impact on our resuits of operations or financial
position for the year ended December 31, 2005 and we
do not expect the adoption to have a material impact
on future results of operations, financial position or
liquidity.



MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

Our management’'s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated
in their report which is included herein.

/s/ Mark Shapiro

Mark Shapiro
Chief Executive Officer
of the Company

/s! James F. Dannhauser
James F. Dannhauser
Chief Financial Officer
of the Company

March 14, 2006

EBITDA DEFINITION AND RECONCILIATION

EBITDA (Modified), a non-GAAP measure, is defined as net loss before discontinued operations, income tax
expense (benefit), other expense, early repurchase of debt (formerly an extraordinary loss), minority interest in
earnings (losses), interest expense (net), amortization, depreciation and non-cash compensation. Adjusted
EBITDA, also a non-GAAP measure, is defined as EBITDA (Modified) minus the interest of third parties in
EBITDA of the four parks that are less than wholly owned. The Company believes that EBITDA (Modified) and
Adjusted EBITDA (collectively, the "EBITDA-Based Measures’') provide useful information to investors regard-
ing the Company’s operating performance and its capacity to incur and service debt and fund capital expendi-
tures. The Company believes that the EBITDA-Based Measures are used by many investors, equity analysts and
rating agencies as a measure of performance. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA is approximately equal to
“Consolidated Cash Flow’’ as defined in the indentures relating to the Company’s senior notes. Neither of the
EBITDA-Based Measures is defined by GAAP and neither should be considered in isolation or as an alternative to
net income (loss), income (loss) from continuing operations, net cash provided by (used in) operating,
investing and financing activities or other financial data prepared in accordance with GAAP or as an indicator of
the Company’s operating performance. EBITDA (Modified) and Adjusted EBITDA as defined in this release may
differ from similarly titled measures presented by other companies.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of net loss to EBITDA (Modified) and Adjusted EBITDA for the
periods shown (in thousands).

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Nt 0SS .. oo $(110,938) $(464,809)
Discontinued operations, net of tax benefit ...... ... ... ... ... ... . ... 22,042 291,044
Income tax expense (benefit) ... ... 3,705 32,003
O her BXPEN S . Lot 25,952 27,555
Early repurchase of debt. ... ... .. 19,303 37,731
Minority interest in earnings (I0SSES) .. ... i 39,794 37,686
Interest expense (Net) ... .. e 183,489 191,581
AMONiZatioN ... e e 889 1,193
Depreciation ... ... . 144,484 141,967
Non-cash compensation . ... ... ... . e 2,794 643
EBITDA (Modified) ... .. i et et e e 331,514 296,594
Third party interest in EBITDA of certain parks ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... (44,674) (43,042)
Adjusted EBITDA . . ... e $ 286,840 $ 253,552

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA before giving effect to
the reclassification of Six Flags AstroWorld as a discontinued operation and to expenses directly associated with
the senior management and corporate strategy changes.

Years Ended
December 31,

2005 2004
Adjusted EBITDA . ... $286,840 $253,552
AstroWorld EBIT DA . . ... e 7,801 5,044
Management change operating exXpenses ...ttt 12,605 —
Adjusted EBITDA . ... $307,246 $258,596
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Six Flags, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting that Six Flags, Inc. and subsidiaries {the Company) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum-
stances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainte-
nance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasconable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financiat statements in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’'s assessment that Six Flags, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Six Flags, inc. and
subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Six Flags, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consclidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and other comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMe LP

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
March 14, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Six Flags, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Six Flags, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Six Flags, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of Six Flags, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0), and our report dated March 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s
assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPMes LIP

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
March 14, 2006
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SIX FLAGS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... . e
Accounts receivable . ... . e
L8 3Z=] o1 o [ O
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ........ .. .. ... . e
Restricted-use investment securities . ... ... ... . e

Total current @sSets .. ...
Other assets:
DEbl ISSUANCE COSIS . . . o e

Total other @ssets . . ... .. e
Property and equipment, at cost. ... ...
Less accumulated depreciation . ... ... e

Total property and equipment ...
Assets held forsale .............. e e e e
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization.......... ... ... ... .. ..o .

Total @SSeES ... e

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... e
Accrued compensation, payroll taxes, and benefits .................. .. ... ...,
ACCrUB INSUFANCE . . . .t tie e  a
Accrued interest payable ... ... e
Other accrued liabilities . .. ...
Deferred iINCoOmMe . ... e
Debt called for prepayment ... .. .. e
Current portion of long-term debt ......... ... ... e

Total current liabilities . ... . . e
LONg-term debt ... . e
Minority INterest. . o
Other long-term liabilities .. ... ... . .
Deferred inCOMEe taXeS .. ... .. e
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock (redemption value of $287,500,000) .........
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock of $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; 11,500 issued and
OULSTANAING . . . . e

Common stock of $.025 par vaiue, 210,000,000 shares authorized and 93,201,528
and 93,041,528 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004, respectively .. ..
Capital in excess of par value . ... ... ... .. i
Accumulated deficit . ... . .
Deferred compensation ... ... i e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) ...... ... ... . i

Total stockholders’ equity.......... ... ...
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ........... ... ... ... ... ... ...

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2005

2004

$ 81,534,000

$ 68,807,000

51,308,000 22,438,000
27,933,000 27,832,000
39,187,000 37,013,000
— 134,508,000
199,962,000 290,598,000
43,897,000 50,347,000
36,640,000 46,528,000
80,537,000 96,875,000
2,866,345,000 2,760,898,000
938,754,000 814,665,000
1,927,591,000 1,946,233,000
77,600,000 100,335,000
1,207,429,000 1,208,186,000
$3,493,119,000 §3,642,227,000

$ 31,101,000

$ 25,817,000

17,101,000 8,652,000
32,826,000 22,830,000
34,022,000 37,812,000
36,630,000 42,583,000
7,289,000 9,392,000
— 123,068,000
113,601,000 24,394,000
272,570,000 294,548,000
2,128,756,000  2,125,121,000
56,277,000 60,911,000
43,592,000 38,846,000
14,345,000 14,491,000
283,371,000 282,245,000
2,330,000 2,326,000
1,751,777,000  1,750,766,000
(1,042,042,000)  (909,134,000)
(852,000) (2,709,000)
(17,005,000) (15,184,000)
694,208,000 826,065,000
$3,493,119,000  $3,642,227,000




SIX FLAGS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Revenue:
Theme park admissions ............................. $ 587,959,000 $ 534,056,000 $ 548,584,000
Theme park food, merchandise and other............. 501,723,000 464,534,000 458,692,000
Totalrevenue............ ... .. ... i 1,089,682,000 998,590,000 1,007,276,000
Operating costs and expenses:
Operating expenses. ..., 454,683,000 421,649,000 401,592,000
Selling, general and administrative ................... 208,521,000 196,792,000 198,989,000
Noncash compensation (primarily selling, general and
administrative) ......... ... ... L . 2,794,000 643,000 101,000
Costsof products sold .............................. 94,964,000 83,555,000 80,307,000
Depreciation. ............. o 144,484,000 141,967,000 136,101,000
Amortization........ ... . e 889,000 1,193,000 1,171,000
Total operating costs and expenses............ 906,335,000 845,799,000 818,261,000
Income from operations ....................... 183,347,000 152,791,000 189,015,000

Other income (expense):

Interestexpense........ ... ... . i, (186,012,000)

(195,674,000)

(215,228,000)

Interestincome ......... .. ..., 2,523,000 4,093,000 1,928,000
Minority interestinearnings ............... ... ... ..., (39,794,000) {37,686,000) (85,997,000)
Early repurchase of debt ......... e {19,303,000) (37,731,000) (27,592,000)
Otherexpense........ ... ..., (25,952,000) (27,555,000) {1,050,000)
Total other income (expense) ................. (268,538,000) (294,553,000) (277,939,000)

Loss from continuing operations before income
taxes ... (85,191,000) (141,762,000) (88,924,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) .......... ... .. ... L. 3,705,000 32,003,000 (27,919,000)
Loss from continuing operations ............... (88.896,000) (173,765,000) (61,005,000)

Discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of

$57,406,000 in 2004 and $5,217,000 in 2003 .......... (22,042,000) (291,044,000) (708,000)

NetloSS. ..o $ (110,938,000)

$(464,809,000)

{61,713,000)

Net loss applicable to common stock . .......... $ (132,908,000)

$(486,777,000)

(83,683,000)

Net loss per average common share outstanding — basic
and diluted:

Loss from continuing operations ................. $ (1.19) (2.10) (0.90)
Discontinued operations ......................... (0.24) (3.13) —
NetlosS. . $ (1.43) (5.23) {0.90)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — basic and diluted ..................... 93,110,000 93,036,000 92,617,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balances at December 31, 2002 ..
Stock option compensation
Netloss ............... ... ...,

Other comprehensive income
(loss) —

Foreign currency translation
adjustment....................
Additional minimum liability on

defined benefit retirement
plan, net of tax

Cash flow hedging derivatives,
net of tax

Comprehensive income (loss) ...
Preferred stock dividends

Balances at December 31, 2003 ..
Issuance of common stock.......

Amortization of deferred
compensation.................

Stock option compensation
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss —

Foreign currency transiation
adjustment..................

Additional minimum liability on
defined benefit retirement
plan

Cash flow hedging derivatives ..

Comprehensive loss

Preterred stock dividends

Balances at December 31, 2004 ..
Issuance of common stock.......

Amortization of deferred
compensation

Netloss ........................
Other comprehensive loss — .. ..

Foreign currency translation
adjustment. ... ... ....... ..

Additional minimum liability on
defined benefit retirement
plan, netoftax..............

Cash flow hedging derivatives,

Comprehensive loss

Preferred stock dividends

Balances at December 31, 2005 ..

SIX FLAGS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated

Preferred Other
Stock Common Stock Capital in Comprehensive
Shares Shares Excess of Accumulated Deferred Income
Issued Amount Issued Amount Par Value Deficit Compensation (Loss) Total

—  $— 92,616,528 $2,315,000 $1,747,324,000 $ (338,674,000) $ —  $(51,273,000) $1,359,692,000
— — — 101,000 — — — 101,000
— — — —_ — (61,713,000) - — (61,713,000)
— — — —_ —_ — — 78,868,000 78,868,000
— — — — — —_ — 2,928,000 2,928,000
— - — — — — — 4,144,000 4,144,000
24,227,000
— = — — — (21,870,000) — (21,970,000)
— — 92616528 2,315,000 1,747,425,000 (422,357,000) — 34,667,000 1,362,050,000
— — 425,000 11,000 3,240,000 —  (3,251,000) — —
— — — — — — 542,000 — 542,000
— — — — 101,000 — — — 101,000
— — — — — (464,809,000) — — {464,809,000)
— — — — — — — (55,612,000) (55,612,000)
— — — — — — — (877,000) (877,000)
= = — — — — — 6,638,000 6,638,000
(514,660,000)
— — — — — (21,968,000) — — (21,968,000)
— — 93,041,528 2,326,000 1,750,766,000 (909,134,000) (2,709,000) (15,184,000) 826,065,000
— — 160,000 4,000 1,011,000 — (937,000) — 78,000
— — — — — — 2,794,000 — 2,794,000
— — — — {110,938,000) — — {110,938,000)
— — — — — —_ — 5,306,000 5,306,000
— — — —_ — —_ — (7,282,000) (7,282,000}
— — —_ — — — 155,000 ___LOOO
(112,759,000}
— . — — — (21,970,000) — - (21,870,000)
— $— 93,201,528 $2,330,000 $1,751,777,000 $(1,042,042,000) $ (852,000) $(17,005,000) $ 694,208,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SIX FLAGS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net 0SS . .o e $ (110,938,000) $ (464,809,000) $ (61,713,000)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization........................... 145,373,000 143,160,000 137,272,000
Minority interestin earnings................... ..., 39,794,000 37,686,000 35,997,000
Partnership and joint venture distributions................ (44,428,000) (41,568,000) (42,326,000)
Noncash compensation.................... ... oi... 2,794,000 643,000 101,000
Interest accretion on notes payable...................... 259,000 496,000 10,205,000
Early repurchase of debt ........... ... ... ... ... ... 19,303,000 37,731,000 27,592,000
Loss on discontinued operations .. ................. ... 25,485,000 264,902,000 51,529,000
Amortization of debt issuancecosts ..................... 8,204,000 8,117,000 8,400,000
Other including loss on disposal of assets ............... 15,340,000 27,997,000 2,016,000
Decrease in accounts receivable ...................... .. 4,174,000 5,540,000 1,724,000
(Increase) decrease in inventories, prepaid expenses and

other currentassets................... ... ... ..., (2,971,000) (9,976,000) 10,035,000
(Increase) decrease in deposits and other assets ........ 9,890,000 (10,030,000) 6,284,000
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, deferred

income, accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities 12,683,000 15,084,000 (626,000)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable . ........ (3,790,000) (10,034,000) 9,754,000
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) .................. 152,000 28,260,000 (31,050,000)

Total adjustments . ........ .. ... i 232,262,000 498,008,000 226,907,000

Net cash provided by operating activities............... 121,324,000 33,199,000 165,194,000

Cash fiow from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment

(171,245,000)

{105,865,000)

(99,099,000)

Purchase of identifiable intangible assets .................... — (500,000) (1,186,000)
Capital expenditures of discontinued operations .............. (777,000) (3,352,000) (13,818,000)
Acquisition of theme park assets ................. ... ... .... — — (5,764,000)
Purchase of restricted-use investments . ..................... — (134,508,000) (317,913,000)
Maturities of restricted-use investments...................... 134,508,000 317,913,000 75,111,000
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations . .............. —_ 314,456,000 —
Proceeds from saleof assets ............. ... .. .. ... ... 434,000 12,955,000 181,000

Net cash provided by (used in}) investing activities .. ... (37,080,000} 401,099,000 (362,488,000)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of long-termdebt ... ... ... ... ... (617,526,000) (1,146,461,000) (706,356,000)

Proceeds from borrowings.............. . ... oL 571,525,000 716,500,000  1,008,850,000

Net cash proceeds from issuance of common stock .......... 78,000 — —

Payment of cash dividends .............. ... . it (20,844,000) (20,844,000) (20,844,000)

Payment of debt issuance costs.......... . ... (5,540,000) (13,490,000) (17,312,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..... (72,307,000) (464,295,000) 264,338,000

Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ........................ $ 790,000 $ 615,000 § {162,000)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. 12,727,000 (29,382,000) 66,882,000

Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year .................. 68,807,000 98,189,000 31,307,000

Cash and cash equivalents atendofyear........................ $ 81534000 §$ 68,807,000 $ 98,189,000
Supplemental cashflow information:

Cash paidforinterest ...... ... ... ... ... .. . . ... . ... ..., $ 181,339,000 8 197,091,000 $ 186,801,000

Cash paid forincometaxes................. ... . ..iiiin.. $ 4,883,000 § 3,620,000 $ 3,131,000
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SIX FLAGS, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

(a) Description of Business

We own and operate regional theme amusement and
water parks. As of December 31, 2003, we owned or
operated 39 parks. In April 2004 we sold in two sepa-
rate transactions seven parks in Europe and Six Flags
Worlds of Adventure in Ohio. As of December 31, 2004,
we owned or operated 30 parks, including 28 domestic
parks, one park in Mexico and one in Canada. In
October 2005, we closed Six Flags AstroWorld in
Houston, Texas and are seeking to sell the underlying
104-acre site. As a result, we currently operate
29 parks. We are transfering certain property and
equipment from the Houston park to other parks we
own or operate prior to completing the sale. The ac-
companying consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2004 and for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and 2003 reflect the assets, liabilities and
results of the facilities sold in 2004 as discontinued
operations. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements as of and for all periods presented reflect
select assets of Six Flags AstroWorld as assets held
for sale and its results as a discontinued operation.
See Note 2.

Six Flags New Orleans sustained very extensive
damage in Hurricane Katrina in late August 2005 and
did not reopen during the 2005 season and will not
open during the 2006 season. See Note 12.

Unfess otherwise indicated, references herein to
“we,” "our” or “Six Flags” means Six Flags, Inc. and
our subsidiaries, and ‘‘Holdings” refers only to Six
Flags, Inc., without regard to our subsidiaries.

(b) Basis of Presentation

Our accounting policies refiect industry practices and
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

The consolidated financial statements include our
accounts, our majority and wholly owned subsidiaries,
and limited partnerships and limited liability companies
in which we beneficially own 100% of the interests.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we adopted Finan-
cial Accounting Standards Board ('FASB’’) Interpre-
tation No. 46, *“'Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bul-
letin No. 51" which was subsequently reissued in De-
cember 2003 as Interpretation No. 46 — Revised
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(FIN 46). Pursuant to those provisions we consolidate
the partnerships and joint ventures that own Six Flags
Over Texas, Six Flags Over Georgia, Six Flags White
Water Atlanta and Six Flags Marine World as we have
determined that we have the most significant economic
interest because we receive a majority of these entity’s
expected losses or expected residual returns and have
the ability to make decisions that significantly affect the
results of the activities of these entities. The equity
interests owned by nonaffiliated parties in these enti-
ties are reflected in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets as minority interest. The portion of
earnings from these parks owned by non-affiliated
parties in these entities is reflected as minority interest
in earnings in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of operations and in the consolidated state-
ments of cash flows.

In November 2004, we sold for nominal considera-
tion our 5% equity investment in Warner Bros. Movie
World Madrid which had been accounted for using the
cost method of accounting. The loss on the disposition
is accounted for as other income (loss) for the year
ended December 31, 2004. See Note 2.

Intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

(c) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents of $36,084,000 and $39,940,000 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, consist of
short-term highly liquid investments with a remaining
maturity as of purchase date of three months or less,
which are readily convertible into cash. For purposes of
the consolidated statements of cash flows, we con-
sider al! highly liquid debt instruments with remaining
maturities as of their purchase date of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories

(d)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out) or market value and primarily consist of prod-
ucts for resale including merchandise and food and
miscellaneous supplies. Costs of goods sold for the
year ended December 31, 2005 include $1,987,000
associated with a valuation allowance related to slow
moving inventory.

(e) Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets include
$17,115,000 and $14,932,000 of spare parts inventory




for existing rides and attractions at December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. These items are expensed as
the repair or maintenance of rides and attractions
occur.

(f) Advertising Costs

Production costs of commercials and programming
are charged to operations in the year first aired. The
costs of other advertising, promotion, and marketing
programs are charged to operations when incurred
with the exception of direct-response advertising which
is charged to the period it will benefit. The amounts

capitalized at year end are included in prepaid
expenses.
Advertising and promotions expense was

$104,295,000, $111,005,000 and $107,464,000 during
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

(g) Debt Issuance Costs

We capitalize costs related to the issuance of debt.
The amortization of such costs is recognized as inter-
est expense under a method approximating the interest
method over the term of the respective debt issue.

(h) Property and Equipment

Rides and attractions are depreciated using the
straight-line method over 5-25 years. Land improve-
ments are depreciated using the straight-line method
over 10-15 years. Buildings and improvements are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of approx-
imately 30 years by use of the straight-line method.
Furniture and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over 5-10 years. Maintenance and

repairs are charged directly to expense as incurred,
while betterments and renewals are generally capital-
ized as property and equipment. When an item is
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and applica-
ble accumulated depreciation are removed and the
resulting gain or loss is recognized.

(i) Intangible Assels

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment at least annually. To
accomplish this, we identify our reporting units and
determine the carrying value of each reporting unit by
assigning the assets and liabilities, including the ex-
isting goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting
units We then determine the fair value of each reporting
unit, compare it to the carrying amount of the reporting
unit and compare the implied fair value of the reporting
unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting
unit goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting
unit to all of the assets (recognized and unrecognized)
and liabilities of the reporting unit in a manner similar to
a purchase price allocation. The residual fair value after
this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting
unit goodwill. We determine the fair value of our North
American assets by using the discounted cash flow
method, that is, we estimate annual cash flows applica-
ble to our North American unit (after deducting esti-
mated capital expenditures), apply an estimated
valuation multiple to a terminal cash flow amount and
discount the result by an amount equal to our cost of
capital. Based on the foregoing, no impairment was
required for 2003, 2004 or 2005. Our unamortized
goodwill is $1,191,576,000 at December 31, 2005.

The following table reflects our intangible assets which are subject to amortization (in thousands):
As of December 31, 2005

As of December 31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003

Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Non-compete agreements ... ... $ 610 $ 610 $ 610 $ 601 $ 3,610 $1,055
Licenses...................... 16,932 4,446 16,932 3,566 22,932 3,749
$17,542 $5,056 $17,542 $4,167 $26,542 $4,804

We expect that amortization expense on our existing intangible assets subject to amortization will average
approximately $759,000 over each of the next five years. The range of useful lives of the intangible assets is from

5 to 25 years, with a weighted average of 22.7 years.

Intangible assets also include $3,367,000 represent-
ing previously unrecognized service costs of our Pen-
sion Plan (see Note 10).

(j) Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets for impairment when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
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the carrying amount of an asset may not be recover-
able. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset or group of assets to future net cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset or group of
assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired,
the impairment to be recognized is measured by the




amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell.

(k) Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon admission into our
parks, provision of our services, or when products are
delivered to our customer. For season pass and other
multi-use admissions, we recognize a pro-rata portion
of the revenue as the customer attends our parks.

(1)

Interest on notes payable is generally recognized as
expense on the basis of stated interest rates. Notes
payable assumed in an acquisition are carried at
amounts adjusted to impute a market rate of interest
cost (when the obligations were assumed).

(m)

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributa-
ble to differences between the financial statement car-
rying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in operations in the period that
includes the enactment date. United States deferred
income taxes have not been provided on foreign earn-
ings which are being permanently reinvested. We have
recorded a valuation allowance of $196,783,000 as of
December 31, 2005 and $153,384,000 as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004, due to uncertainties related to our ability
to utilize some of our deferred tax assets, primarily
consisting of certain net operating losses carried for-
ward and tax credits, before they expire. The valuation
allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income
by jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over
which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable.

Interest Expense

Income Taxes

(n) Loss Per Common Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss
applicable to common stock by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period.
No adjustments for stock options were included in the
2005, 2004 and 2003 computations of diluted loss per
share because the effect would have been antidilutive.
See Note 1(0) for additional information relating to the
number of stock options outstanding. Additionally, the
weighted average number of shares for each of the
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years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 does
not include the impact of the conversion of outstanding
convertible preferred stock into shares of common
stock as the effect of the conversion and resulting
decrease in preferred stock dividends would be an-
tidilutive. The weighted average number of shares for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 aiso
does not include the impact of the conversion of our
outstanding convertible notes into shares of common
stock as the effect of the conversion and resulting
decrease in interest expense would be anitdilutive. Our
Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Shares
(PIERS), which are shown as mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock on our consolidated balance sheets,
were issued in January 2001 and are convertible into
13,789,000 shares of common stock. Our convertible
notes were issued in November 2004 and are converti-
ble into approximately 47,087,000 shares of common
stock.

Preferred stock dividends and amortization of related
issue costs of $21,970,000, $21,968,000 and
$21,970,000 were included in determining net loss ap-
plicable to common stock in 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. :

(o) Stock Compensation

We have applied the intrinsic-value based method of
accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25 and
related interpretations in accounting for our stock op-
tion plans (See note 1(t) for our discussion of the
impact of adopting FASB Statement No. 123 (Revised
2004), "“Share Based Payments’'). Under this method,
compensation expense for unconditional employee
stock options is recorded on the date of grant only if
the current market price of the underlying stock ex-
ceeds the exercise price. For employee stock options
that are conditioned upon the achievement of perform-
ance goals, compensation expense, as determined by
the extent that the quoted market price of the underly-
ing stock at the time that the condition for exercise is
achieved exceeds the stock option exercise price, is
recognized over the service period. For stock options
issued to nonemployees, we recognize compensation
expense at the time of issuance based upon the fair
value of the options issued.

Certain members of our management and profes-
sional staff have been issued seven-year options to
purchase common shares under our 2004, 2001, 1998,
1996, 1995 and 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plans
(collectively, the Option Plans). Through Decem-
ber 31, 2005 all stock options granted under the Option
Plans, have been granted with an exercise price equal
to the underlying stock’s fair value at the date of grant.
Except for conditional options issued in 1998, options
generally may be exercised on a cumulative basis with




20% of the total exercisable on the date of issuance
and with an additional 20% being available for exercise
on each of the succeeding anniversary dates. Any
unexercised portion of the options will automatically
terminate upon the seventh anniversary of the issuance
date or following termination of employment. There
were 1,531,000 conditional stock options granted in
1998. These options have the same vesting schedule
as the unconditional stock options, except that no
conditional option could be exercised until after the
conditions of the stock option were met. The conditions
related to the exercise of these stock options were met
during December 1999.

In June 2001, our shareholders approved a stock
option plan for non-management directors providing
for options with respect to an aggregate of
250,000 shares. In June 2004, our shareholders ap-
proved a stock option plan for employees and directors
providing for options with respect to 1,800,000 shares.
Through December 31, 2005, we have granted to our
non-management directors an aggregate of 440,000

options with a weighted average exercise price of
$8.76 and weighted average remaining life to maturity
of 1.46 years. Other than exercise prices, the terms of
the directors’ options are comparable to options issued
to management.

At December 31, 2005, there were 4,665,000 addi-
tional shares available for grant under the Option
Plans. The per share weighted-average fair value of
stock options granted during 2005, 2004, and 2003 was
$3.89, $5.03 and $3.50, respectively, on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modei
with the following weighted-average assumptions:
2005 — expected dividend yield 0%, risk-free interest
rate of 4.12%, expected volatility of 78%, and an ex-
pected life of 5 years. 2004 — expected dividend yield
0%, risk-free interest rate of 3.28%, expected volatility
of 80%, and an expected life of 5 years. 2003 —
expected dividend yield 0%, risk-free interest rate of
2.87%, expected volatility of 83%, and an expected life
of 5 years.

No compensation cost has been recognized for the unconditional stock options in the consolidated financial
statements. Had we determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for all our

unconditional stock options under SFAS 123, ““Accountin
have been increased to the pro forma amounts below:

g for Stock Based Compensation,” our net loss would

2005 2004 2003
Net loss applicable to common stock:
Asreported................... ... ..... $(132,908,000) $(486,777,000) $(83,683,000)
Add: Noncash compensation........... 2,794,000 643,000 101,000
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for ail
awards, net of related tax effects..... (7,903,000) (2,868,000)  (13,296,000)
Proforma ............. ... ... ...... $(138,017,000) $(489,002,000) $(96,878,000)
Net loss per weighted average common
share outstanding — basic and diluted:
Asreported......................... $ (1.43) 8 (523) % (0.90)
Proforma .......................... $ (1.48) 8 (5.26) § (1.05)
50




Stock option activity during the years indicated is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2003
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired

Balance at December 31, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired

Balance at December 31, 2005

At December 31, 2005, the range of exercise prices
and weighted-average remaining contractual life of out-
standing options was $4.12 to $25.00 and 2.94 years,
respectively.

At December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, options
exercisable were 2,431,200, 3,490,400 and 6,041,200,
respectively, and weighted-average exercise price of
those options was $19.83, $19.69 and $20.80,
respectively.

During the first quarter of 2006, we granted options
to purchase 2,100,000 shares of common stock to our
officers, options to purchase 660,000 shares to our
directors and 725,000 shares of restricted common
stock to certain executives. We currently estimate that
we will recognize approximately $8,178,000 of stock-
based employee compensation expense in 2006 in
respect of these and previous awards.

Restricted Stock Grants

We issued 900,000 restricted common shares with
an estimated aggregate value of $14,625,000 to mem-
bers of our senior management in July 1997. We issued
an additional 920,000 restricted common shares with
an estimated aggregate value of $16,100,000 to mem-
bers of our senior management in October 1998. We
also issued an additional 370,126 restricted common
shares with an estimated aggregate value of
$7,439,000 to members of our senior management in
April 2001. Pursuant to employment agreements with
our former Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finan-
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Weighted-

average

Exercise

Number of shares Price

7,374,010 $19.88
105,000 521
{412,600) 21.05
(571,410) 11.00
6,495,000 20.23
545,000 7.63
(2,850,000) 20.85
(6,000) 11.00
4,184,000 18.18
535,000 5.93
(15,000) 5.21
(64,000) 21.08
(1,317,000) 17.50
3,323,000 $16.48

cial Officer, dated December 31, 2003, those execu-
tives were issued an aggregate of 425,000 shares of
restricted common stock in January 2004 with an ag-
gregate value of $3,251,000 on the date of issuance,
and we issued as aggregate of 65,000 shares of re-
stricted common stock in January 2005 with an aggre-
gate value of $365,000 on the date of issuance. The
restrictions on the stock issued lapse ratably over
various terms, generally based on continued employ-
ment. The restrictions also lapse upon termination of
the executive without cause or if a change in control of
Six Flags occurs. In that connection in December 2005
our former Chief Executive Officer entered into a termi-
nation agreement pursuant to which, among other
things, he was issued the remaining 80,000 shares of
restricted common stock provided for in his employ-
ment agreement and all restrictions on all restricted
shares issued under the employment agreement
lapsed. Compensation expense equal to the aggregate
value of the shares is being recognized as an expense
over the respective vesting period.

As noted above, in the first quarter of 2006, we
issued 725,000 restricted common shares to certain
executives. We expect to issue an additional
25,000 shares of restricted stock to our chief financial
officer on April 1, 2006 under the terms of an amenad-
ment to his employment agreement.

Investment Securities

(p)

Restricted-use investment securities at Decem-
ber 31, 2004 consist of U.S. Treasury securities. The




restricted-use investments at December 31, 2004 were
restricted to provide funds to prepay certain debt. The
prepayment was made in February 2005. See
Notes 6(b) and 6(c). We classify our investment secu-
rities in one of two categories: available-for-sale or
held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are those
securities in which we have the ability and intent to hoid
the security until maturity. All other securities held by
us are classified as available-for-sale. We do not
purchase investment securities principally for the pur-
pose of selling them in the near term and thus have no
securities classified as trading.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair
value. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the
restricted-use investments classified as available-for-
sale was $134,508,000 which approximated the amor-
tized cost of the securities. Unrealized holding gains
and losses, net of the related tax effect, on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from operations and
are reported as a separate component of other com-
prehensive income (loss) until realized. Realized gains
and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities
are determined on a specific identification basis.
Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized
cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of
premiums or discounts. As of December 31, 2004, our
restricted-use investment securities classified as avail-
able-for-sale had remaining maturities of less than one
year.

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted
over the life of the related held-to-maturity security as
an adjustment to yield using the effective interest
method. Interest income is recognized when earned.

(q) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net loss,
changes in the foreign currency translation adjustment,
changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desig-
nated as hedges and the additional minimum liability on
our defined benefit plan and is presented in the consol-
idated statements of stockholders’ equity and other
comprehensive income (loss) as accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

(r) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the re-
ported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of reve-
nues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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(s) Reclassifications

Reclassifications have been made to certain
amounts reported in 2003 and 2004 to conform with the
2005 presentation.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting
Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB published FASB State-
ment No. 123 (revised 2004), “‘Share-Based Pay-
ment.” Statement 123(R) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in financial statements.
That cost will be measured based on the fair vaiue of
the equity or liability instruments issued. We adopted
Statement 123(R) on January 1, 2006 under the modi-
fied prospective method of application. State-
ment 123(R) covers a wide range of share-based
compensation arrangements including share options,
restricted share plans, performance-based awards,

(t)

share appreciation rights, and employee share
purchase plans.
Statement 123(R) replaced FASB Statement

No. 123, ““Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” and superceded APB Opinion No. 25, “Account-
ing for Stock Issued to Employees.” Statement 123, as
originally issued in 1995, established as preferable a
fair-value-based method of accounting for share based
payment transactions with employees. However, that
Statement permitted entities the option of continuing to
apply the guidance in Opinion 25, as long as the
footnotes to financial statements disclosed what net
income would have been had the preferable fair-value-
based method been used. As allowed, we have histori-
cally accounted for stock options using the accounting
principles of Opinion 25. The impact of adopting the
provisions of Statement 123(R) will be to increase our
noncash compensation expense in future periods. As
disclosed in the note 1(0), using the Black-Scholes
method of determining fair value in the past would have
increased our noncash compensation expense by ap-
proximately $13,195,000 in 2003, approximately
$2,225,000 in 2004 and approximately $5,109,000 in
2005. During 2006, we have granted options to
purchase 2,100,000 shares of common stock to certain
executives, options to purchase 660,000 shares of
common stock to directors and 725,000 shares of
restricted stock to certain executives. We currently
estimate that these grants, coupled with prior grants,
will result in stock-based compensation expense of
approximately $8,178,000 in 2006. There was no cu-
mulative effect of change in accounting principle upon
adoption of the statement. The provisions of our credit
facilities and outstanding notes do not include noncash
compensation expenses in the determination of finan-
cial covenants. As a result, the effects of the adoption



of Statement 123(R) will not have a significant impact poses. We are relocating select rides, attractions and
on our financial position or results of operations. other equipment presently at AstroWorld to our re-
maining parks for the 2006 and 2007 seasons and sold
certain other equipment. Based on our current estimate
of anticipated sale proceeds and after taking into ac-
count rides and other equipment transferred to other
parks and/or sold, we have established a loss of
approximately $20,400,000 related to this asset. We
cannot give any assurances as to the timing of any
such sale or the amount of the proceeds therefrom.

In March 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47 — Account-
ing for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
(“FIN 47). FIN 47 requires an entity to recognize a
liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retire-
ment obligation if the fair value of that liability can be
reasonably estimated. We have reviewed our obliga-
tions with respect to the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets. Certain of those obligations arise out of
leases and others relate to obligations that would arise
in the event we determined to demolish, sell or aban-
don property that we own. We have concluded that the
former obligations are immaterial and that the fair value
of the latter obligations can not be reasonably esti-
mated. Accordingly, the adoption of FIN 47 did not
result in any impact on our results of operations or
financial position for the year ended December 31,
2005 and we do not expect the adoption to have a
material impact on future results of operations, finan-
cial position or liquidity.

On April 8, 2004, we sold substantially all of the
assets used in the operation of Six Flags World of
Adventure near Cleveland, Ohio (other than the marine
and land animals located at that park and certain
assets related thereto) for a cash purchase price of
$144,300,000. In a separate transaction, on the same
date, we sold all of the stock of Walibi S.A., our wholly-
owned subsidiary that owned the seven parks we
owned in Europe. The purchase price was approxi-
mately $200,000,000, of which Euro 10.0 million
($12,100,000 as of April 8, 2004) was received in the
form of a nine and one-half year note from the buyer,
and $11,600,000 represented the assumption of certain
debt by the buyer, with the balance paid in cash. During

In October 2005, we permanently closed Six Flags February 2006, the Note was repurchased by the buyer
AstroWorld in Houston. We have engaged Cushman & for $11,950,000. Net cash proceeds from these trans-
Wakefield to market the 104-acre site on which the actions have primarily been used to pay down debt and
park is located. The sale has been approved by our to fund investments in our remaining parks. Approxi-
lenders under the Credit Agreement (see note 6(a)) mately $248,588,000 of debt has been repaid with such
and we intend to use the proceeds from the sale to proceeds, not including the debt assumed by the buyer
reduce our indebtedness and for other corporate pur- of our European parks.

(2) Disposition of Theme Parks

Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, ““Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” our consoli-
dated financial statements have been reclassified for all periods presented to reflect the operations and select
assets of AstroWorld as discontinued operations. The assets of AstroWorld have been classified as “‘Assets held
for sale” on the December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 consolidated balance sheets and consist of the
following:

December 31,2005 December 31, 2004
(In thousands)

Property, plant and equipment,net . ................... $51,070 $ 73,805
Goodwill, net ... 26,530 26,530
Total assets heldforsale........................... $77,600 $100,335

The net loss from discontinued operations (including AstroWorld for all years and the 2004 dispositions for
2004 and 2003) was classified on the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31,
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2005, 2004 and 2003 as ‘‘Discontinued operations, inclusive of tax.” Summarized results of discontinued

operations are as follows:

Operating revenue

Loss on sale of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes

Impairment on assets held for sale
Income tax benefit

Net results of discontinued operations

Our long-term debt is at the consclidated level and is
not reflected at each individual park. Thus, we have not
allocated a portion of interest expense to the discontin-
ued operations.

During November 2004 we agreed with the owner of
the park we managed in Spain to terminate the man-
agement agreement and to transfer our 5% investment
in the equity of the park for nominal consideration. By

(3) Property and Equipment

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

$ 41257 § 42,389 $229,394
—  (310,281) —
(1,619) (38,169) (5,925)
(20,423) — —
— (57,406) (5,217)
$(22,042) $(291,044) $ (708)

virtue of the foregoing, we recognized losses of ap-
proximately $15,000,000, representing the carrying
amount of our investment in the park, certain intangible
assets related to non-compete agreements and li-
censes, and other costs. These losses were recorded
in other income {expense) in the accompanying 2004
consolidated statement of operations.

Property and equipment, at cost, are classified as follows:

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Rides and attractions
Equipment

(4)

Minority Interest, Partnerships and Joint
Ventures

Minority interest represents the third parties’ share
of the assets of the four parks that are less than
wholly-owned, Six Flags Over Texas, Six Flags Over
Georgia (including Six Flags White Water Atlanta which
is owned by the partnership that owns Six Flags Over
Georgia) and Six Flags Marine World. Minority interest
in earnings shown is reduced by depreciation and other
non-operating expenses of $4,880,000, $5,356,000 and
$5,705,000, respectively, for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

In April 1997, we became manager of Marine World
(subsequently renamed Six Flags Marine World), then
a marine and exotic wildlife park located in Vallejo,
California, pursuant to a contract with an agency of the
City of Vallejo under which we are entitled to receive an
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December 31,

2005 2004

$ 144,569,000 $ 144,337,000
386,464,000 363,200,000
499,926,000 496,843,000
1,558,414,000  1,453,094,000
276,972,000 303,424,000
2,866,345,000  2,760,898,000
938,754,000 814,665,000

$1,927,591,000 $1,946,233,000

annual base management fee of $250,000 and up to
$250,000 annually in additional management fees
based on park revenues. In November 1997, we exer-
cised our option to lease approximately 40 acres of
land within the site for nominal rent and an initial term
of 55 years (plus four ten-year and one four-year
renewal options). We have added theme park rides
and attractions on the leased land, which is located
within the existing park, in order to create one fully-
integrated regional theme park at the site. We are
entitled to receive, in addition to the management fee,
80% of the cash flow generated by the combined
operations at the park, after combined operating ex-
penses and debt service on outstanding third party
debt obligations relating to the park. We also have an
option through February 2010 to purchase the entire
site at a purchase price equal to the greater of the then
principal amount of the debt obligations of the seller



(expected to aggregate $52,000,000) or the then fair
market value of the seller’s interest in the park (based
on a formula relating to the seller’'s 20% share of
Marine World's cash flow).

See note 12 for a description of the partnership
arrangements applicable to Six Flags Over Texas and
Six Flags Over Georgia (the Partnership Parks).

(5) Derivative Financial Instruments
In February 2000, we entered into three interest rate
swap agreements that effectively converted

$600,000,000 of the term loan component of the Credit
Facility (see Note 6(a)) into a fixed rate obligation.
The terms of the agreements, as subsequently ex-
tended, each of which had a notional amount of
$200,000,000, began in March 2000 and expired from
March 2005 to June 2005. Our term loan borrowings
bear interest based upon LIBOR plus a fixed margin.
Our interest rate swap arrangements were designed to
“lock-in"’ the LIBOR component at rates, from Febru-
ary 2001 to March 6, 2003, ranging from 5.13% to
6.07% (with an average of 5.46%) and after March 6,
2003, from 2.065% to 3.50% (with an average of
3.01%). The counterparties to these transactions are
major financial institutions, which minimized the credit
risk.

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.”” SFAS No. 133, as amended by
SFAS No. 138, establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and for hedging activities. It requires an entity to recog-
nize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet and measure those instru-
ments at fair value. If certain conditions are met, a
derivative may be specifically designated as a hedge
for accounting purposes. The accounting for changes
in the fair value of a derivative (that is gains and
losses) depends on the intended use of the derivative
and the resulting designation. We have designated all
of the interest rate swap agreements as cash-flow
hedges.

The Partnership Parks are also party to interest rate
swap agreements with respect to an aggregate of
$3,000,000 of indebtedness at December 31, 2005 and
$9,933,000 of indebtedness at December 31, 2004.

We formally document all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our
risk-management objective and strategy for undertak-
ing various hedge transactions. This process includes
linking all derivatives that are designated as cash-flow
hedges to forecasted transactions. We also assess,
both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis,

55

whether the derivatives that are used in hedging trans-
actions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows of hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-
flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive in-
come (loss), until operations are affected by the varia-
bility in cash flows of the designated hedged item.
Changes in fair value of a derivative that is not desig-
nated as a hedge are recorded in operations on a
current basis.

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were no gains or
losses reclassified into operations as a result of the
discontinuance of hedge accounting treatment for any
of our derivatives.

By using derivative instruments to hedge exposures
to changes in interest rates, we are exposed to credit
risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the
counterparty to perform under the terms of the deriva-
tive contract. To mitigate this risk, the hedging instru-
ments are placed with counterparties that we believe
are minimal credit risks.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a
financial instrument that results from a change in inter-
est rates, commodity prices, or currency exchange
rates. The market risk associated with interest rate
swap agreements is managed by establishing and
monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree
of market risk that may be undertaken.

We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for
trading purposes. Changes in the fair value of deriva-
tives that are designated as hedges are reported on the
consolidated balance sheet in “Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss})”’ (AOCL). These
amounts are reclassified to interest expense when the
forecasted transaction takes place.

The critical terms, such as the index, settlement
dates, and notional amounts, of the derivative instru-
ments were substantially the same as the provisions of
our hedged borrowings under the Credit Facility. As a
result, no material ineffectiveness of the cash-flow
hedges was recorded in the consolidated statements
of operations.

As of December 31, 2005, approximately $6,000 of
net deferred losses on derivative instruments accumu-
lated in AOCL are expected to be reclassified to opera-
tions during the next 12 months. No transactions and
events are expected to occur over the next
twelve months that will necessitate reclassifying these
derivatives’ losses to operations. The maximum term
over which we are hedging exposures to the variability
of cash flows for commodity price risk is 11 months.




(6) Long-Term Debt
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, long-term debt consists of:

Long-term debt:

Credit Facility(a) ... e e
9'/2% Senior Notes due 2009(b)........ ... ...
87/s% Senior Notes due 2010(C) ...
93.% Senior Notes due 2013(d)......... .. i,
95/s% Senior Notes due 2014(e)...........oo ..
4'/:% Convertible Senior Notes due 2015(f) .....................

{a) On November 5, 1999, Six Flags Theme Parks

Inc. (SFTP), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Six Flags Operations Inc., our principal direct
subsidiary, entered into the Credit Facility, which
was amended and restated on July 8, 2002 and
further amended on November 25, 2003, Janu-
ary 14, 2004, March 26, 2004, November 5, 2004,
April 22, 2005 and December 23, 2005. The Credit
Facility includes a $300,000,000 five-year revolv-
ing credit facility ($100,000,000 of which was
outstanding at December 31, 2005 and none of
which was outstanding at December 31, 2004), a
$100,000,000 muiticurrency reducing revolver fa-
cility (none of which was outstanding at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 or 2004) and a $655,000,000 six-
year term loan ($645,175,000 of which was out-
standing as of December 31, 2005 and
$651,725,000 of which was outstanding as of
December 31, 2004). Borrowings under the five-
year revolving credit facility (US Revolver) must
be repaid in full for thirty consecutive days during
the five month period from June 1 through No-
vember 1 of each year. The interest rate on bor-
rowings under the Credit Facility can be fixed for
periods ranging from one to six months. At our
option the interest rate is based upon specified
levels in excess of the applicable base rate or
LIBOR. At December 31, 2005, the weighted aver-
age interest rates for borrowings under the term
loan and the US revolver were 6.67% and 6.62%,
respectively. At December 31, 2004, the weighted
average interest rate for borrowings under the
term loan was 5.47%. The multicurrency facility
permits optional prepayments and reborrowings
and requires quarterly mandatory reductions in
the initial commitment (together with repayments,
to the extent that the outstanding borrowings
thereunder would exceed the reduced commit-
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2005 2004
$ 745,175000 $ 651,725,000
— 304,655,000
300,300,000 300,300,000
388,000,000 388,000,000
503,650,000 308,650,000
299,000,000 299,000,000
7,649,000 21,999,000
(1,417,000) (1,746,000)
2,242357,000  2,272,583,000
113,601,000 147,462,000

$2,128,756,000 $2,125,121,000

ment) of 2.5% of the committed amount thereof
commencing on December 31, 2004, 5.0% com-
mencing on March 31, 2006, 7.5% commencing
on March 31, 2007 and 18.75% commencing on
March 31, 2008. As a result, availability under this
facility as of December 31, 2005 was $87.5 mil-
lion. This facility and the U.S. Revolver terminate
on June 30, 2008. The term loan facility requires
quarterly repayments of 0.25% of the outstanding
amount thereof commencing on September 30,
2004 and 24.0% commencing on September 30,
2008. The term loan matures on June 30, 2009,
provided however, that the maturity of the term
loan will be shortened to December 31, 2008, if
prior to such date, our outstanding preferred
stock is not redeemed or converted into common
stock. A commitment fee of .50% of the unused
credit of the facility is due quarterly in arrears. The
principal borrower under the facility is SFTP, and
borrowings under the Credit Facility are guaran-
teed by Holdings, Six Flags Operations and all of
Six Flags Operations’ domestic subsidiaries and
are secured by substantially all of Six Flags Oper-
ations’ domestic assets and a pledge of Six Flags
Operations capital stock. See Note 5 regarding
interest rate hedging activities.

On November 25, 2003, we entered into an
amendment to the Credit Facility pursuant to
which we amended the covenants relating to the
leverage ratio through 2005 and the fixed charge
coverage ratio through June 30, 2007 in order to
provide us with additional financial flexibility. In
addition, pursuant to the amendment we are per-
mitted to enter into fixed-to-floating rate debt
swap agreements so fong as our total floating rate
debt does not exceed 50% of our total debt as of
the swap date. In exchange for our lenders’ con-




sent to the amendment, we agreed to an increase
of 0.25% in the interest rates we are charged on
our borrowings under the Credit Facility.

On January 14, 2004, we completed a
$130,000,000 increase of the term loan portion of
the Credit Facility and used all of the proceeds of
the additional loan to redeem the remaining bal-
ance of our 9%% Senior Notes due 2007 then
outstanding. In March 2004, we amended the
term loan in order to permit the sales of the
discontinued operations. In April 2004, we perma-
nently repaid $75,000,000 of the term loan from a
portion of the proceeds of the sale of the discon-
tinued operations and recognized a gross loss of
$1,216,000 for the write off of debt issuance
costs.

On November 5, 2004, we entered into an addi-
tional amendment to the Credit Facility which fur-
ther relaxed the leverage ratio through 2006 and
the fixed charge coverage ratio through 2007. In
exchange for our lenders’ consent to the amend-
ment, we agreed to a further increase of 0.25% in
certain circumstances in the interest rates we are
charged on our borrowings under the Credit
Agreement.

On April 22, 2005 we amended the Credit Facility
to permit our Canadian subsidiary that owns our
Montreal park to incur up to Can $35.0 million of
secured debt to finance improvements at that
park and to increase from $25.0 million to
$40.0 million the letter of credit capacity under the
Credit Facility.

On December 23, 2005 we entered into an
amendment to the Credit Facility to permit the
sale of the AstroWorld site. The proceeds may be
used to repay our debt, debt of Six Flags Opera-
tions or SFTP or to make capital expenditures.

The Credit Facility contains restrictive covenants
that, among other things, limit the ability of Six
Fiags Operations and its subsidiaries to dispose
of assets; incur additional indebtedness or liens;
repurchase stock; make investments; engage in
mergers or consolidations; pay dividends (except
that (i) dividends of up to $75,000,000 in the
aggregate (of which $8,900,000 had been di-
vidended prior to December 31, 2005) may be
made from cash from operations in order to en-
able us to pay amounts in respect of any refinanc-
ing or repayment of Holdings’ senior notes and
(i) subject to covenant compliance, dividends will
be permitted to allow Holdings to meet cash inter-
est obligations with respect to its Senior Notes,
cash dividend payments on our PIERS and our
obligations to the limited partners in Six Flags
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(c)

Over Georgia and Six Flags Over Texas) and
engage in certain transactions with subsidiaries
and affiliates. In addition, the Credit Facility re-
quires that Six Flags Operations comply with cer-
tain specified financial ratios and tests.

On February 2, 2001, Holdings issued
$375,000,000 principal amount of 9':% Senior
Notes due 2009 (the 2009 Senior Notes). As of
December 31, 2004, we had repurchased
$70.3 million of the 2009 Senior Notes from a
portion of the proceeds of the sale of the 2004
discontinued operations (see Note 2) and a por-
tion of the proceeds of the November 2004 offer-
ing of our 4% Convertible Senior Notes due
2015 (the Convertible Notes). See Note 6(f). A
gross loss of $3,922,000 due to the repurchase of
the 2009 Notes was recognized in 2004. We re-
deemed $123,500,000 aggregate principal
amount of the 2009 Notes on February 1, 2005
with a portion of the net proceeds of the Converti-
ble Notes. We redeemed the balance of the 2009
Notes on February 7, 2005 with the proceeds of
the January 2005 offering of $195,000,000 of
additional 9%/% Senior Notes due 2014 (see
Note 6(e)). A gross loss of $19,303,000 due to
the redemptions of the 2009 Notes was recog-
nized in 2005.

On February 11, 2002, Holdings issued
$480,000,000 principal amount of 87/% Senior
Notes due 2010 (the 2010 Senior Notes). As of
December 31, 2004, we had repurchased
$179.7 million of the 2010 Senior Notes from a
portion of the proceeds of the sale of the 2004
discontinued operations (see Note 2) and a por-
tion of the proceeds of the November 2004 offer-
ing of our Convertible Notes (see Note 6(f)). A
gross loss of $4,599,000 due to the repurchase of
the 2010 Notes was recognized in 2004. There
were no repurchases in 2005. The 2010 Senior
Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Hold-
ings, are not guaranteed by subsidiaries and rank
equal to the other Senior Notes of Holdings. The
2010 Senior Notes require annual interest pay-
ments of approximately $26,652,000 (87/:% per
annum) and, except in the event of a change in
control of Holdings and certain other circum-
stances, do not require any principal payments
prior to their maturity in 2010. The 2010 Senior
Notes are redeemable, at Holding’s option, in
whole or in part, at any time on or after Febru-
ary 1, 2006, at varying redemption prices begin-
ning at 104.438% and reducing annually until
maturity. The indenture under which the 2010
Senior Notes were issued contains covenants
substantially similar to those relating to the other
Senior Notes of Holdings.




The indenture under which the 2010 Senior Notes
were issued limits our ability to dispose of assets;
incur additional indebtedness or liens; pay divi-
dends; engage in mergers or consolidations; and
engage in certain transactions with affiliates.

On April 16, 2003, Holdings issued $430,000,000
principal amount of 9%/:% Senior Notes due 2013
(the 2013 Senior Notes). As of December 31,
2004 we had repurchased $42,000,000 principal
amount of the 2013 Senior Notes. A gross loss of
$1,979,000 due to this repurchase was recog-
nized in 2004. There were no repurchases in
2005. The 2013 Senior Notes are senior un-
secured obligations of Holdings, are not guaran-
teed by subsidiaries and rank equal to the other
Holdings Senior Notes. The 2013 Senior Notes
require annual interest payments of approxi-
mately $37,830,000 (9°/.% per annum) and, ex-
cept in the event of a change in control of the
Company and certain other circumstances, do not
require any principal payments prior to their ma-
turity in 2013. The 2013 Senior Notes are redeem-
able, at Holdings’ option, in whole or in part, at
any time on or after April 15, 2008, at varying
redemption prices beginning at 104.875% and re-
ducing annually until maturity. The indenture
under which the 2013 Senior Notes were issued
contains covenants substantially similar to those
relating to the other Holdings Senior Notes. All of
the net proceeds of the 2013 Senior Notes were
used to fund the tender offer and redemption of
other senior notes. A gross loss of $27,592,000
due to the early purchase and redemption of such

other senior notes, together with a related
$10,484,000 tax benefit, was recognized in 2003.
On December 5, 2003, Holdings issued

$325,000,000 principal amount of the 9%/s% Senior
Notes due 2014 (the 2014 Senior Notes). As of
December 31, 2004, we had repurchased
$16,350,000 principal amount of the 2014 Senior
Notes. A gross loss of $837,000 due to this repur-
chase was recognized in 2004. n January 2005,
we issued an additional $195,000,000 of 2014
Senior Notes, the proceeds of which were used to
fund the redemption of $181,155,000 principal
amount of 2009 Senior Notes (see 6(b)). The
2014 Senior Notes are senior unsecured obliga-
tions of Holdings, are not guaranteed by subsidi-
aries and rank equal to the other Holdings Senior
Notes. The 2014 Senior Notes, including the Jan-
uary additional amount, require annual interest
payments of approximately $48,396,000
(9°/% per annum) and, except in the event of a
change in control of the Company and certain
other circumstances, do not require any principal
payments prior to their maturity in 2014. The 2014
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(f)

Senior Notes are redeemabile, at Holdings' option,
in whole or in part, at any time on or after June 1,
2009, at varying redemption prices beginning at
104.813% and reducing annually until maturity.
The indenture under which the 2014 Senior Notes
were issued contains covenants substantially
similar to those relating to the other Holdings
Senior Notes. All of the net proceeds of the
original issuance of 2014 Senior Notes, together
with proceeds of term loan borrowings under the
Credit Facility, were used to redeem in full other
senior notes of holdings. A gross loss of
$25,178,000 was recognized in 2004 on this
redemption.

On November 19, 2004, Holdings issued
$299,000,000 principal amount of Convertible
Notes. The Convertible Notes are senior un-
secured obligations of Holdings, are not guaran-
teed by subsidiaries and rank equal to the other
Holdings Senior Notes. Except during specified
non-convertibility periods, the Convertible Notes
are convertible into our common stock at an initial
conversion rate of 157.4803 shares of common
stock for each $1,000 principal amount of Con-
vertible Notes, subject to adjustment, represent-
ing an initial conversion price of $6.35 per share.
Upon conversion of the notes, we have the option
to deliver common stock, cash or a combination
of cash and common stock. The Convertible
Notes require annual interest payments of ap-
proximately $13,455,000 (4'/:% per annum) and,
except in the event of a change in control of
Holdings and certain other circumstances, do not
require any principal payments prior to their ma-
turity in 2015. The Convertible Notes are redeem-
able, at Holdings’ option, in whole or in part, at
any time after May 15, 2010 at varying redemption
prices beginning at 102.143% and reducing annu-
ally until maturity. The net proceeds of the Con-
vertible Notes were used to repurchase and
redeem a portion of the 2009 Senior Notes (see
Note 6 (b)) and repurchase a portion of the 2010
Senior Notes (see Note 6 (c)).

Annual maturities of long-term debt during the five
years subsequent to December 31, 2005, are as

follows:
2006 ... $ 113,601,000
2007 ... 7,148,000
2008 ... 317,675,000
2009 ... 314,400,000
2010 ... 299,754,000
Thereafter ................ 1,189,779,000



The Credit Facility restricts the ability of Six Flags required payments under the agreements relating to
Operations to distribute assets to Holdings, and the the Partnership Parks and certain tax and shared ser-
indentures relating to Holdings’ Senior Notes restrict vices arrangements. The amount available for distribu-
the ability of Holdings to distribute assets to its share- tion (other than permitted payments in respect to
holders. The Credit Facility restricts distributions by Six shared administrative and other corporate expenses
Flags Operations (i) up to $75,000,000 in the aggre- and tax sharing payments) at December 31, 2005 by
gate from cash from operations and (ii) to amounts Holdings based upon the most restrictive applicable
required to pay interest on Holdings’ Senior Notes, indenture limitation was $550,685,000.
dividends on Holdings’ outstanding preferred stock,

(7) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table and accompanying information present the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of
our financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2004. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

2005 2004
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets (liabilities):

Restricted-use investment

securities . ................ $ — $ — $ 134,508,000 $ 134,508,000
Long-term debt (including

current portion) ........... (2,242,357,000) (2,312,703,000) (2,272,583,000) " (2,340,012,000) "
Interest rate swap

agreements (included in

other long-term liabilities) . . (5,000) (5,000) (1,736,000) (1,736,000)
PIERS...................... (283,371,000) (265,880,000) (282,245,000) (254,495,000)

(1) Includes $123,068,000 of 2008 Senior Notes that had been called for redemption at December 31, 2004 and were
redeemed in February 2005. Also includes $181,155,000 of 2009 Senior Notes called for redemption in January 2005 and
redeemed in February 2005.

The carrying amounts shown in the table are included in the consolidated balance sheets under the indicated
captions.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:

+ The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts payable,
and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

« Restricted-use investment securities: The fair values of debt securities (both available-for-sale and held-to-
maturity investments) are based on quoted market prices at the reporting date for those or similar
investments.

* Long-term debt: The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated by discounting the future cash flows of
each instrument at rates currently offered to us for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities by our
investment bankers or based upon quoted market prices.

» Derivative financial instruments: The fair value of our derivative financial instruments is determined by the
counterparty financial institution.

« PIERS: The fair value of our mandatorily redeemable preferred stock is based upon quoted market prices.
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Income Taxes

(8)

Income tax expense (benefit) allocated to opera-
tions for 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of the following:

Current Deferred Total
2005:
U.S. federal .. $ — 8 — 3 —
Foreign ...... 2,602,000 (76,000) 2,526,000
State and
local ....... 951,000 228,000 1,179,000
$ 3,553,000 $ 152,000 $ 3,705,000
2004
U.S. federal .. $ — $ 24,749,000 $ 24,749,000
Foreign ...... 2,520,000 984,000 3,504,000
State and
local ....... 1,223,000 2,527,000 3,750,000
$ 3,743,000 $ 28,260,000 $ 32,003,000
2008:
U.S. federal .. $ — $(26,491,000) $(26,491,000
Foreign ...... 1,840,000 746,000 2,586,000
State and
local ....... 1,291,000 (5,305,000) (4,014,000
$ 3,131,000 $(31,050,000) $(27,919,000

Recorded income tax expense (benefit) allocated to
continuing operations differed from amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% in
2005, 2004 and 2003 to loss before income taxes as
follows:

2005 2004 2003

Computed
“expected”’
federal
income tax
benefit

Nondeductible
compensation

Other, net

Effect of foreign
income taxes

Effect of state
and local
income taxes,
net of federal
tax benefit ...

Change in
valuation
allowance .. ..

$(29,817,000) $(49,617,000) $(31,123,000

4,201,000
(2,761,000)

225,000
6,096,000)

35,000
1,649,000

2,268,000 (172,000) 433,000

(4,146,000)  (5,761,000) 1,087,000

33,960,000 81,232,000
$ 3,705,000 $ 32,003,000 $(27,919,000

Substantially all of our future taxable temporary dif-
ferences (deferred tax liabilities) relate to the different
financial accounting and tax depreciation methods and
periods for property and equipment. Our net operating
loss carryforwards, alternative minimum tax credits,
accrued insurance expenses, and deferred compensa-
tion amounts represent future income tax deductions
(deferred tax assets). The tax effects of these tempo-

)

)
)

)

)
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rary differences as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 are presented below:

2005 2004 2003
Deferred tax
assets before
valuation
allowance .... $658,456,000 $618,629,000 $432,531,000
Less valuation
allowance .... 196,783,000 153,384,000 1,196,000
Net deferred tax
assets ....... 461,673,000 465,245,000 431,335,000
Deferred tax
liabilities ... .. 476,018,000 479,736,000 475,618,000
Net deferred tax
liability ....... $ 14,345000 $ 14,491,000 $ 44,283,000
2005 2004 2003
Deferred tax
assets:
Net operating
loss
carryforwards $638,285,000 $601,399,000 $417,585,000
Alternative
minimum tax
credits .. .... 6,591,000 6,591,000 6,591,000
Accrued
insurance
and other ... 13,580,000 10,639,000 8,355,000
658,456,000 618,629,000 432,531,000

Deferred tax

liabilities:

Property and

equipment... $462,900,000 $466,542,000 $463,408,000

Intangible

assets and

other ....... 13,118,000 13,194,000 12,210,000
476,018,000 479,736,000 475,618,000

Our deferred tax liability results from the financial
carrying amounts for property and equipment being
substantially in excess of our tax basis in the corre-
sponding assets. The majority of our property and
equipment is depreciated over a 7 to 12 year period for
tax reporting purposes and a longer 20-to-25 year
period for financial purposes. The faster tax deprecia-
tion has resulted in tax losses which can be carried
forward to future years to offset future taxable income.

As of December 31, 2005, we have approximately
$1,686,678,000 of net operating loss carryforwards
available for U.S. federal income tax purposes which
expire through 2025. Additionally at December 31,
2005, we had approximately $6,591,000 of alternative
minimum tax credits which have no expiration date and
approximately $186,000,000 of capital loss carryfor-
wards which expire in 2009. We have recorded a
valuation allowance of $153,384,000 as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and $196,783,000 as of December 31,
2005, due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize
some of our deferred tax assets before they expire.




The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of
taxable income by jurisdiction in which we operate and
the period over which our deferred tax assets will be
recoverable.

(9) Preferred Stock, Common Stock and
Other Stockholders’ Equity

(a) Preferred Stock

We have authorized 5,000,000 shares of preferred
stock, $1.00 par value per share. All shares of pre-
ferred stock rank senior and prior in right to all of our
now or hereafter issued common stock with respect to
dividend payments and distribution of assets upon our
liquidation or dissolution.

PIERS

In January 2001, we issued 11,500,000 PIERS, for
proceeds of $277,834,000, net of the underwriting dis-
count and offering expenses of $9,666,000. Each
PIERS represents one one-hundredth of a share of our
7'1.% mandatorily redeemable preferred stock (an ag-
gregate of 115,000 shares of preferred stock). The
PIERS accrue cumulative dividends (payable, at our
option, in cash or shares of common stock) at
7'/<% per annum (approximately $20,844,000 per an-
num). Holders can voluntarily convert the PIERS into
shares of common stock at any time prior to August 15,
2009.

Prior to August 15, 2009, each of the PIERS is
convertible at the option of the holder into 1.1990
common shares (equivalent to a conversion price of
$20.85 per common share), subject to adjustment in
certain circumstances (the Conversion Price). At any
time on or after February 15, 2004 and at the then
applicable conversion rate, we may cause the PIERS,
in whole or in part, to be automatically converted if for
20 trading days within any period of 30 consecutive
trading days, including the last day of such period, the
closing price of our common stock exceeds 120% of
the then prevailing Conversion Price. On August 15,
2009, the PIERS are mandatorily redeemable in cash
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equal to 100% of the liquidation preference (initially
$25.00 per PIERS), plus any accrued and unpaid
dividends.

(b) Share Rights Plan

On December 10, 1997, our board of directors autho-
rized a share rights plan. The plan was subsequently
amended on February 4, 1998, May 18, 2004 and
amended and restated as of September 14, 2004.
Under the plan, stockholders have one right for each
share of common stock held. The rights become exer-
cisable ten business days after (a) an announcement
that a person or group of affiliated or associated per-
sons has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more
of our voting shares outstanding, or (b) the com-
mencement or announcement of a person’s or group’s
intention to commence a tender or exchange offer that
could result in a person or group owning 15% or more
of the voting shares outstanding.

Each right entities our holder (except a holder who is
the acquiring person) to purchase 1/1000 of a share of
a junior participating series of preferred stock desig-
nated to have economic and voting terms similar to
those of one share of common stock for $250.00,
subject to adjustment. In the event of certain merger or
asset sale transactions with another party or transac-
tions which would increase the equity ownership of a
stockholder who then owned 15% or more of the voting
shares of Six Flags, each right will entitle our holder to
purchase securities of the merging or acquiring party
with a value equal to twice the exercise price of the
right.

The rights, which have no voting power, expire in
2008. The rights may be redeemed by us for $.01 per
right until the rights become exercisable.

(c) Charter Amendment

On June 29, 2005, we amended our Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the authorized shares of our
Common Stock from 150,000,000 to 210,000,000.




(d) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The accumulated balances for each classification of comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Additional Accumulated
minimum Other
Foreign Cash flow liability on comprehensive
currency items hedges benefit plan income (Loss)
Balance, December 31, 2002........ $(24,133,000) $(10,943,000) $(16,197,000) $(51,273,000)
Net current period change .......... 78,868,000 (4,193,000) 2,928,000 77,603,000
Reclassification adjustments for
losses reclassified into operations — 8,337,000 — 8,337,000
Balance at December 31, 2003 . ... .. 54,735,000 (6,799,000) (13,269,000) 34,667,000
Net current period change .......... (55,612,000) (2,942,000) (877,000) (59,431,000)
Reclassification adjustments for
losses reclassified into operations — 9,580,000 — 9,580,000
Balance at December 31, 2004 ...... (877,000) (161,000) (14,146,000) (15,184,000)
Net current period change .......... 5,306,000 (1,012,000) (7,282,000) (2,988,000)
Reclassification adjustments for
losses reclassified into operations — 1,167,000 — 1,167,000
Balance, December 31, 2005........ $ 4429000 § (6,000) $(21,428,000) $(17,005,000)

The cash flow hedge and the additional minimum liability on benefit plan amounts presented above during 2003

are reflected net of tax, calculated at a rate of approximately 38%.

(10) Pension Benefits

As part of the acquisition of the former Six Flags, we
assumed the obligations related to the SFTP Defined
Benefit Plan (the Plan). The Plan covered substantially
all of SFTP’s employees. During 1999 the Plan was
amended to cover substantially all of our domestic full-
time employees. During 2004, the Plan was further
amended to cover certain seasonal workers, retroac-
tive to January 1, 2003. The Plan permits normal retire-
ment at age 65, with early retirement at ages 55
through 64 upon attainment of ten years of credited
service. The early retirement benefit is reduced for
benefits commencing before age 62. Plan benefits are
calculated according to a benefit formula based on age,
average compensation over the highest consecutive
five-year period during the employee’s last ten years of
employment and years of service. Plan assets are
invested primarily in common stock and mutual funds.
The Plan does not have significant liabilities other than
benefit obligations. Under our funding policy, contribu-
tions to the Plan are determined using the projected
unit credit cost method. This funding policy meets the
requirements under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974.

In February 2006, we announced we were “freezing”
our pension plan effective April 1, 2006, pursuant to
which participants will no longer continue to earn future
pension benefits. A curtailment loss may be required

during the first quarter of 2006. However, such amount
will not be able to be determined until March 31, 2006.

Benefit Obligations

Change in benefit obligation

2005 2004

Benefit obligation,

January 1 $131,705,000

$151,802,000

Service cost . ... .. 6,104,000 5,381,000
Interest cost ...... 9,216,000 8,317,000
Actuarial loss

(gain) .......... 13,565,000 6,665,000
Benefits paid...... (3,084,000) (2,804,000)
Plan amendments — 2,538,000
Benefit obligation,

December 31 ... $177,603,000 $151,802,000

The accumulated benefit obligation for the
U.S. pension plans at the end of 2005 and 2004 was
$153,527,000 and $132,043,000, respectively.

We use a measurement date of December 31 for our
pension plan.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations, December 31
2005 2004

5.750% 5.875%
4.000% 3.750%

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase ...
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Change in Plan assets

2005 2004

Fair value of plan

assets, January

1. $101,956,000 $ 92,222,000
Actual return on

plan assets ..... 7,423,000 9,389,000
Employer

contribution . .... 9,432,000 3,149,000
Benefits paid. .. ... (3,084,000) (2,804,000)
Fair value of plan

assets,

December 31 ... $115,727,000 $101,956,000

Employer contributions and benefits paid in the
above table inciude only those amounts contributed
directly to, or paid directly from, plan assets.

The asset allocation for the Six Flags pension plan at
the end of 2005 and 2004, and the target allocation for
2006, by asset category, follows. The fair value of plan
assets for these plans is $115,727,000 and
$101,956,000 at the end of 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively. The expected long term rate of return on these
plan assets was 8.50% in 2005 and 8.75% in 2004.

Description of Investment Strategy

The Committee is responsible for managing the in-
vestment of Plan assets and ensuring that the Plan’s
investment program is in compliance with all provisions
of ERISA, other relevant legislation, related Plan docu-
ments and the Statement of Investment Policy. The
Committee has retained several mutual funds, commin-
gled funds and/or investment managers to manage
Plan assets and implement the investment process.
The investment managers, in implementing their invest-
ment processes, have the authority and responsibility
fo select appropriate investments in the asset classes
specified by the terms of the applicable prospectus or
other investment manager agreements with the Plan.

The primary financial objective of the Plan is to
secure participant retirement benefits. As such, the key
objective in the Plan’s financial management is to pro-
mote stability and, to the extent appropriate, growth in
funded status. Other related and supporting financial
objectives are also considered in conjunction with a
comprehensive review of current and projected Plan
financial requirements.

The assets of the fund are invested to achieve the
greatest reward for the Plan consistent with a prudent
level of risk. The asset return objective is to achieve, as
a minimum over time, the passively managed return
earned by market index funds, weighted in the propor-
tions outlined by the asset class exposures in the
Plan’s long-term target asset allocation.

Funded Status

The funded status of the Plan, reconciled to the amount in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31

Percentage
of Plan

Asset Allocation for _Year End,
category 2006 2005 2004
Equity securities 60.0% 61.3% 62.6%
Fixed Income . .. 38.5% 37.9% 37.2%
Short Term

Investments . . 1.5% 0.8% 0.2%
Other .......... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total........... 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

follows:

End of Year

Fair value of Plan assets . ......................
Benefit obligation............. ... ... ...
Fundedstatus............. ... ... ... ... ......
Amounts not yet recognized:

Unrecognized net (gain) loss ..................
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) .......

Net amount recognized ........................

2005 2004

................ $ 115,727,000 $ 101,956,000
................ (177,603,000) {151,802,000)

................ (61,876,000) (49,846,000)

................ 53,637,000 42,037,000
................ 3,367,000 3,927,000

................ $ (4,872,000) $ (3,882,000)
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2005 2004

End of Year

Prepaid benefit cost .......... ... . ... $ — ¢ —
Accrued benefitcost .......... .. (4,872,000) (3,882,000)
Additional minimum liability . ...... ... . (32,927,000) (26,205,000)
Intangible asset ... .. .. 3,367,000 3,927,000
Accumulated other comprehensive income. ........................ 29,560,000 22,278,000
Net amount recognized ........ ... ... ... $ (4,872,000) §$ (3,882,000)

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the projected benefit obligation, the accumulated benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets for pension plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets and for pension
plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets were as follows:

Projected Benefit Obligation Accumulated Benefit
Exceeds the Fair Value Obligation Exceeds the Fair
of Plan Assets Value of Plan Assets
2005 2004 2005 2004
End of Year
Projected benefit obligation ...... $177,603,000 $151,802,000 $177,603,000 $151,802,000
Accumulated benefit obligation . . . 153,527,000 132,043,000 153,527,000 132,043,000
Fair value of Plan assets ........ 115,727,000 101,956,000 115,727,000 101,956,000

Expected Cash Flows

Information about expected cash flows for the plan follows:
Employer Contributions for Fiscal Year 2006

2006 (expected) to plan trusts. ... ... $ 6,477,000
Expected benefit payments:
200 .. 3,350,000
2007 e 4,048,000 -
2008 e 4,565,000
200 . © 5,105,000
2010 L 5,666,000
2011 - 2018 L 37,733,000
$60,467,000

Components of net periodic benefit cost
Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Service CoSt. ... i $ 6,105,000 $ 5,381,000 $ 4,729,000
Interestcost....... ... . 9,216,000 8,318,000 7,689,000
Expected returnonplanassets ........................ (8,812,000) (8,071,000) (6,859,000)
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) .......... ... 560,000 356,000 301,000
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain)................ 3,354,000 2,625,000 3,260,000
Net periodic benefitcost ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... $10,423,000 $ 8,609,000 $ 9,120,000
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
cost

Discountrate........ ... i 5.875% 6.125% 6.500%
Rate of compensationincrease ........................ 3.750% 3.750% 4.000%
Expected retumonoplanassets ........................ 8.500% 8.750% 9.000%
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The return on assets assumption was developed based on consideration of historical market returns, current
market conditions, and the Plan’s past experience. Estimates of future market returns by asset category are

reflective of actual long-term historical returns.

Overall, it was projected that the Plan could achieve an 8.50% net return over time based on a consistent
application of the existing asset allocation strategy and a continuation of the Plan’s policy of monitoring manager

performance.

Additional Information

Change in minimum liability inciuded in other comprehensive income

At December 31, 2005, the Plan’s accumulated bene-
fit obligation exceeded the fair value of Plan assets
resulting in the Plan being underfunded by
$37,800,000. As such, we recognized the difference
between our recorded prepaid benefit cost and the
underfunded status of the Plan as a liability of
$32,927,000. As of December 31, 2005, we have re-
corded in other comprehensive loss $29,560,000 as an
additional minimum liability of the Plan. Additionally, we
recognized an intangible asset of $3,367,000 which
represents the previously unrecognized prior service
cost of the Plan.

(11) 401(k) Plan

We have a qualified, contributory 401 (k) plan (the
401(k) Plan). All regular empioyees are eligible to
participate in the 401(k) Plan if they have completed
one full year of service and are at least 21 years old.
During the three years ended December 31, 2005, we
matched 100% of the first 2% and 25% of the next 6%
of salary contributions made by employees. The ac-
counts of all participating employees are fully vested
upon completion of four years of service. We recog-
nized approximately $2,386,000, $3,543,000 and
$2,237,000 of related expense in the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(12) Commitments and Contingencies

Six Flags New Orleans sustained very extensive
damage in Hurricane Katrina in late August 2005 and
did not reopen during the 2005 season and will not
open in 2006. We have determined that our carrying
value of the assets destroyed is approximately
$32.4 million. This amount does not include the prop-
erty and equipment owned by the lessor, which is also
covered by our insurance policies. The park is covered
by up to approximately $180 million in property insur-
ance, subject to a deductible in the case of named
storms of approximately $5.5 million. The property
insurance covers the full replacement value of the
assets destroyed and includes business interruption
coverage. Although the flood insurance provisions of
the policies contain a $27.5 million sublimit, the sepa-

65

Pension Benefits
2005 2004

$7,282,000 $877,000

rate “Named Storm’’ provision, which explicitly covers
flood damage, is not similarly limited. Based on advice
from our insurance advisors, we do not believe the
flood sublimit to be applicable. We have initiated prop-
erty insurance claims, including business interruption,
with our insurers. Since we expect to recover there-
from an amount in excess of our net book value of the
impaired assets, we have established an insurance
receivable at December 31, 2005, in an amount equal
to the prior carrying value of those assets, $32.4 mil-
lion. We cannot estimate at this time when the park will
be back in operation. We are contractually committed
to rebuild the park, but only to the extent of insurance
proceeds received, including proceeds from the dam-
age to the lessor’s assets. We cannot be certain that
our current estimates of the extent of the damage will
be correct.

On April 1, 1998 we acquired all of the capital stock
of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation for
$976,000,000, paid in cash. In addition to our obliga-
tions under outstanding indebtedness and other secu-
rities issued or assumed in the Six Flags acquisition,
we also guaranteed in connection therewith certain
contractual obligations relating to the partnerships that
own two Six Flags parks, Six Flags Over Texas and Six
Flags Over Georgia (the Partnership Parks). Specifi-
cally, we guaranteed the obligations of the general
partners of those partnerships to (i) make minimum
annual distributions of approximately $56,791,000 (as
of 2006 and subject to annual cost of living adjustments
thereafter) to the limited partners in the Partnership
Parks and (ii) make minimum capital expenditures at
each of the Partnership Parks during rolling five-year
periods, based generally on 6% of such park's reve-
nues. Cash flow from operations at the Partnership
Parks is used to satisfy these requirements first, before
any funds are required from us. We also guaranteed
the obligation of our subsidiaries to purchase a maxi-
mum number of 5% per year (accumulating to the
extent not purchased in any given year) of the total
limited partnership units outstanding as of the date of
the agreements (the Partnership Agreements) that
govern the partnerships (to the extent tendered by the
unit holders). The agreed price for these purchases is




based on a valuation for each respective Partnership
Park equal to the greater of (i) a value derived by
multiplying such park's weighted-average four-year
EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Agreements)
by a specified multiple (8.0 in the case of the Georgia
park and 8.5 in the case of the Texas park) or
(ii) $250,000,000 in the case of the Georgia park and
$374,800,000 in the case of the Texas park. Our obliga-
tions with respect to Six Flags Over Georgia and Six
Flags Over Texas will continue until 2027 and 2028,
respectively.

As we purchase units relating to either Partnership
Park, we are entitled to the minimum distribution and
other distributions attributable to such units, unless we
are then in default under the applicable agreements
with our partners at such Partnership Park. On Decem-
ber 31, 2004, we owned approximately 25.3% and
37.5%, respectively, of the limited partnership units in
the Georgia and Texas partnerships. The maximum
unit purchase obligations for 2006 at both parks will
aggregate approximately $246,600,000.

We lease under long-term leases the sites of En-
chanted Village, Six Flags New Orleans, Six Flags
Mexico, La Ronde and Six Flags Waterworld /Concord.
We also lease Wyandot Lake and Waterworld/Sacra-
mento under leases expiring after the 2006 season. We
also lease portions of the site of Six Flags Kentucky
Kingdom and a small parcel near Six Flags New En-
gland. In certain cases rent is based upon percentage
of the revenues earned by the applicable park. During
2005, 2004, and 2003, we recognized approximately
$8,241,000, $8,581,000 and $7,617,000, respectively,
of rental expense under these rent agreements.

Total rental expense, including office space and park
sites, was approximately $14,206,000, $14,299,000
and $12,971,000 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Future minimum obligations under noncancellable
operating leases, including site leases, at Decem-

ber 31, 2005, are summarized as follows (in
thousands):
Year ending December 31,
2006 ... $ 10,525
2007 ... 9,772
2008 ... .. 9,458
2009 ... 9,220
2010 ... 8,948
2011 and thereafter ............. 225,235
$273,158
We are party to a license agreement (the

U.S. License Agreement) pursuant to which we have
the exclusive right on a long term basis to theme park
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use in the United States and Canada (excluding the
Las Vegas, Nevada metropolitan area) of all animated,
cartoon and comic book characters that Warner Bros.
and DC Comics have the right to license for such use.
The license fee is subject to periodic scheduled in-
creases and is payable on a per-theme park basis.
Based on current usage, the annual fee for 2005 was
approximately $4,000,000.

In November 1999, we entered into license agree-
ments (collectively the International License Agree-
ment) pursuant to which we have the exclusive right on
a long term basis to theme parks use in Europe,
Central and South America of all animated, cartoon and
comic book characters that Warner Bros., DC Comics
and the Cartoon Network have the right to license for
such use. Under the International License Agreement,
the license fee is based on specified percentages of
the gross revenues of the applicable parks. We have
prepaid approximately $4,310,000 of international li-
cense fees.

We maintain multi-layered general liability policies
that provide for excess liability coverage of up to
$100,000,000 per occurrence. For incidents arising af-
ter November 15, 2003, our self-insured retention is
$2,500,000 per occurrence ($2,000,000 per occur-
rence for the twelve months ended November 15, 2003
and $1,000,000 per occurrence for the twelve months
ended on November 15, 2002) for our domestic parks
and a nominal amount per occurrence for our interna-
tional parks. Our self-insured retention after Novem-
ber 15, 2003 is $750,000 for workers compensation
claims ($500,000 for the period from November 15,
2001 to November 15, 2003). For most incidents prior
to November 15, 2001, our policies did not provide for
a self-insured retention. Based upon reported claims
and an estimate for incurred, but not reported claims,
we accrue a liability for our self-insured retention
contingencies.

We are party to various other legal actions arising in
the normal course of business. Matters that are proba-
ble of unfavorable outcome to us and which can be
reasonably estimated are accrued. Such accruals are
based on information known about the matters, our
estimate of the outcomes of such matters and our
experience in contesting, litigating and settling similar
matters. None of the actions are believed by manage-
ment to involve amounts that would be material to our
consolidated financial position, results of operations,
or liquidity after consideration of recorded accruals.

On March 3, 2006, a jury verdict was rendered in the
Ohio state court case styled Terri Wang, et al vs. Six
Flags.’Inc. et al. The jury awarded the plaintiffs approx-
imately $1.1 million in compensatory damages and
$2.5 million in punitive damages. Judgment has not
been entered on the jury award. The case arose out of



a head injury suffered by Ms. Wang when she was under the loan. One of our partners in the joint venture
allegedly hit by a rock while riding a roller coaster at a also guaranteed the loan. Our guarantee will be re-
park we then owned. The compensatory damage leased upon full payment and discharge of the loan,
award is covered by insurance. Case law is unsettled which matures on December 17, 2009. As security for
with respect to coverage of the punitive damage award. the guarantee, we have provided an $8.0 million letter
We intend to vigorously contest both damage awards of credit. We have entered into a management agree-
before the trail court and, if necessary, upon appeal as ment to manage and operate the project.

excessive, as unsupported by the evidence and inap-

propriate as a matter of law. Although the punitve  Red Zone LLC has requested that we reimburse Red
damages award may not be directly covered by insur- Zone for the expenses it incurred in connection with its
ance, in the event the verdict stands, we believe that consent solicitation. Our Board of Directors has autho-
the law requires our insurance company to cover the rized us to reimburse Red Zone for certain of its
entire verdict because of its wrongful refusal to settle €xpenses, subject to the Audit Committee’s review of
within policy limits. We have commenced an action in the expenses and its determination that the expenses
Texas against our insurance company asserting this were reasonable and Subject further to approval of the

and other claims associated with the coverage issues. reimbursement by our shareholders at our 2006 annual
meeting. Red Zone has requested reimbursement for

We have guaranteed the payment of a $31.0 million expenses that include financial advisory fees, legal
construction term loan incurred by HWP Development fees, travel and other out of pocket expenses and
LLC (a joint venture in which we own a 41% interest) compensation and signing bonuses paid by Red Zone
for the purpose of financing the construction and de- to Mr. Shapiro and additional individuals who have
velopment of a hotel and indoor water park project become our employees. The Audit Committee has re-
located adjacent to our Great Escape park near Lake tained independent counsel to assist it in its review of
George, New York, which opened in February 2006. At the expenses. As of the date of this Annual Report, the
December 31, 2005, $25,706,000 was outstanding Audit Committee has not completed its review.

(13) Business Segments

We manage our operations on an individual park location basis. Discrete financial information is maintained for
each park and provided to our corporate management for review and as a basis for decision-making. The primary
performance measure used to allocate resources is earnings before interest, tax expense, depreciation, and
amortization (EBITDA). All of our parks provide similar products and services through a similar process to the
same class of customer through a consistent method. We also believe that the parks share common economic
characteristics. As such, we have only one reportable segment — operation of theme parks. The following tables
present segment financial information, a reconciliation of the primary segment performance measure to loss from
continuing operations before income taxes. Park level expenses exclude all non-cash operating expenses,
principally depreciation and amortization and all non-operating expenses.

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Theme park revenues . . ... i e $1,089,682 $ 998,590 $1,007,276
Theme park cash expenses ....... ... .. i, (713,608) (671,684) {652,650)
Aggregate park EBITDA . .. ... ... 376,074 326,906 354,626
Minority interest in earnings — EBITDA. . .......... ... .. ... .. ..., (44,674) (43,042) (41,702)
Corporate expenses .. ... .. e (44,560) (30,312) (28,238)
Non-cash compensation ........ .. ... i (2,794) (643) (101)
Other iINCOME (BXPENSE) ...ttt e (45,255) (65,286) (28,642)
Minority interest in earnings — depreciation and other expense ...... 4,880 5,356 5,705
Depreciation and amortization ......... .. ... ... o (145,373)  (143,160) (137,272)
INterest eXpPeNSe. .. (186,012) (195,674) (215,228)
Interest iNCOME . . .. ... . 2,523 4,093 1,928
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes ............... $ (85,191) $(141,762) $ (88,924)
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One of our parks is located in Mexico and one is located in Canada. The following information reflects our long-
lived assets and revenues by domestic and foreign categories for 2005, 2004 and 2003:

2005:
Long-lived assets
Revenues

2004:
Long-lived assets
Revenues

2003:
Long-lived assets
Revenues

Domestic Foreign Total
(In thousands)
$2,993,896 $141,124 $3,135,020
1,009,255 80,427 1,089,682
$3,018,933 $135,486 $3,154,419

930,512 68,078 998,590
$3,098,585 $125,870 $3,224,455
944,704 62,572 1,007,276

Long-lived assets include property and equipment and intangible assets.

(14) Changes in Management and Strategy

Following a consent solicitation by Red Zone LLC, an
entity controlied by Daniel M. Snyder, in December
2005 Mr. Snyder became Chairman of our Board of
Directors and two other designees of Red Zone be-
came directors, including Mark Shapiro, who was
elected President and Chief Executive Officer at that
time. Subsequently, six new directors were elected to
our Board and five directors resigned, including two of
the six new directors.

In 2006, our Board of Directors has approved sub-
stantial changes to senior management, including sev-
eral park general managers, and new management has
begun to effectuate a series of long-term operating
initiatives including (i) expanding the family entertain-
ment offering of the parks by adding additional shows,
parades, fireworks and character events utilizing the
Warner Bros. licensed property, (ii) enhancing the
guest experience by improving the overall appearance
and cleanliness of the parks, (iii) reviewing our asset
base to determine whether any non-core assets, in-
cluding underutilized land, should be sold,
(iv) redesigning our 2006 advertising campaign to
emphasize the 45th anniversary of Six Flags and in-
creasing the use of direct marketing and (v) increasing
sponsorship and promotional revenues as well as driv-
ing increased value from admissions and in-park
revenues.

The management change resulted in severance and
other expenses of approximately $9.0 million in 2005
and a $3.6 million write off of costs incurred in projects
that new management has determined not to pursue.
These expenses are included in selling, general and
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administrative expenses in the accompanying 2005
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

We have entered into an amendment to the employ-
ment agreement of our Chief Financial Officer, pursu-
ant to which, upon his termination of employment as of
April 1, 2006, we will incur an additional $4.8 million of
severence expense and issue to him options to
purchase 75,000 shares and 25,000 shares of re-
stricted stock. Including that severance expense, we
expect approximately $8.1 million of severance and
relocation expenses to be incurred in 2006.

In the first quarter of 2006, we granted options to
purchase 2,100,000 shares of common stock to certain
executives, options to purchase 660,000 shares of
common stock to directors and 725,000 shares of
restricted stock to certain executives. We currently
estimate that these grants, coupled with prior grants,
will result in stock-based compensation expense of
approximately $8,178,000 in 2006.

New management has determined to (i) close the
Oklahoma City corporate office, relocating certain em-
ployees to the New York City corporate office and the
Dallas office, (ii) substantially expand the size and
number of employees located in the New York City
office, (iii) sell the two Oklahoma City parks and the
Columbus, Ohio water park following the 2006 season.
No costs associated with these 2006 decisions were
accrued as of December 31, 2005. During 2006, we will
reflect these operations as discontinued and incur and
recognize the transition costs associated with the cor-
porate and operating relocations.



(15) AQuarterly Financial Information
(Unaudited)

Following is a summary of the unaudited interim results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004:

2005
First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Total revenue ........ .ot $ 49,760,000 $369,130,000 $558,969,000 $ 111,823,000 $1,089,682,000
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock .. ... (184,212,000) 5,609,000 190,195,000 (144,500,000) (132,908,000)
Net income (loss) per weighted average common
share outstanding:
BasiC ...t (1.98) 0.06 2.04 (1.55) (1.43)
Diluted. .. .o e (1.98) 0.06 1.29 (1.55)
2004
First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Total revenue . ..o $ 40,701,000 $343,448,000 $509,012,000 $ 105,429,000 $ 998,590,000
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock ... .. (410,312,000)  (12,318,000) 50,874,000 (115,021,000) (4886,777,000)
Net income (loss) per weighted average common
share outstanding:
BasiC ... (4.41) (0.13) 0.55 (1.24) (5.23)
Diluted .. ..o (4.41) (0.13) 0.53 (1.24) (5.23)

We operate a seasonal business. In particular, our theme park operations contribute most of their annual
revenue during the period from Memorial Day to Labor Day each year.

See note 2 with respect to our loss on sale of discontinued operations during 2005 and 2004, which were
primarily recognized in the fourth quarter of 2005 and the first quarter of 2004.
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